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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM and generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this annual report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this annual report misleading.

HFERBAREMARAF(THR])
GEM 2§53

GEM J3 2 Wi 22 e b v 2 Fo At 2 W] 3
A7 58 B B < v R 4y W] PR B
ZW8 o AEEENLE T B
SO ] Z AR B - i M A A R
ZZERITEMBEDE -

BB AEGEM _Eii 2 2 v % 2 rh /AU
Al » FTEGEM H # Z it 77 vl il & 5 78 B 52
Fr ERE R @R ARZBAZ TS B
JEVBE - [l G 4 2 OR i8 fEGEM B ¥ 2 i %
FHRREREZE -

il 3 59 R 45 P A R 4 Al R Mg = Py
FERZ IGEMA A - B
SEBEVETR A ZEH AT (] 2B > Sl W e 76
I 0 A E AR R AR A A A 7
I 2 2F 2 [A] 1o % 5 10 728 T 51 20 2 A o]
TEITRIG BT -

KAFFR 7 IIGEMEEF - Tli# Al ([ GEM
B ) 2 B T 1
BEFHRLE A ([RAA ) 2 EH - AL
i 25 ([ 8 F)) FE AR IR Py i 1 25
SE[F] RN PR 2 BSEAF o K EH A
H— V) & B - TR BT R FF
16 » AR FER I H B 7 E T T 6
WEMET N - KRB LI TEL S HE
HEH WG THIE - DA FRIH
PTG (F 1] Bt 2 2 4 o

ARERREERAD
= St 1



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-year Financial Summary

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 Annual Report 2020

L e B o

BREE AL e MR Y

RN B A

18 57 A R

KRB 1R AR M b A T i 2 R

R R T INVIES
At B R
HEBEenER
AR MBS AR N L
TLAF A B A 2

10

34

68

72

97

113

122

125

127

128

131

294




EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chairman)

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lam Chun Kei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Hin Hang

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien

Mr. Hung Kenneth

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Ng Ting Ho

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Ng Ting Ho
Ms. Chan Lai Ping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Chairman)

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien

Mr. Hung Kenneth
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Chairman)

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Corporate Information
NAolER
PATHR
S S S ()
SAEW: ek (7B
AR FLS R
B ERTHEE
BRATAT 554
20 e
BB
HHRELE
S S
72 WS

SR e
BRREDE 2+

HEHEERE
BRATAT S ()
e et
HRRBEAE
HiMZE
BRATAT S ()
(ERTY ¥
W RBEE

BRERREERAT
—E-BEER 3



Corporate Information (Continued)

LalEl(8)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Hung Kenneth

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Lai Ping, CPA
AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
2nd Floor, 625 King’s Road
North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Office AO1, 35/F, United Centre

No. 95 Queensway
Admiralty, Hong Kong

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
4 Annual Report 2020

RUZERE
1ESEEIE ()
BRAT Tt

WR RS
AL

BRREESE &t > 2 M Erat il

3

TR A T8 A= 55 B A R ]

BE AT
Hils

LA

i R IE 625

FRAERRT

S ERAT AR AT PR 2 7]

s LRI SR AT
AR

A SRAT

ik T = g

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

ERIER Y SR
i

S EEIESYE
Hi—rh35HEAO EHEA =



PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
54/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

8120

WEBSITE

http://www.chinademeter.com

Corporate Information (Continued)

Lol &8 (8)

JBe oy 38 5 e % e A B

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

A8 P B Rl e

LB A TR A
T

B e RIEHR1835E
AR 54H8E
A A 5%

8120

Ak

http://www.chinademeter.com

BRERREERAT
—E-BEER 5



Chairman’s Statement

FTHRBES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it gives me great pleasure to
present to you the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

, together

RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$136,872,000 (2019: approximately
HK$96,912,000). Loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$28,453,000 (2019: approximately
HK$104,211,000). The net loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly attributable to fair
value loss on financial assets through profit or loss of approximately
HK$3,457,000, the impairment loss of loans and interest
receivables of approximately HK$4,310,000, the impairment loss
of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$11,849,000
and the general and administrative expenses of approximately
HK$100,080,000, which were offset by loan interest income of
approximately HK$5,901,000, income from food and beverage
business of approximately HK$106,926,000, income from alcoholic
beverage distribution and miscellaneous business of approximately
HK$14,224,000, income from children education business of
approximately HK$4,287,000, income from financial services
business of approximately HK$5,433,000, the COVID-19-related rent
concessions of approximately HK$4,844,000 and the government
grant of approximately HK$6,767,000 in respect of COVID-19-related
subsidies.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund its money
lending business through its indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Loan interest income under this business segment amounted to
approximately HK$5,901,000 during the year (2019: approximately
HK$8,476,000). During the year, interests of the loan receivables were
charged at rates ranging from 8% to 24% per annum.
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)

The Group has investments in securities of listed and non-listed
companies, debt securities and funds in order to diversify its
investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders. During the
year, the Group recorded a loss in fair value of financial assets through
profit or loss of approximately HK$3,457,000 and recognised a loss
in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$400,000. The Board will continue to closely
monitor the performance of securities and investments to mitigate
possible financial risks.

The turnover of the alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous
business for the year amounted to approximately HK$14,224,000
(2019: approximately HK$12,314,000). The Group will monitor the
performance of the business to assess the future development.

The turnover of the children education business for the year
amounted to approximately HK$4,287,000 (2019: approximately
HK$5,427,000). Since February 2020, many parents withdrew their
children from classes because of the COVID-19 outbreak. The Board
considers that such impact will be continued in the first half of the
year 2021.

During the year, the Group develop the food and beverage business in
the operation of Japanese cuisine, western food and Thai food in Hong
Kong and the Directors believe that opportunities in Japanese style
restaurants in Hong Kong are promising in light of the established but
fragmented market. The turnover of the food and beverage business
for the year amounted to approximately HK$106,926,000 (2019:
approximately HK$68,793,000).

Moreover, as a result of the continuous outbreak of the swine fever
and the outbreak of COVID-19 in various provinces and regions in the
People’s Republic of China, the operations of the Group’s feedstock
products business has been temporarily suspended in February 2020
and in April 2020, the Group disposed of Tony China Limited, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which group principally
engaged in manufacturing and distribution of feedstock products and
related activities. Upon completion of such disposal, the Group has
discontinued to engage in the agricultural business.
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)

FTREBSE(E)

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year has been extremely challenging for all businesses
around the world. Particularly, in Hong Kong, the social events were
followed by the onset of the unprecedented and protracted COVID-19
pandemic, making a year full of unrelenting pressure on the normal
operations of the Group. The ongoing China-US tensions also added
uncertainties to the market. Among other initiatives taken in response
to the year’s events, we moved rapidly to control costs in a number
of different areas, and the savings we achieved in major expenses
such as labor costs and rents helped to some extent to offset the drop
in revenue caused by COVID-19. We were also able to benefit from
various temporary subsidy schemes provided by the government.

Despite the overall catering business has been affected by COVID-19,
the Group will use the opportunity to optimize its restaurant network
through consolidation and relevant expansion, all of which will be
carefully considered based on such factors as population density, local
retail and business attractions, demographics, consumption patterns,
etc. Meanwhile the Group will enhance the computerized systems
not only providing more user-friendly experience to customers, but
also helping the Group analyze from customer data collection, detect
earlier the emerging trends and adopt effective adjustment of menus
and marketing campaigns. It will therefore make good use of current
opportunities to review internal operations and production processes
so as to lay a solid foundation for long-term development.
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)

Hong Kong, as the largest offshore RMB centre, is uniquely placed to
act as a global connector between international and Mainland Chinese
markets. 2020 was a challenging year, Hong Kong financial markets
yet played an active role in support of Mainland outbound portfolio
diversification, as well as enabling global access to Mainland securities
investments as evidenced by the record high turnover and the amount
of the fundraising. Since 2016 the Group has been offering brokerage
and related services as well as money lending in Hong Kong and then
strategically entered into Food and Beverage business. The philosophy
behind this multi-engine model is that these businesses aim to provide
stable returns and strong cash flows, while the Group will continue to
seek new income streams and opportunities for increasing returns in
support of the existing segments.

Leveraging on the solid foundation supported by its existing core
businesses, the Group will formulate business strategies according
to the market trends and continue to explore new investment
opportunities, in an effort to enhance the Group’s long term
profitability. In addition, the Group will carefully review the
development in all segments, and will allocate more resources to the
business with sustainable growth potential. We are confident that the
current swings will smooth out and that our foundation and longer-
term investment horizon put us in a position to be patient and prudent as
we navigate these turbulent markets.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our
customers, investors, suppliers, business partners and shareholders for
their continued valuable support and trust during the year. My heartfelt
thanks are also to my fellow directors, the management team and the
staff for their exemplary performance and support. As always, they
have contributed greatly to the continued success of the Group.

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ﬁﬂla'il'ﬁl}yﬂiﬁ

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“Company”
and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) recorded a net
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$28,453,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year”) (31
December 2019: approximately HK$104,211,000). This was mainly
attributable to the fair value loss on financial assets through profit
or loss of approximately HK$3,457,000, the impairment loss of
loans and interest receivables of approximately HK$4,310,000, the
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$11,849,000 and the general and administrative expenses of
approximately HK$100,080,000, which were offset by loan interest
income of approximately HK$5,901,000, income from food and
beverage business of approximately HK$106,926,000, income
from alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business
of approximately HK$14,224,000, income from children education
business of approximately HK$4,287,000, income from financial
services business of approximately HK$5,433,000, the COVID-19-
related rent concessions of approximately HK$4,844,000 and the
government grant of approximately HK$6,767,000 in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies.

Revenue for the Year increased by approximately 41.2% to
approximately HK$136,872,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$96,912,000), while gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$86,187,000 (31 December 2019: approximately HK$62,741,000).
Revenue for the Year comprised dividend income from listed equity
investments amounting to approximately HK$101,000 (31 December
2019: approximately HK$86,000), loan interest income amounting
to approximately HK$5,901,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$8,476,000), provision of financial services amounting to
approximately HK$5,433,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$1,816,000), alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous
business amounting to approximately HK$14,224,000 (31 December
2019: approximately HK$12,314,000), food and beverage business
amounting to approximately HK$106,926,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$68,793,000), and provision of children education
services amounting to approximately HK$4,287,000 (31 December
2019: HK$5,427,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

General and administrative expenses for the Year increased to
approximately HK$100,080,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$100,266,000). Such increase was mainly due to inclusion of the
operating expenses of the newly opened restaurants of the food and
beverage business of the Group to the administrative expenses of the
Group during the Year.

AGRICULTURAL BUSINESS

As a result of the continuous outbreak of the swine fever and the
outbreak of COVID-19 in various provinces and regions in the
People’s Republic of China, the operations of the Group’s feedstock
products business has been temporarily suspended in February 2020.
In April 2020, the Group disposed of Tony China Limited, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which group principally
engaged in manufacturing and distribution of feedstock products and
related activities. Upon completion of such disposal, the Group has
discontinued to engage in the agricultural business. For details, please
refer to the announcements dated 21 February 2020 and 22 April 2020.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance, Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong, in which a person or company
carrying on business as a money lender in Hong Kong must obtain a
money lender licence.

The market of money lending business by licensed money lenders
in Hong Kong is keen and competitive. Based on the list of existing
money lenders licensees as maintained by the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong, there were more than 2,390 licensed money lenders
(including applications for renewal in progress) in Hong Kong as at 31
December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The scope of money lending services provided by licensed money
lenders generally includes personal loans, business loans and mortgage
loans. Within a loan category, the interest rates, the length of term of
loan and choice of instalments vary with each licensed money lender.
In addition to competition with other licensed money lenders, licensed
money lenders also compete with authorised institutions such as
banks, restricted licensed banks and deposit-taking companies in the
provision of money lending services, although licensed money lenders
may offer an advantage in providing loans with simpler approval
procedures and greater flexibility.

Therefore, in view of the competitive landscape of the money lending
business in Hong Kong, to reach potential borrowers who might
compare lending services and products across various options, the
brand exposure and target market are important to a licensed money
lender.

The Group’s money lending business does not generally target the
general public. In order to differentiate itself from other licensed
money lenders in the market, the target customers of the money
lending business of the Group are mainly as follows:

(1) as regards personal loans, the Group targets well-heeled and
reputational customers, the occupations of which ranged from
executives, businessmen to professionals; and

(i) as regards business loans, the Group targets well-established
companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/or the
PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group mainly provided
term loans to individuals and companies where interests are payable
by tailor-made schedule at fixed interest rate. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group has granted a loan to a connected
person of the Company. Please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report —
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Connected Transactions” and note 41 to the
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, personal loans represented all in value of
the Group’s total active and outstanding loan portfolio. All of the
customers in the Group’s money lending business are either Hong
Kong or PRC residents or companies with business operations in
Hong Kong and/or the PRC and come from referral from the business
partners of the Group.

The majority of our loans are short-term loans repayable within a year.
As at 31 December 2020, 98% of outstanding loan balances were
short-term loans repayable within one year and 2% of outstanding loan
balances were long-term loans repayable beyond one year.

As at 31 December 2020, the effective interest rate of the active and
outstanding loans in the loan portfolio of the Group’s money lending
business ranged from approximately 8% to 24% per annum. Most
of the loans granted by the money lending business of the Group
are unsecured loans. To justify the higher credit risk, the Group
typically charge a higher interest rate. Unsecured loans represented
approximately 81% of the Group’s total active and outstanding
loan portfolio as at 31 December 2020. All such unsecured loans
were advanced to individuals, who are well-heeled and reputable
and therefore, the Group has not requested for additional personal
guarantees in respect of such loans.

Given that the majority of the loans granted by the Group’s money
lending business are short-term loans provided to our customers who,
as mentioned above, were well-heeled and reputable individuals who/
which need short-term financing for personal/business needs, the
collateral requirement was not viable as it was inconvenient to provide
collaterals for short-term loans. Moreover, the creation and release of
collaterals for short-term loans will create unnecessary administrative
cost to the Group. In view of the higher underlying credit risk and
lack of collateral, the Group could typically charge higher interest
rates. Also, the Group usually required customers to provide signed
and post-dated bank cheques with payments in accordance with tailor
made repayment schedules.

2R BRI (5F)

MR ZFELZH=+—H  AEH
EUA M AR BRI A (R EER)
PR N o AR B 2 A
5 8 2 7 vl o B R S A o
LRSS S 7P/ NI E Rl RS 5L
KB -

FA B BE RO ER 23 2 ZE 0 — A AR Y
MR - R F DT E T = A
H > 98% 2 ARAF IR B A BR J R —4F 1
R B9 R R > T 29 2 AR MR B AR
ik o A — AR R I R K

o ECEEF A=+ —H s AER
TR 26 B AL v B A S o R
O BAEF R AT 48% £24% » A4
] M ZE S 1% 2 B RO 40 B S A
B o BT i1 SR A
— B RS R R o i R AR A
H=ZF—H o SR S50 A 42 [ 2
BRI ERE RS Z4181% © 2%
SN B I T B OB R
A > RIL > A4 8] 3 o 2ok gk 5% 4 6
FARBEREAM A JEAR o

58 A B T AR S BT 43 B B ROR R
oy SRR BRI T R e A2
B SR T 7 0 Y A S R
LIRIUN NG SRR 3 N ik LT A N
7> PR 2 e o ) 0 4R A KA o 16 A
i o MeAh o S B AR S X R R A A
fil 195 36§ A B2 ] 8 SRS o0 B A AT BRAR o
ST AR Bl £ B B B s o o sk = A
dh o WS SR T — iR RE A OO R Y A
oo BUAh > ASE - BER S MR E
) 4 22 T B ] 2 i A2k 40 3 i Y R AT 2

SEAEEC o

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxg8 13



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For certain corporate customers, the Group has requested personal/
corporate guarantees in order to enhance the recoverability of the
loans. In determining whether a personal/corporate guarantee is
required to add further security for the loan, the Group will consider,
on a case by case basis, the reason for the borrowing, the credit history
of the borrower with the Group, the borrower’s financial background
and the Group’s credit exposure for the loan. As at 31 December 2020,
loans which are backed by personal guarantees/mortgages in respect
of a property represented approximately 19% in total number of
loans, and approximately 16% in value of our Group’s total active and
outstanding loan portfolio.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has undoubtedly presented difficult
challenges to the business environment of the money lending business
segment. The overall business environment was affected by the
global worsening economy and a series of precautionary and control
measures implemented by the government of Hong Kong to prevent
the spread of COVID-19. It was expected that the prevailing adverse
financial and economic situation also posed negative impacts on the
financial position of the borrowers and the resulting uncertainties may
bring adverse impact to the money lending business segment of the
Group in the short term.

With the expectation of the headwind for many businesses in 2021, the
Group will strive to maintain the recoverability of the principal and
interest of the loans under the money lending business segment. For
a better reallocation of the Group’s resources, the Group is planning
to either maintain the current scale or even downsize the scale of
operation for the money lending business segment so as to reduce the
credit risk during these uncertain times.

During the Year, the Group used its liquidity to fund the money
lending business, loan interest income from this business segment
amounted to approximately HK$5,901,000 during the Year (31
December 2019: approximately HK$8,476,000).

For the Year, impairment loss on loans and interest receivables and
loan to joint venture from two unsecured loans was made. Such
impairment loss amounted to approximately HK$2,142,000 and
HK$2,168,000 respectively, which represented approximately 14.2%
of gross loans and interest receivables as 31 December 2020. The
impairment was made after considering the recoverability of the loan
and the related interest.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Credit Policy and Loan Approval Process

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company has
set up a credit committee (“Credit Committee”) and adopted a credit
policy for the credit approval procedures. The Credit Committee has
full authority to deal with all credit matters. The members of the Credit
Committee are appointed by the Board and the quorum of the Credit
Committee is at least two committee members.

The primary duties of the Credit Committee are, among other things,
to approve and oversee the credit policy of the Group’s money
lending business and to monitor our loan portfolio. The credit policy
of the Group’s money lending business is subject to the review and
amendments by the Credit Committee and the Board from time to time
in line with changes in market environment. Given the fast changing
environment, the Board and the Credit Committee endeavor to review
the credit policy at least once a year.

Loan applications are generally received by the Credit Committee
members, who are responsible for verifying the loan application
documents and processing the loan applications. Credit Committee
members are the main contact point with the customers, and are
responsible for collecting the customers’ information and handling
loan application documents throughout the loan application process.

After receiving of the loan applications, the Credit Committee will
perform the credit assessment procedures to assess the repayment
ability of customers. The Group has set out strict credit check
procedures to verify the credit worthiness of the customers. As each
loan is different and unique, the Group does not have any specific
quantitative conditions or criteria imposed for approving its loan. Each
loan is decided on a case-by-case basis.

The following is a summary of the general guidelines of assessing the
loan applications by the Credit Committee:

(1) Identity proof — such as identity card and passport (for
individuals) and business registration certificate, certificate of
incorporation and the constitutional documents (for corporate
entities) must be verified;

(2) Address proof — such as utility bills, bank/credit card statements
or formal correspondence issued by a government or statutory
body is required to be produced;

%ﬂlsuﬂ‘ﬁ&niﬁ(éa)

fa BBUR K s Hw AR

ARFER(HERE]D G F%$§JE&
4EE§AEFFE§E@J IR ENC
FAFE P RIS BBOR - (REZ A G
EHERTAFERE - FEZAGZ
WEMERGRL > MEELZEGZIE

EANMEDPAMELZETMA -
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁZI%ﬁia Hrb i) 3%

mm$%lmﬁ%%zﬁﬁﬂ%
mm%IZE RALE o AEFTLESE
ﬁZﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%E@&%%ﬁ
I T g o Sl 4 T LA ) I LB RT o BER
RS & ERGREEEZREH
ﬁi’l‘ﬁﬁffxnﬂ*%ﬂﬁ% K o

FEZEFME R

aH— M
E ¥ SR T SR i BB
& B 2y BLUR ) &
)J““, KHFHRAE P IER

k$ﬁiﬁ

ik
'
LS|
==
=

I
HiA
fFEZE
Ho A

ﬂ%“WﬁW

E
R K B

W B SR R > FEZ B EETRE
ARy - DLeEAG& F R KAE ST -
$%@Eﬂ*“EF%EﬁEWUﬁE
HF SRS AR o iR SR Y
ﬁ@%%ﬁZ?vﬁ%@ﬁﬂ%MEﬁ
i 5 BB AL AR 1R PRV DA LK
AR A E OLPE

DTFAEEEZES
Fao M

R G T Py i

(1) %%%% Mm%%%&%%?ME
WSGHE S » kR R
@ﬁiﬁﬁyﬁ%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ,

2) Em%%—ﬁ&ﬁmmm HE -
TEMRA & iﬂW&%
%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ#,

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxg8 1D



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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(3) Repayment ability assessment — to assess and justify the
repayment ability of the customer, criteria such as availability of
guarantor, the background of the customer, and where applicable,
the past payment record and any other relevant information are
to be considered. The Credit Committee may request further
information from the customer including but not limited to the
followings: tax demand note, tax return, bank book record,
bank statement, payroll slip, MPF statement, employer’s letter,
employment contract, rental income receipt, tenancy agreement,
financial statements, and auditor’s report etc.; and

(4) Legal search — a legal search will be conducted on the customers
(and as the case may be, the guarantors) to ascertain if the
potential borrowers have any prior legal cases in the past, which
may cast doubt on credit worthiness and repayment ability.

As with the credit assessment of borrowers, guarantors who provide
personal/corporate guarantee in favour of a loan are also required
to meet the same basic eligibility and approval criteria, and will be
required to go through the same verification and approval procedures.

The Credit Committee members will also be responsible for
determining the interest rates charged to the customers, having taken
into consideration factors such as the credit risks of the customers,
their recoverability and the prevalent market interest rates. Typically,
higher interest rates will be charged for unsecured loans to justify the
higher credit risk.

After credit assessment and review of the loan applications by the
Credit Committee, loan documents will be prepared and the loans will
be recommended to the directors of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company which operates the money lending business for final
approval.

If the applicable percentage ratios as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules in respect of the making of the loan under the loan application
would constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant
to Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the loan application will be
forwarded to the Board and a meeting of the Board will be held to
consider and approve the loan application. It is the Group’s policy not
to make any advance to a borrower if such a proposed loan transaction
will constitute a major transaction or above under the GEM Listing
Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

During the Year, revenue from external customers of China Demeter
Securities Limited (“CD Securities”) amounted to approximately
HK$5,433,000 (31 December 2019: approximately HK$1,816,000).
CD Securities is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, principally
engaged in advising on securities, dealing in securities and asset
management and is a licensed corporation in Hong Kong to carry out
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”).

The financial services business of the Group principally refers to
the acting as an intermediary between buyers and sellers of listed
securities in Hong Kong. The sources of income of CD Securities
include (i) commission from brokerage services; (ii) interest
income from margin financing customers; (iii) management fee
and performance fee from providing asset management services to
customers; and (iv) underwriting or placing commission income
from acting as an underwriter or placing agent of the listed issuers or
brokers.

Through CD Securities, which is an Exchange Participant and a direct
clearing participant of HKSCC, the Group offers securities dealing and
brokerage services to its customers for investing securities listed on the
Stock Exchange, including stocks, derivatives and debt instruments.
Brokerage commission is derived from providing a trading system for
customers to trade securities via the trading platform established by
the Stock Exchange.

The margin financing business mainly targets active trading customers
with substantial amount of assets (principally comprised of listed
securities) who intend to utilise the value of such assets without losing
the title thereto to increase its investment portfolio. Interest income is
derived when CD Securities lends the customers monies against the
pledge of their assets held in CD Securities account as collateral. In
case of their default in repayment, CD Securities is allowed to sell the
assets in the account to recover the loss.

Asset management services are targeted at investors who wish to gain
in assets but have insufficient time to manage their investments and
insufficient capital to engage the services provided by investment
banks. By leveraging on the experiences of the asset management
team, it could help to achieve the investment objective of the
customers. The Group could also generate revenue from the asset
management business by receiving monthly management fee and
performance-based incentive income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CD Securities also provides placing and underwriting services by
acting as underwriter, sub-underwriter, placing agent or sub-placing
agent in fundraising activities conducted by issuers in both initial
public offerings and secondary fundraising. CD Securities also assists
companies listed or to be listed on the Stock Exchange in securing
investors. In return, CD Securities is able to receive commission
from the listed companies and the customers with accounts in CD
Securities.

Given the quantitative easing among countries, the interest income
from margin financing services and the commission from brokerage
services will maintain a steady growth. In light of the expected
incoming initial public offerings of companies from the PRC and
increasing demand for financing from the existing company to sustain,
it is expected that underwriting or placing commission income for this
business segment will increase.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT BUSINESS

The Group’s diversified securities investment portfolios cover both
listed and non-listed companies and debt securities, in order to
diversify its investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the
Group were all shares of listed companies in Hong Kong. The fair
value change of the debt securities were recognised in debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

During the Year, the Group recorded loss from the changes in fair
value of financial assets through profit or loss of approximately
HK$3,457,000 (31 December 2019: approximately HK$5,634,000),
gain from the changes in fair value of equity instruments through other
comprehensive income of approximately HK$300,000 (31 December
2019: loss of approximately HK$2,072,000) and loss from the changes
in fair value of debt instruments through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$400,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$209,000).

The Directors consider that an investment in the equity securities and
the debt securities with a carrying value of 5% or more of the net asset
value of the Group as at balance sheet date as significant investments
(the “Significant Investments”). As at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2020, the Group did not hold any Significant Investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group will continue to review the portfolio in order to decide
whether to invest, enjoy the capital gains or stable cash inflow from
dividends and coupon payments.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTION AND
MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

Aiming to diversify the business profile of the Group, Eternal Code
Holdings Limited (“Eternal Code”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group as the purchaser, Nice Fund Limited (“Nice Fund”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong as the seller, and the ultimate
beneficial owners of Nice Fund and also the directors of Belicious (HK)
Limited (“Belicious”), as the guarantors, entered into a memorandum
of understanding on 9 February 2018, and further entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (the “Belicious SPA”) on 29 March 2018, in
relation to the sale and purchase of (i) all the issued shares of Belicious
(collectively, the “Sale Shares™); and (ii) the sale debts representing
the entire shareholder’s loan owing by Belicious to the seller at
completion, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$23 million.
According to the terms of the Belicious SPA, Nice Fund and the
guarantors guaranteed to Eternal Code that the average of the audited
net profit after tax for each of the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 shall
not be less than HK$3,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Average PAT”).
Following the signing of the supplemental agreement on 20 April
2018, completion of the acquisition took place and Belicious became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and its financial results was
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Belicious is principally engaged in distribution of alcoholic beverage
in Hong Kong. It is expected to have a positive impact on the
operations, financial results and profitability of the Group. During
the Year, revenue from the distribution of alcoholic beverage and
miscellaneous business amounted to approximately HK$14,224,000
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$12,314,000).
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For the three financial years ended 31 December 2020, the profit after
tax of Belicious and its subsidiaries was approximately HK$1,671,000,
HK$2,615,000 and HK$4,778,000 based on its audited accounts.
According to the Belicious SPA, in the event that the amount of
the average audited net profit after tax attributable to the owners
of Belicious for each of the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 (the “Actual
Average PAT”) is less than the Guaranteed Average PAT, Nice Fund
and the guarantors shall jointly pay, in cash or immediately available
funds, to Eternal Code a sum (the “Shortfall Compensation™)
calculated according to the following formula:

A=B-0C)x8
Where:

A s the Shortfall Compensation provided that such amount shall
be capped at HK$9,000,000;

B is the Guaranteed Average PAT; and

C  isthe Actual Average PAT.

As at the date hereof, the Nice Fund and the guarantors met the Actual
Average PAT. The Actual Average PAT realised by Belicious and
its subsidiaries for the three years ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$3,021,000 and exceeded the Guaranteed Average
PAT. Accordingly, no Shortfall Compensation will be payable by Nice
Fund and the guarantor.

The alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business
segment generates revenue and profit by principally selling alcoholic
beverages. Belicious works together with exclusive brewery partners
from Europe to maintain and increase their market presence in Asia.
Belicious imports and distributes alcoholic beverages such as premium
Belgian beer, handcrafted beer, wine and whisky. In addition, due
to the COVID-19 outbreak, Belicious and its subsidiaries have also
engaged in distribution of certain miscellaneous items such as masks,
anti-epidemic and cleaning products.

Due to the global travel restrictions resulting in logistic difficulties
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the Group has
reduced the import and distribution of premium beer from Belgium.
The Group hence reinforced its sales of premium wine and whisky
to well-off individuals and collectors whose purchasing powers are
relatively strong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUSINESS

During the Year, food and beverage business is one of the Group’s
principal business through operating of restaurants serving Japanese
cuisine, Thai food and western food in Hong Kong and Singapore.
During the Year, the revenue from food and beverage business
amounted to approximately HK$106,926,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$68,793,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 12 restaurants in
Hong Kong and 3 restaurants in Singapore (2019: 9 restaurants in
Hong Kong and 1 restaurant in Singapore). The Group commits to
offering customers high-quality ingredients from the origin of the
country at an affordable price under its food and beverage business.
The Group has developed different brands in its brand portfolio to
capture a broad spectrum of customers. The Group mainly focus on
the residential area and most of the Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong
are located in major shopping malls in various residential regions in
Hong Kong.

Upon the return of the food and beverage business as one of the
principal business of the Group in 2018, and in the inception of
business development of such business segment, the Group entered
into management agreements with a restaurant operator, who has
extensive experience of restaurant management in the industry, to
allow the Group’s restaurants to operate smoothly while expanding
the brand portfolio of the food and beverage business of the Group.
Since the second half of 2019, the Group has set up a management
structure designed to promote efficiency in supervising, directing and
supporting the Group’s restaurant operations that while the restaurant
operator is now only responsible for frontline day-to-day operations,
procurement and marketing matters of the restaurants, the Group
has taken up the overall direction, decision making and accounting
functions of the business segment.

Regarding the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of HK$11,849,000 recorded for the year ended 31 December 2020,
approximately HK$11,030,000 were impairment of right-of-use assets
(included in the property, plant and equipment) which are the leases of
the restaurants in the Group’s food and beverage segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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During the Year, the COVID-19 outbreak has brought huge negative
impacts on the global and local economy. Since January 2020,
COVID-19 cases have started to be reported in Hong Kong and that
the number of confirmed cases has increased since February 2020.
The Hong Kong government announced a number of measures such as
quarantine orders for people who had been to the countries with a Red
Outbound Travel Alert, promoted social distancing and encouraged
the employers for voluntary work from home arrangement. The impact
resulted from the COVID-19 and the related measure was reflected
by a significant drop in the revenue for the Hong Kong food and
beverage industry. Due to the COVID-19 situation, dine-in services
at restaurants was extended to 10 p.m. from 18 February 2021. Hong
Kong’s epidemic situation, remains volatile up to the report date.

It was expected by the food and beverage industry that the Hong
Kong Government may likely, among other things, implement
stringent measures on the catering industry to reduce social contacts
and gatherings in response to the epidemic situation currently in
place will be maintained. As a result after considering the above, the
management concluded that there was an indication for impairment
on the Group’s assets and conducted impairment assessments on
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets in relation to the food and beverage business as at 31 December
2020, and the management had performed an impairment assessment
on the Cash-generating units (“CGUs”) of food and beverage business
segment and estimate the recoverable amount of the asset for the Year.

Assessment was made by the management to consider whether there
are any indication for impairment on the individual assets of the
Group. Indications for impairment would include internal source of
information and external source of information: (a) whether the group
of CGUs is be loss-making as a whole for the financial year that the
economic performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected,
while losses caused by pre-operating expenses of new shops will be
disregarded for this purpose; (b) significant changes with an adverse
effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or will take
place in the near future, in the economic or legal environment in which
the entity operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated
or in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or
is expected to be used; (c) evidence is available of obsolescence or
physical damage of an asset; and (d) whether there are any extenuating
circumstances which would require the management to perform an
impairment assessment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In conducting impairment assessments, the management performed
impairment assessment of the carrying amounts of the Group’s
property and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
as at 31 December 2020. Since there are insufficient comparable
transactions in the market as at the year-end date, the management
performed impairment assessment of the carrying amounts of each
CGU as at 31 December 2020 by estimating their value in use.
The calculation of value in use of the relevant assets subjected to
impairment testing are by reference to the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to derive from the assets.

Based on result of the assessments, impairment loss was recognised
on the restaurants which generated net cash inflow but recoverable
amount is less than the CGU’s carrying value; for those restaurants
which would not generated a net cash inflow, all the relevant
assets allocated have been fully impaired as at 31 December 2020.
Impairment loss was recognised and allocated on a systematic basis
over the carrying value of assets.

The overall turnover for 2020 of food and beverage business segment
suffer a decrease in revenue for restaurants that were in full operation
throughout the comparable year by 18% in 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic becoming more serious and the implementation of measures
for restaurants, including the banning of dining in after 6 p.m. by
the Hong Kong Government during the Year. However, the overall
turnover from food and beverage business segment increased 55%
when compared with last year. It is mainly due to the Group has
opened 3 new restaurants in Hong Kong in the second quarter of 2020
and there are 9 (2019: 5) restaurants were in full operation throughout
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In view of the challenges to the food and beverage industry brought

about by the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has implemented, among
other things, the following to tackle with the COVID-19 outbreak in
relation to the food and beverage business of the Group:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

)

(2)

(h)

24

expanding the delivery and take-away business of the Group’s
restaurants by specifically preparing take-away menus with
dishes suitable for such purpose to provide culinary experience
comparable with dining-in to customers;

cooperating with food delivery apps to provide customers a
convenient and contactless way of ordering dishes from the
Group’s restaurants;

implementing cost control measures such as having special
work arrangements and rearranging the work schedule of the
restaurants where appropriate;

negotiating with the landlords of the restaurant premises for rent
concessions;

taking the temperature of customers when they enter the
restaurants and on restaurant staff when they report to work and
on regular intervals;

circulating memorandum to restaurant staff setting out guidance
on maintenance of good personal and workplace hygiene and
providing restaurant staff an adequate supply of surgical masks
and alcohol hand sanitisers;

maintaining good indoor ventilation and performing regular
disinfection exercises at the restaurants; and

monitoring the latest information released by the governments
on the COVID-19 outbreak closely and keeping the restaurant
staff informed about the material updates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The food and beverage businesses in Hong Kong will have to comply
with two additional requirements under the law:

(1) all the staff tested every 14 days and the Group or managers to
be responsible for ensuring their staff in the restaurants or these
premises are tested every 14 days and ensure that the staff obtain
mobile phone text message (SMS) notification containing the
result of the test and keep record of each SMS notification for 31
days.

(2) use the LeaveHomeSafe mobile app so that it is easier for people
to keep a record of the places they went to.

In addition, the Government required catering business premises to
designate staff for cleaning and disinfecting used tables and utensils
and partitions to reduce the relevant infection risk.

If this arrangement is not practicable, staff carrying out the
aforementioned duties must adopt hand hygiene measures before
switching to perform other duties and as necessary during each round
of cleaning duties.

Such measures include using alcohol-based hand sanitisers, washing
hands or changing gloves.

Due to a large number of confirmed local cases of COVID-19 and the
stringent measures on the food and beverage industry, many of which
are still in effect as at the date hereof, the Group will take a cautious
approach to maintaining the financial healthiness of the food and
beverage segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROVISION OF CHILDREN EDUCATION SERVICES

The Group’s provision of children education services business is
carried on through Nobel Education Organisation Limited, which
became a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group in October 2018. Nobel
Education Organisation Limited provides children education services
through the operation of Hong Kong Nobel Preschool, a kindergarten
registered under the Education Ordinance (Chapter 279 of the laws of
Hong Kong), offering kindergarten and pre-school education. During
the Year, revenue from the provision of children education services
amounted to approximately HK$4,287,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$5,427,000).

The Hong Kong private education market has faced significant
challenges from the COVID-19 outbreak, in which schools were
closed for more than three months in early-mid 2020. Due to some
parents prefer the students to study through face-to-face lessons, some
schools were under increasing pressure to reduce tuition fees and the
trend for student withdrawal. During such period, the Group continued
to operate via online teaching and receive the usual tuition fee from
parents. However, it is observed that calls from parents for discounted
fees or refunds have increased. As at 31 December 2020, the number
of student was reduced by 28.8% when compared with last year.

The Directors are of the view that the education services market in
particular in the kindergarten and pre-school education business will
face difficulty to maintain the number of students due to withdrawal of
individual student during the period.

The education business is facing significantly less certainty over
future enrolments as some families may face financial difficulties as
brought out by the COVID-19 outbreak. Retaining existing students is
therefore the top priority of the tasks during the pandemic. As a result,
the Group has announced to freeze the tuition fees for the 2020-2021
school year, rather than with the traditional 3%—6% annual increase.
The Group will continue to optimise the programmes and curriculum
for student needs and will invest more resources in developing
effective online learning programmes and keeping close contact
with parents to build stronger bond and trust. The Group would also
improve services by offering more extra curriculum activities to
students. It is expected that such initiatives can generate more cash
flow for the school.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

The joint venture was engaged in investing in the business of operating
restaurants, cafes and takeaway outlets in Singapore. During the
Year, the Group will not record the share of loss of a joint venture (31
December 2019: HK$1,732,000). Since late 2019, the share of losses
of a joint venture exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

The COVID-19 outbreak has brought huge negative impacts on the
global economy. In the beginning of 2020 COVID-19 cases have
started to be reported in Singapore and that the number of confirmed
cases has increased continuously since February 2020. The Singapore
government announced a number of measures such as promoted social
distancing and instruct the employers for mandatory work from home
arrangement. The impact resulted from the COVID-19 and the related
measure was reflected by the significant drop in the revenue for the
Joint Venture’s restaurants. As at 31 December 2020, all restaurants
held by the Joint Venture have ceased to operate and all restaurants
premises was returned to the landlords.

PROSPECTS

During the Year, the COVID-19 outbreak has brought huge challenges
on the global and local economy. Given that the situation of the
pandemic is still ongoing, the Group will continue to adopt a cautious
approach to maintain the financial healthiness of each segment.

When the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic has lessened and the
overall pandemic situation is under control, the Group is looking
forward to developing the food and beverage business at reasonable
pace with factors that are accessed to be favourable. In order to
further sharpen the competitiveness from the peers and expand the
presence in Hong Kong, the Group will: (1) continue to enhance
market penetration of the Group’s restaurants and establish restaurants
in different shopping malls near residential regions in Hong Kong
with different types of cuisines. Of which, the Group expects that
Japanese style hotpot restaurants will be one of the main focus in
the Group’s expansion plans; (2) strengthen the operations for the
food and beverage business to provide the necessary efficiency and
cost effective advantages; (3) set up a more advanced point-of-sale
system to obtain more comprehensive sales reports and other data in
order to predict more precisely future trends and develop personal
client communication. Such approach can also help the Group to have
better management on the operations to improve profitability; and (4)
refine the sophistication of the customer relationship management
(CRM) system of the food and beverage business, so as to help
the management to effectively manage and analyse the contacts’
information and orders to improve customer relationship for different
types of restaurants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For the financial services business segment, the Group offered
brokerage, margin financing and asset management services since
2016. Despite a challenging year, the stocks market in Hong Kong,
yet set new trading activity records in 2020, and trading volumes on
both Stock Connect reached new highs. Driven by the strong growth
momentum in biotech and new economy company fundraisings, Hong
Kong Stock Exchange ranked second globally for IPO fundraisings
in 2020, raising a total of HK$400.2 billion, the highest amount
since 2010. The Group was benefited an increase in interest income
and commission from the high demand for margin financing and the
higher average trading turnover respectively. Together with the money
lending business segment. Such business model for the financial
services business segment was able to provide steady revenue and cash
flows to the Group.

The pandemic changed the ways of interaction between consumers and
service provider, accelerating the rate of digital adoption in financial
services markets. During the Year, we adopted hosting online seminars
and posting online video to capture viewer’s attention. It improved
the efficiency of the Group’s marketing campaign and the success
rate to capture new clients for the financial services business segment.
In the view of the strong growth momentum in the fundraising and
higher average turnover in stock markets, the Group will allocate more
capitals in the segment to seize the opportunities.

The pandemic brought many challenges to the Group throughout
the Year, and it has continued to do so since the end of the reporting
year. Nevertheless, it has also offered the chance to demonstrate
and consolidate some of the Group’s core strengths, and to prepare
some aspects of future development. Therefore, leveraging on the
solid foundation supported by its existing core businesses, the Group
will formulate business strategies according to the market trends
and continue to explore new investment opportunities, in an effort
to enhance the Group’s long term profitability. In addition, the
Group will carefully review the development in all segments, and
will allocate more resources to the business with sustainable growth
potential. The Board believes that the Group’s strategic investments
and diversified businesses will help to boost performances and
consolidate the Group’s market position.

Various COVID-19 vaccines are launching recently. It is believed that
the pandemic situation will be eased eventually and that this business
model will bring the Group a stable revenue in the long run, and in
turn, higher returns to the shareholders of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 22 April 2020, the Company, as vendor, and Mr. Yang Kaijun
(“Mr. Yang”), an individual who is a substantial shareholder of Tony
China Limited (“Tony China”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary, as
purchaser, entered into the sales and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the purchaser agreed to purchase, and the Company agreed
to sell, (i) the sale shares, representing all the equity interest in Tony
China and East Shine Group Limited (“East Shine”), a wholly
owned subsidiary, (collectively known as the “Targets”), held by the
Company, and (ii) the sale loan, representing all the shareholder’s
loan owing by Tony China to the Company as at completion, at an
aggregate consideration of HK$1,152,000.

The Targets and its subsidiaries in the PRC (“Tony China Group”),
principally engages in manufacturing and distribution of feedstock
products and related activities. Tony China and East Shine together
directly or indirectly hold 100% of the equity interest in each of the
other members of the Target Group. Immediately prior to completion,
Tony China was owned as to 90% by the Company and as to 10% by
Mr. Yang whereas East Shine was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The completion of the disposal took place on 22 April 2020, and the
Group has ceased to hold any equity interest in each member of the
Tony China Group and each member of the Tony China Group has
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The financial results of
the Tony China Group was no longer be consolidated into the results
of the Group upon completion. In addition, the Group has, upon
completion, discontinued to engage in the agricultural business. For
details of the disposal, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 22 April 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have any significant
acquisition and disposal during the year.

%ﬂlsuﬂ‘ﬁ&niﬁ(éa)

HOR WO e i 8

WZEFEZFFEMA A ZH o AR E (fE
BT B EReAE (T4 ) (5K
FI R B AT BR 2 =] (T 3RA] ) (— [ 9k 2 & Bt
AT Z FERHR) E/E )R H
B hak > U > By [ B E AL A
FEEEOHEERDL > AARAE RS
Z SUF| J¢East Shine Group Limited ([ East
Shine J) (—[H4& & M8 A 7)) (SifE[ H BR
MW ]) 2 AR &(11)5}%’*,\ >
SR 58 R B R s \) 2 2 R IR &
Ao AAE SR ,152,0007C

H A A A K e Hp B A (T 3R 4
W ) R gl R B AR E S KA
B SERS o %A X East Shine &3t B 4 5 [
PR B AR AR [ H A A BB A F 19 100%
JREHE o BHESERCET » AR AN WA
90% HE 35 K M Jc A HE AT 10% M 25 > T
East Shine Zh A/ 7l 2 4 E [t & A ) o

WEHER F FFENA T H%E
SR> AR EA R SRR SR 1 R B
R ZATA SBCHE - TSR 4R AR B A
AEAFSEAAFZHE AT - HI
HROM| S ] 22 P 55 SE AR AE 52 AR S P A
$¢@Z%% BEAL > ASR H R 5E AR

AIRAE SR SESETS o A B FIHR
ﬁm’m B2 A i =% R AE U H
ZHZHMAE -

B b LB 58 Hh AR 2% R AR A SIS AT ]
DN Y Sk

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxgg 29



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

éﬂla'il‘ﬁl}nﬁﬁ(ﬁ)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$35,597,000 (2019: approximately HK$29,689,000)
and net current assets of approximately HK$70,600,000 (2019:
approximately HK$96,678,000). Current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.70 times (2019: 2.89
times).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group have other borrowing of
approximately HK$10,016,000. The other borrowing is secured
by corporate guarantee executed by the Company. It has interest at
prevailing market rates and repayable in accordance with the relevant
loan agreements.

We fund our operations principally from cash generated from our
operations, other debt instruments and equity financing from investors.
Our cash requirements relate primarily to production and operating
activities, business and asset acquisitions, repayment of liabilities
as they become due, capital expenditures and any unexpected cash
requirements. During the Year, our loss before interest, taxes and
depreciation amounted to approximately HK$972,000.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total liabilities to the total assets, as at 31 December 2020 was
55% (2019: 33%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$108,766,000 (2019:
approximately HK$136,726,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, most of the Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), Singapore dollars (“S$”), United States
dollars (“US$”) and HKS is the Group’s presentation currency. The
Group is exposed to potential foreign exchange risk as a result of
fluctuation of S$ and US$ against HK$. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign
currency assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider using hedging instruments
in respect of significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate
uncertainties or volatility, hedging instruments including swaps and
forwards will be used by the Group in the management of exposure
affecting interest rates and foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2019: HK$Nil).

CHARGES OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any charges of group assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 120 employees
in Hong Kong and Singapore (excluding directors of the Company)
(2019: 73 including the PRC). The Group’s remuneration policy
is to provide competitive level of remuneration to employees and
directors based on their performance, qualification, experience and the
prevailing industry practice.

Apart from regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share
options may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.

We aim to provide employees with resources and an environment that
encourages them to develop careers with us. We provide management
personnel and employees with on-the-job education, training and other
opportunities to improve their skills and knowledge.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 30
September 2013, the Board may grant options to eligible persons,
including employees and directors, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. During the Year, the Company granted 15,300,000 share
options to directors, employees and other eligible persons on 12
October 2020.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Singapore. The Group has established environment policies
and procedures aimed at compliance with local environmental and
other laws. For the feedstock production, we have complied with the
“Regulations on Administration of Feed and Feed Additives”, and the
“Measures for the Management of Production Licenses for Feeds and
Feed Additives”. For the food and beverage production process, part
of the food waste and all of the waste oil were recycled and collected
by the environmental parties. During the year, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and Greenhouse Gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. The management performs regular reviews
to identify environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in place
are adequate to manage these risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The fair value of listed equity securities are determined based on the
quoted market closing price available on the Main Board and GEM of
the Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the realised losses and unrealised losses on financial assets at FVTPL
from changes in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL held as at
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$361,000 and
HK$166,000 respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“China
Demeter”) (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, “Group”),
describing the efforts made and being made for creating a sustainable
business for the benefit of all its stakeholders during the fiscal year
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledges its responsibility
for integrity of this report and to the best of its knowledge, this
report addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents ESG
performance of the Group.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES AND BOUNDARY

This report has been prepared in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix 20
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, applying the reporting principles
of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The report aims
to be clear, balanced and easy-to-read; data are analysed to account
for year-on-year changes and are presented in a way that allows for
consistent comparison.

This report covers the money lending business, financial services
business, securities investments business, food and beverage business,
alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business and
provision of children education services in Hong Kong and Singapore.

FEEDBACK
We welcome your feedback regarding how we can improve our

performance and reporting in the future. Please send us your feedback
at info@chinademeter.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group’s core business is food and beverage business in Hong
Kong. Our other businesses include financial services, money
lending, securities investments, alcoholic beverage distribution and
miscellaneous businesses and provision of children education services
are predominantly office-based in Hong Kong.

Sound management of ESG issues is critical to the prosperity of the
Group. The Board assumes the ultimate responsibility for driving the
Group’s sustainability initiatives in accordance with relevant ESG
policies. Being fully accountable to its stakeholders for proper ESG
management, we strive to ensure that our business strategies bring
about long-term benefits by embedding sustainable practices in daily
operations. To pursue sustainable growth, the Group takes into account
ESG-related risks and opportunities into considering when making
decisions and ensure that ESG performance is disclosed with a high
degree of transparency and reliability.

Since food and beverage is the major part of our business, health
and safety in restaurants operations is of greatest concern and is our
top priority in the context of managing ESG impacts. From putting
into practice safety operating procedures to doing extra cleaning
amid COVID-19, substantial efforts are made to ensure that our
staff and customers are well-protected from potential hazards and
safety risks associated with restaurants operations. In particular, we
support the government’s effort at combating the pandemic through
requiring customers to scan the LeaveHomeSafe QR code with mobile
application when entering restaurants, safeguarding health and safety
of both restaurant employees and customers.

At China Demeter, we are dedicated to taking up environmental
stewardship and act in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
We are devoted to mitigating the impacts our business imposes to the
environment and assess our environmental performance regularly. As
part of our operations is office based, managing the use of resources
in an eco-friendly and efficient manner becomes a major focus when
addressing concerns on environmental protection.

For our financial operations, we pay extra attention to aspects of anti-
corruption and information security. Our employees and stakeholders
are encouraged to embrace these values and deliver quality services to
customers in a professional, lawful and responsible manner.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

It is vitally important to engage with stakeholders, understand their
concerns and satisfy them with value-added solutions when identifying
ESG risks and opportunities. We engage with internal and external
stakeholders including customers, employees, the community, the
government and investors through communication channels listed
below.

Stakeholders Concerned Issues

& B e el

Investors  Corporate governance
¢ Business operations
* Information disclosure
BEH o NG
o EHEE
o ERPEE
Employees * Training and development
* Remuneration
e Occupational health and safety
g8 o BEAI SR
o FHri
o BRSEARAR S 22 4
The Government  Legitimacy of service and business ethics
* Employee protection
e Tax compliance
UM o MRBsGIEE K v SR E S
o PREE(E B
o BUB AR
Customers e Data privacy
» Customer satisfaction
wHE - BRI
o BFEIMEE
Community  Contribution to the community
e Environmental protection
At o AL
o RIGEIRE
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Engagement Channels

WERE

Annual reports, quarterly reports and
interim reports
Press releases

AR~ FRBEHRE Bh
e

Weekly staff meetings
Complaints system

T B Tk
Bl B

Compliance with applicable laws
and regulations
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Company website

Feedback from frontline employees
AR A
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Support charity organisations
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

OUR PEOPLE

Employment

Employees Composition

As of 31 December 2020, we had 84 full-time and 42 part-time
employees based in Hong Kong and Singapore. Among the full-time
staff, male to female ratio was 43:41, which was similar to that of last

year.

Employee Profile by Gender

et 2 B T4
49%
51%
B Male B Female
B Eeglca

Employee Profile by Education
HHEKPZ HTLaH

589% 42 %

B Below Bachelor’s Degree M Bachelor’s Degree or Above

E =t S04V E =t A g

Approximately 58% were aged between 31 and 50. In terms of
education profile, over half of our employees have obtained a
bachelor’s degree or above. There were 23% managerial staff, while
the rest were general employees. The total turnover rate of employees
was around 40% while the new hire rate was 50%. Distribution of
turnover rate and new hire rate by gender and by age is shown in the

charts below.
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Employee Profile by Age
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Employee Profile by Position
1% HE 2 B Lo B

23%

77 %

B Management B General Staff
GEEil — e H T

#158% 1B B AR B T3 1B B 505K © TEH
BHE R FAME 20 8 B A
Bl AR o 23%101E B A& L E
BN 2y B T o FRAMAE B KR A
£540% - T AR £550% o T3R5 1%
PRI K AT i F1 4 2 9 2 2R B AR 4y
flifE L o

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxg8 37



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Employees’ Rights and Welfare

Turnover & New Hire Rates by Gender
[P eV S N E

59%

4% 450,

Male A 14 Female % 14

Bl Turnover Rate M@ New Hire Rate
i N S

Employees are the greatest strength of the Company and are the
principal reason of success. At China Demeter, we are passionate
about providing an attractive environment where colleagues can
thrive and develop their careers. Our Employee Handbook clearly and
comprehensively stipulates policies regarding recruitment, promotion,
compensation, working hours, rest periods, dismissal, benefits, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and welfare measures in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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To attract and retain the best candidates, we provide competitive
remuneration and benefit packages in addition to statutory welfare,
including a range of paid leave, allowances, insurance and discounts
to suit different needs of employees. Taking a supportive and caring
approach amid COVID-19, this year we offered a special lunch
allowance to all office staff. Those who preferred to order food
delivery through the Company were given HK$40 and those who
brought their own lunch got HK$20 each. Moreover, employees were
provided with fruits to enhance their immunity against diseases.

Benefit type Benefit
A 2 Al
Regular benefit packages
PR F 25
Allowances Overtime meal allowance
] IR £ EEAG
Allowances Ordinary meal allowance
R WA B
Insurance Medical insurance
(3 IR
Insurance Occupational Injury insurance, Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(s TAG R ~ 5 i 1 B R ARAR A
Paid leaves Annual leaves, maternity leaves, marriage
leaves, paternity leaves
AFRAR AR~ AR - ISR - FRER
Staff discounts Shopping discounts at the Group’s retail stores

and restaurants

B THrn JAARSE I 45 T KA ERY S

The Group is determined to build a workplace where staffs are treated
with dignity and respect. As an equal opportunity employer, the Group
has zero tolerance for any form of harassment and discrimination
against one’s age, gender, marital status, race, religion and disability.
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Criteria of entitlement
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For all office staffs, if they work beyond the
designated time

JIT A AR A AR E Re R R A A %5 B T

For staffs involved in frontline food and
beverage operations

B R ACREERS RIS B T

For staffs who have completed probationary
period

SERGEUR I B T

For all staffs in accordance with legal
requirements

RIFIERER - TEAT

For all staffs in accordance with legal
requirements

RIFIERER - TAAT

For staffs who have completed probationary
period

SE UM IR BT
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To bring staffs closer to the Company, we regularly organise various
kinds of cultural activities. We hope that they feel the warmth and care
from the Company and their satisfaction about their work and the daily
work goes up. During Chinese New Year of 2020, our staffs enjoyed a
wonderful gathering that helped sustain their social bonding.

Labour Standards

We have zero tolerance against employment of child or forced labour.
Our employee identity verification system helps eliminate such risk.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations' that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to employment and labour practices. Nor did we
identify any incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

Community Investment

We recognise our social responsibilities toward the community where
we operate. As stated in the Group’s policy, the Group is committed
to promote and participate in community involvement and other social
contribution activities. As such, we proactively engage in various
sponsorship and fundraising initiatives so as to contribute to those in
need. This year, the total donation to charitable organisations such as
Yan Oi Tong Limited, amounted to HK$68,300. Looking ahead, we
will continue to review and fine tune our efforts at creating positive
values for the society.

Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for employment and

labour standards-related laws and regulations.
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Health and Safety

RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

B R B & &

Since food and beverage business is central to our business, sustaining HY 7 £ B fIORE SE B R AN Y A L 3
a safe and healthy work environment for employees working in % > [FUb A% BE 8 TR FFL 2 AR R
restaurants is the Group’s foremost task. TAEBRS A B Y AT RS

We have formulated comprehensive guidelines outlining a range MO il E 2 W AWFES] > FIHETAR A T
of safety measures for frontline staff to follow. This ensures safe  MERAE N — R I L 250 - HELE R A
operation of various equipment and apparatus in kitchens and prevents 45Tl a% £l 4% B 19 & 245 4E > 3 By 1E 78
potential dangers and hazards. The following table summarises some TER fa b R fa & o N R A 2 2tk

of the safety procedures.

Use of equipment

e i 5

Meat slicing machine

DI

Knife

J% o

Safety measures

L

Ensure electric power is cut off when cleaning the machine

Remove any obstacles near the machine before operation

Adjust thickness of slicing carefully and ensure the cutting stand is fixed in position
before cutting

Keep any objects, human body parts or clothes away from the cutting area

Only authorised personnel who have received official training are allowed to operate
machines

TR 7 TR i I L) 7 2

A T B AR BT (Y R e 1)

FFARFARET] R BT > AR R DD SR 18] 72 A8 1 BAR T A T U
PRAFEE ~ BT E A R 2 U1 1) i

FA RO IE RIS I B REN B 7 nl R AF b

Always wear a kitchen gown and cut resistant gloves when using a knife

Pay undivided attention when using a knife, stay focused and never play with it
Use knives for cutting food only, not other purposes including opening canned bottles
or cutting ropes

Cut on firm and stable chopping board and tables to prevent dangers

(R 70 EL IR 0 25 25 J6F B A e e By 1

TR A E N - RFEE > Y BFTI R

VR AR A OTEI &Y > A AR H AR & (B TT PRSI s ORI R
TEA [ A Dh A b s B0 > LARS 38 A b
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Safety Training

The Group has set comprehensive guidelines for frontline
employees to follow when handling all kinds of potential emergency
circumstances in a proper and safe manner. The protocol covers both
natural disasters and crimes, including fire, earthquake, robbery and
power shortage.

For instance, in the event of fire, employees should stay calm and
notify the rescue department at once. They should also cut off all
power, remove any flammable or explosive objects, initiate evacuation
and try to put off the flame with fire extinguishers under safe and
feasible conditions.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations? that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to occupational health and safety. In 2020, there
were no work-related accidents recorded. Please refer to the section
headed “Performance Data Summary” for number and rate of work-
related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the
reporting year and lost days due to work injury.

Training and Development

China Demeter is committed to providing its employees adequate
training so that they are competent to fulfil operational requirements.
Training is provided for restaurant workers to serve food and beverage
business. Senior colleagues are responsible for demonstrating the
correct working procedures and job duties to junior colleagues. Please
refer to the section headed “Performance Data Summary” for the
percentage of employees trained by category and the average training
hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

Percentage of trained general staffs 2%
Total training hours of general staffs 14

’ Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Health and Safety-

related laws and regulations.
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We require senior staffs to act as role models and transfer knowledge
and skills in a professional manner, in accordance with the following

comprehensive steps.

Demonstration
@

Practice

oy

Assessment

ik

&b
He °

Seniors must be well-prepared for training, and ensure the teaching
equipment and materials are ready

Calm participants, help them relax and be confident

50 N B R K ) A - e PRYE A e B R AN AR
BZ AN B TE R AR O

Demonstrate every step concisely and avoid being too detailed
Carry out the procedures with high precision

7 B0 B s A (R A2 B - S R

5 RS e A TRE Y

Encourage participants to raise their confidence

Try to make use of questioning skills to make participants reach the answer
SZ AN B R R E O

A R R - RN BBINER

/

Trainers should ask open ended questions to better ascertain the knowledge
participants have acquired

Try to show appreciation to participants and avoid giving negative feedbacks
Bl B RESE Hh BRRCVE P RE > DLSE A RO S 2 AN B T HE AR 14 R ik
i B2 HFH RO H > M T R R

N

J

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BRBERE

Environmental Management

China Demeter strives to incorporate proper environmental
management in its business operations. The Group spares no effort to
manage all environmental risks and adverse impacts arising from its
core food and beverage business. The Group will strive to achieve air

LA ERF R B TLASER] > # DL
A B DABSE A0 7 SR N AR 3%

I8 Ji2 0 7 6 A A 0 BRI R LA
BB h o AR EAVE SR ) A B
0 B i S OB SE 5 BT I A 1 BR 05 B
Be AR50 8 o A SEWNG 55 198D P g

and GHG emission reduction, minimise waste generation and conserve A& = /M » WD E L EY - fi6HE
energy, water and material consumption. U~ K AT RHEAE o
REARBHIRLAD)

“E_ENHH
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The Group’s other businesses have relatively less of environmental
impact due to their office-based nature. In this regard, we concentrate
our efforts on sustaining a green office culture by educating our staffs
to conserve energy and resources as well as organising regular energy
efficiency training. Furthermore, our reward and penalty system serves
to encourage employees to adhere to these sustainable practices.

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws and
regulations® that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during 2020.

Resources Consumption
Energy Consumption

Electricity, Towngas and Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG”) are
the major sources of energy we use. In 2020, the Group’s energy
consumption was 1,617,293.61 kWh of electricity, 1,622,886.00
MJ of Towngas and 4,331.50 MJ of LPG, all consumed mainly by
restaurants in Hong Kong and Singapore. The increase in Towngas
consumption (2019: 1,101,120 MJ) and electricity consumption (2019:
1,394,377.67 kWh) was mainly due to inclusion of full-year data in
2020 for some restaurants that started business in mid 2019, and some
new restaurants open in 2020 in Hong Kong of the food and beverage
business of the Group and Singapore.

0.06%

21.79 %
Energy
Consumption (GJ)
B U FE R
(HBEE)

78.16%

Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Emissions-related
laws and regulations.
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The total energy consumption amounted to 7,449.48 GJ, of which ~ BEVRAEFERE /37,449.48F 2 H. » Hp M
over 95% was attributed to food and beverage business. The total  95% A & i S OB EH5 - IEAER H 4
consumption intensity was approximately 0.05 GJ per thousand Hong LT R TIAR0.055 L H:

Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Consumption and Intensity

B VR T R B R R
12,000 0.06 gﬁ
0.05 0.05 o=
o 10,000 0.05 § IR B Consumption (Existing Business)
S st R (BT
—a 8,000 0.04 é o
£ o Consumption (New Business)
Ea 6,000 003 8; TR G )
E <
212 4000 002 G = Intensity
7 2000 o012 e
0 0 ; e
S
2019 2020 S
Water Ji Ak
The total water consumption of the Group in 2020 was 20,123.23 tons, ~ AL H R —F R F Y F KB & %

of which 7,141.23 tons were consumed by new restaurants in food and 20,123.23 U‘FF Hodr7,141.23M ﬁAﬁA? i
beverage business. The intensity was 0.147 tons/thousand Hong Kong M ik K} 2E 75 E’J BIRRE > WELE T
Dollars revenue. During the year, the Company did not have any issue B TCUR AR 0. 147 M o 4R > AR 24 W) A SR L

in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose. S8R 7K 7 T NI AT AR ] o
Water Consumption and Intensity
FI K R %
B
20,000 0.20 5~
_ G
g 16,000 0.16 g Bl Existing Business
g ~ 0.156 0.147 IR BUA ¥
== e —— H_
== 12,000 012 g 4
= ’ 5,612.17 ,141. : = g New Business
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S
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2019 2020 =
Packaging Materials CLEH

A total of HK$342,447.93 worth of packaging material were used & 1/ 19 2£ B & & 3 | (& (H 6 %
in our operation, with Hong Kong restaurants consuming plastic 342,447.93 T W AL A RE > Hod > il
materials at HK$289,569.60 and Singapore restaurants consuming & BE J4 & 19 %8 B #1 K} 5 ¥ 15 289,569.60

paper boxes at approximately HK$52,878.33". T > BTN R R FE I AR A B T R
52,878.337L! °
! The use of packaging materials is recorded in dollars due to limitation during data ! A A BRI S AR A AEBR ] - R R {8
collection. We will optimise our ESG data collection process. % %g%&?ﬂi o FAMMFBEALIRET - AL G BRI
l’ly ?)IL 5':_ ©
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Emissions

The Group’s operations indirectly generate greenhouse gases (“GHG”)
from purchased electricity and the use of gas bought from Towngas
for restaurants in Hong Kong and Singapore.

In 2020, total GHG emissions amounted to 830.27 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”), of which, direct emissions (Scope I)
and indirect emissions (Scope II) were 12.73 tCO,e and 817.54 tCO,e
respectively. The reduction of Scope I emissions was because there
was no use of vehicles due to business disposal in Mainland China.
Emission intensity was computed as 0.006 tCO.,e per thousand Hong
Kong Dollars revenue. Since the Scope II emissions from purchased
electricity consumption accounts for 98% of the total GHG emissions,
the Group has implemented several energy-saving measures to reduce
its energy consumption and thus GHG emissions. For more details,
please refer to the section headed “Environment and Natural Resources
Conservation”. We will continue to adopt the energy-saving initiatives
S0 as to minimise our energy consumptions and GHG emissions.

Scope 1 (Unit: tCO,e)

i — (A7 M AR &) W SRS
HA

Scope 2 (Unit: tCO,e)

Existing businesses

A (A M AR &) W SRS
HA

New business

New business

P
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2020 2019

=

12.73 24.13

Existing businesses = 86.57
193.51 178.84

624.03 664.73

0.006 0.01

Intensity (per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue)

W (i T oolis)

Towngas and LPG consumption emitted approximately 0.03 kg
sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and 5.40 kg nitrogen oxides (“NOx”).
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The decrease of GHG and air pollutants emissions was due to business it 25 SR 5 22 58075 G2 9 PF & 1 3k 2D
disposal in the PRC, resulting in no emission from vehicle use. S DR v I S O > R i o
F A B BERR

Air Emission (kg)
AP E (T3)

I SOx
ik=R1a7)]

B NOx
AAW

PM
RERL )

2019 2020

Waste JEFEY)

The Group’s operations do not generate any hazardous waste. During A AL ) 2 W M R AT AT E
the year, the Group generated a total of approximately 15.38 tons of o SN > AR AL AR #1538 M A E
non-hazardous waste, including 3.15 tons of general waste, 5.04 tons BEFEY) > ELFE3.15ME— AR FEY) ~ 5.04MF
of food waste and 7.19 tons waste oil. Of this, approximately 18%  [&f ik & 7.19ME g7l o H A > £918% (1.27
(1.27 tons) of waste oil and approximately 44% (2.2 tons) of food M) BEil M #)44% (2.2M) & % £ h 5 H¢
waste were collected by the registered waste cooking oil collectors i £ i [ s T B ) R ) TR i S )
and food waste recycling companies. The total non-hazardous waste [ o S B 5T 2 KR 4 £50.00011
intensity was approximately 0.00011 tons per thousand Hong Kong M /W& ¥ T ool g o 4 B HE a4 Fe g I
Dollars revenue. Please refer to the section headed “Performance Data £ H BECEIE » 55 2 B[ 3% B BOE 4 2
Summary” for the types of emissions and respective emissions data. — i o

Non-hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes)
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Recycling rate
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Environment and Natural Resources Conservation

The Group’s business involves the use of a wide range of resources.
The food and beverage business consumes a notable amount of
energy, water and packaging materials within its daily operations. To
demonstrate our environmental stewardship, the Group continues to
implement green office practices and carry out a range of energy and
resources saving measures at its restaurants. Through encouragement
and education, we strive to drive behavioural changes for conserving
water and electricity within the workplace.

BB R H AR & IR IR

AEEB T W R EERNEN - &
an SCBIORESE RS I H R P IE AR K B R
T~ IR AL R o S B BB ,
ALE BT BB O AE > AR
TE T 4 B BRI — 2R 51 RE IR K R A0
i o A ) KB > WA B B AT
U > AE ARG TR A K S o

e Install air purifiers and maintain
room temperature at 25.5°C

W SRAR R I FE
NEHEN IR > BB
i — AR A A B R e
YHEZE IR

A AR R 25,5

Conservation Initiatives

OPERATING PRACTICES
Product Responsibility

The Group understands and appreciates the great deal of trust
our customers place in its brand. Therefore, we places customer
satisfaction at the top of our list of priorities and strives for perfection
in every aspect of operations. We are committed to delivering quality
products and services to deliver the best experience to customers
who visit our restaurants. During the year, we received 52 complaints
in total, with 16 and 36 complaints related to product and services
delivered by restaurants respectively.
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e Recycle ink cartridges and
consumed papers
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Food and Beverage Operation

As a food and beverage focused business, maintaining the highest
dining services standards is crucial. A set of comprehensive
operating procedures and a clear labour division is strictly followed
in our restaurants. Taking a top-down approach to management
of restaurants, a manager is responsible for overseeing the overall
operations of restaurant branches and discharging duties including
but not limited to conducting regular or non-regular inspections of
branches, examining financial statements as well as awarding and
penalising employees based on performance.

From frontline service providers to store managers, we require every
employee to bear accountability for ensuring a smooth and responsible
operation with collaborative efforts. In view of the unprecedented
COVID-19, we are particularly cautious about maintaining
environmental hygiene and food safety so as to bring customers a
clean, pleasant and comfortable dining experience.

Opening of restaurant

B BE P h e 5

e Check the quality and use-by .
dates of food

R E A

Report any defects in raw

e Prepare all ingredients and management

packaging materials » Separate raw and cooked food
e Conduct thorough cleaning to properly

ensure hygiene * Maintain high alertness and a
o MBI 2 R safety record of the restaurant
o YEETA B KB R o TR B SRR AR
o BURHER - A EEEFSIEPY A

o BETBAEREY
o PREFREER K

RAFE R RO ik

Guidelines for restaurant operation

BEERERT

Restaurant operation

ingredients and the reasons to
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Restaurant closure

BRI

e Perform stock take and examine
the expiry dates and stock of
raw ingredients to safeguard
service quality

* Save unused materials properly
to avoid contamination

* Disinfect every part of the
restuarant

e Check that all equipment
function properly for the next
day of business
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Stock Management

Delivery of fine dishes depends upon the quality of raw materials and
food ingredients. It is, therefore, vitally important to handle stock
properly. Our stock management policy outlines the procedures of
accepting and examining stock in order to safeguard the quality of raw
materials. Our frontline staffs are required to accept only products that
meet company standards and to reject those that do not. They should
also specify the reason of rejection on the purchase order and notify
their supervisors immediately.

Thorough inspection and examination are necessary to avoid affecting
normal operations. Staffs should check the correct quantity and type of
products against the purchasing records. They should also understand
the packaging requirements and storage period of each item. On the
other hand, regular stock taking is conducted to ensure sufficient
materials supply.

Pleasant Customer Experience

Enhancing customer experience is an integral component of our
commitment to achieving the goal of “101% customer satisfaction”.
We are dedicated to satisfying their needs whenever possible
throughout the entire dining experience. We educate our staffs that
customer service does not simply mean putting a smile on their face,
but to strive for the best in every aspect of the meal from keeping
a nice environment to serving meals timely and accurately so that
customers feel their needs are well taken care of. To genuinely
understand our performance, self-assessments including non-regular
checks are conducted at restaurants and operations department.
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We do our best to meet the needs of our customers. Yet, we do
take their concerns and views seriously in case grievances arise. A
customer centric approach is adopted to settle and resolve complaints,
as depicted below.

HMBHWEEFBOTHER o #—FF K
BIAG » BA IS & e B B N
Fo A BR T LA T A 0 7 B 8 bk £
o AT B P o

Listen Apologise Rectification Gratefulness
it E K S IE BT

e Try to understand * Do not judge right e Take corrective e Appreciate
customers from or wrong actions immediately customers’ opnions
their perspective /L CEE i o SLRPERIUSUE RS o BHEFER

e Do not interrupt

when customers are
expressing their
concerns

o ERlitEFnMEE
TEF

s HEFFREACD
) B T PR >
NTE%

After receiving comments from customers, we request frontline staffs
of restaurants to provide more details of the case. This helps us to find
out if there are any misunderstanding between customers and staff.
For special cases raised, we carry out an investigation and produce a
Customer Service Report to clarify the situation of the issue. We will
then carry out rectification based on the result of the investigation.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

Information and Data Privacy

The Group is dedicated to ensure that information and data privacy
of the Group and its stakeholders are protected. To this end, we have
set out policies to regulate employees’ behaviours in this aspect. It is
prohibited to disclose without permission the Group’s confidential
information including trade secrets, market strategy as well as
customer and employees personal details.

N Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Product

Responsibility-related laws and regulations.

N

W E 2 B AR - RN R B
B4R B LI Bt 240 E - LR B3R T
% P A T2 R S AFAE s i o B0
FEORAA 58 > AN G T I & AR R AP
Al Bs i DA R SRR o BEAR o TR A
AR A R AEAT R IE -

SRR AS B S AS AT AT S A B B
& {3t 2 i S MR B o i R e kA R
o PR S AL RS = LA Rl RO ik 19k
FRIE AL I A S I e R BB 1R L

Pl S R AR

AR B B A e DR A B B S HL R 0 Y
GRS AR FARE 2 B AR o Syt - FRAM
il E T BURAR A B RS J5 AT 2 o
RECHF AT - A5 ER A 4 B B2
B AR TGRS LR
F{R B BB R RL -

‘ B 7S FE i TTAR AR B R BB > W2 B ik
R R |1 o
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Rz - HREEES (1F)

Upon termination of employment, employees must return all materials
and equipment containing confidential information of the Group, and
they must not continue to deploy those confidential materials including
technical and commercial secrets after they leave their positions.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has a total of 66 suppliers and 30 of them are located in
Hong Kong while the remaining 36 are located overseas. We assess
and select suppliers or contractors based on their ability to demonstrate
sustainable practices including product quality and adherence to
environmental and safety standards. Our first priority are suppliers
certified for ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 qualification.

Check

Procurement

TR

A
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

The Supplier Investigating Team is responsible for supplier
investigation and assessment. All suppliers first go through an initial
screening based on their background information. They are then
further selected if they satisfy a range of criteria including the quality
of materials and products as well as equipment reliability. If necessary,
we request some samples to ensure the quality of purchases. In
addition, an annual assessment is conducted to examine the suppliers’
performance. Those who fail to meet our stringent requirements are
disqualified and removed from the list of suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and honesty are critical components
of any commitment. We therefore require all our staffs to uphold high
ethical standards and deal appropriately with all parties whom we do
business with. Our Employee Handbook spells out a detailed code of
conduct that prohibits all forms of corrupt behaviour. During the year,
we provided colleagues with anti-corruption training regarding the
topic anti-money laundering.

A T /N AL B B AT (4L R T
AL o B SR AREE BT A LR T R R
FrH0 20 g o (LR R A & — R 51 HE
I B3 AORERI S S B B DL R R Y
APSEVE > HIGE— AP o I - KR
& ZORPE LR M — bk > LATREOR IR
AR o BUAh > FRAM 45 AR SR P Y
RBVEATFEAG o AT FA B ZOR Y
A OB R 5 BB T A S A R B e 4 o
MBS

X5

AL EE Sy > BRSSO A AT K R Y
R o L > RMZORTA B TE
AR AR > S % i T B AN AT 3E
TEA B2 T7 BAR o BATHY IR B T i w40
FI AT R > A 1k — I S B AT
Ty oo AR BRAM R SR T A B
REER B S HE R o

competitive to the Group

4 Solicit or accept advantages % MR B $% 3l i A

e Accept an award or gift with economic value without prior permission from the Group
* Fail to declare the status where family members hold a stock or engage in business relationship that is

o REEAEMFIEFTA] > 32 BA KETHEE N SE ) 508 Y)
\_ * A HHREHE AR AT MRS S T BRA SR AT 35 BRI S Y 1 D -/

strategy as well as customer and employees personal details

\_

Violate non-disclosure agreement & J% {f % 0} i

* Disclose without permission the Group’s confidential information including trade secrets, market

o RECHFAT AR B RO B o EAR TSR - TN LA S R T Bk

~

iR R B R A A B A T

Improper handling of insider information A~ & Ji& B [y % 5 &,

» Sell or buy listed securities of the Group or persuade others to do so if the employee possesses insider
information or sensitive information of the Group that is not yet disclosed to public

o B TAESE{RACGE B M RSB MIER 19 R EORH SRR BRI RS DU - S B R AR SR B Y

J
~

J

Prohibited Corruptive Behaviours

28 1k WY AT 2

BREMBEHRLE
“E_ENHH
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Whistleblowing

There is no whistle-blowing program established by the Company for
employees reporting irregularities anonymously. However, employees
can report any suspicious or known misconducts to the human
resources department or their supervisors voluntarily by emails,
written channels and in person. The Group handles the reported cases
in a fair and prompt manner.

Investigation

Those who are found to have breached the code of conduct are subject
to disciplinary actions including oral warning, written warning and
termination of employment, depending on the severity of the case.
Cases involving criminal offence are referred to law enforcement
authorities including Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) for cases violating Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of laws and regulations® that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There was
no concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Group or its employees during the year.

B Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Anti-Corruption-

related laws and regulations.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS R

Considering all ESG aspects, the Group and its subsidiaries have
established and implemented relevant internal policies and has

SRBTEREY - AL g KRS T - A
e G R T > ) B it A AR A S R ST

designated specific departments to ensure that business operations 7. B 5 # "] DUBE (R SE 75 588 A AF — V) i

adhere to all applicable laws and regulations. The list of applicable

laws and regulations is as follows: SR

PR B BAR K - 28 1 B35 A A LT B

Aspect
]

Emissions

Pec

Laws and Regulations

TR

e Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong

o EUECEY IR E )

* Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong

o FHECEFRISIE SR

e Environmental Public Health Act in Singapore

o ISR ILBR R A4

e Environmental Protection and Management Act in
Singapore

o ISR EE R S EIIL )

Section

]

Environmental Protection
BRIGIRE

Employment

1 i

e  Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong

o FHECRME D

*  Employees’ Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
o EHEE B HE )

e Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

o AR RG]

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

o TR B

*  Employment Act in Singapore

o BTmIERE )

Our People
N E

Health and Safety
ik e Bl 22 4

e Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and subsidiary
regulations in Hong Kong

o TEUECME L 2 KA RG] N Wt v 151

e Workplace Safety and Health Act in Singapore

o BTMICTARSS B % 4 B AR 152

Our People
M8

Labour Standards
% TSr I

* Employment of Children Regulations in Hong Kong
o I RERD
*  Employment Act in Singapore

o HISECIR L 2D

Our People
M AR

Product Responsibility
7 fh FLAE

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong
o FHECRAER (FLRR) )

e Personal Data Protection Act (PDPA) in Singapore
o BB B R L L)

Operating Practices
BIEEH

Anti-corruption

e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

Operating Practices

&5 o TP Ik A G ) B
e Prevention of Corruption Act in Singapore
o Wk EI5EEA)
BREAREHRL D

—E-®5F® DD
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Rz - HREEES (1F)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY BT
2020 2019

Social Performance iR b g CRORE —EF—JUE
Total Headcount PN 126 79
By Employment Type P AR AT ) oy

Full-time g 84 75

Part-time el 42 4
By Geographical Distribution iz [ 553 A (22 08%)

(full time)

Hong Kong T 63 53

PRC H - 22

Singapore B 21 -
By Age FEAE

<31 3URLL T 19 10

31-50 3K ES0K 49 55

>50 50 L 16 10
By Gender FMER

Male Hrk 43 39

Female ik 41 36
By Education Level A B KF

Bachelor’s degree or above BA-s DL -2 JRE 49 38

Below bachelor’s degree B DU AR 35 37
By Employee Category TR AR RS T ) 7y

Management B 19 14

General staff —Kk BT 65 61
Employees’ Turnover Rate g B k% 40% 40%
By Age TR

<31 3L T 58% 110%

31-50 3R 505K 41% 29%

>50 505 LA L 19% 30%
By Gender FAE R

Male FE 44% 38%

Female EQca 37% 42%
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

Social Performance

Employees’ New Hire Rate
By Age
<31
31-50
>50
By Gender
Male
Female
Performance of Health and Safety
Work-related accidents
Work-related injuries

Lost days due to work-related
incidents

Work-related fatalities (2018: 0)
Percentage of Trained Employees (%)
By Gender

Male

Female
By Employee Category

Management

General Staff
Average Training Hours (Hours)
By Gender

Male

Female
By Employee Category

Management

General Staff
Number of Suppliers

Hong Kong

PRC

Other Regions
Community Investment

Donation (HK$)

Rl

fE B ARk
LR
3T
31 E 505K
50i% A |
MR

B

g

fe e Bl 2 R B
TAG
15
(SRR e = UIEE

R TAE T AN (= — /4 : 0)

ZillE & B 7 (%)
Fe MR
9
7
oA AR B )
g
—ME T
T2 15 IR (/MR )
Fe R
B
Eegic
T AR R A 1) oy
EHE
— & T
HEREm B E
GiRTES
]
HoAh
FhIm s
T ()

2020 2019
“BURE CF R
50% 19%
89% 20%
35% 18%
50% 20%
42% 15%
59% 22%
95

0 0
0% 31%
2% 33%
0% 36%
2% 31%
0.0 6.8
0.3 7.0
0.0 6.4
0.2 7.0
66 52
30 27

0 22

36 3
68,300 135,000
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—s—sxgg D/
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Bi5 - HBREERS (F)

Environmental
Performance

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)

Energy intensity (GJ/’000
HKS revenue)

Electricity (kWh)
Gasoline (litres)
Towngas (MJ)
LPG (MJ)
Tap water (tonnes)
Water intensity (tonnes/’000 HK$
revenue)
Emissions
Air Pollutant

Sulphur Oxides (SOx) (kg)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) (kg)
Particulate Matters (PM) (kg)

Greenhouse Gases Emissions

GHG Emissions (tCO,e)

GHG intensity (tCO,e/”000 HK$
revenue)

Scope I (tCOqe)

Scope II (tCO,e)

Waste

Hazardous waste (tonnes)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)
Non-hazardous waste intensity
(tonnes/”000 HKS revenue)
Packaging Materials

Plastic materials (HK$)
Paper box (HKS)
Plastic bags (tonnes)
Paper (boxes)

RERB
(HEH)
REREE (HEE/
AT TR
CARRNE)
()
HR CEER)
WAL AR G EE)
HAHK (W
K (/R H
Tkt
387
ERIGY
Jn.?kﬂﬁ% SOx) (F35e)
RELHIINOX) (F72)
%ﬁ%@Mﬂ%ﬁ)
BEREHE
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁi
m*i%
ﬁm%ﬂ&% |
/t%%
%ﬁ&ﬁ)
%I (WA — A LB
i)

~(E AR
)

}
HiE m HiE
|} oo |

b |

5127

HEREEY ()
g2y ()
EERBEREY T (,/
BRI T o)
AR

IBAE ()

AR ()

IR ()

AR (38)

The Group
A%

7,449.48

0.05
1,617,293.61
0.00
1,622,886
43315
20,123.23

0.147

0.03
540
0.00

830.27

0.006

12.73

817.54

0.00
15.38

0.00011

289,569.60

52,878.33
NAREH
NAREH

2020
“RORE
Existing
Business

BUAEH

5,300.82

1,204,061.00
0.00
656,694

0
12,982.00

0.01
1.52
0.00

624.03

624.03

0.00
10.98

NAREH
NAREH
NAREH
NAREH

New
Business

BB

2,148.66

413.232.61
0.00
966,192
43315
7,141.23

0.02
3.88
0.00

206.24

12.73

193.51

0.00
4.40

NAREH
NAREH
NAREH
NAREH

2019
e

6,542.63

0.06
1,394,377.67
19,600.00
1,101,120

0

18,756.17

0.167

0.31
6.24
0.13

954.27

0.01

110.70

843.57

0.00
7.24

0.00006

N/AARE H
N/A/
14
30
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

Notes: R

This document follows the best practice prevalent in corporate reporting in compliance A S B R 2S5 T R 5 | o BR A St 10 B
with guidelines of HKEX. Computation of the GHG footprint is based on the Corporate PR o T3 U I WF T B A (A 6 A B B 1 HE

Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) for Scope 1 and 2. A (ERT ) 5 E — Je —FHE -

Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions: B B R S i

. “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouses Gas Emissions and ° F IR B ORGE E I W GRS 2R (R 2 -
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purpose) in fEE A &) B = OSBRI bR Y
Hong Kong” published by the Environmental Protection Department (EPD) of BE A AES 1)

Hong Kong Government
The sources of published emission factors for the reporting of carbon emissions are: PR SE ot B S ORE £ P 2 A R PR T

. Sustainability reports of China Light and Power (CLP), Hong Kong Electric ° PEETE ) R SRS Y AT R A
Company and Hong Kong and China Gas Company i

For computation of packaging material in 2019, the unit is in tonnes for both plastic R U EEEADRIFI N T > SRR AR
materials and paper box. FEI A I B o

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxg8 DY
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Rz - HREEES (1F)

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX HWR G NBRE - g RERBEN
¢ o]
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
ESpieig TR GRS - g LRI RIINE Tk
A. Environmental
A BE
Aspect Al Emissions
JETH A1 e

General disclosure

— PR

Information on:
B S SRA GUBEER  k R BETS  HE
RAEEEFEY N EESD

a) the policies; and

BOR s K&

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
ST AT A E B BE R SR &
Kt

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Environmental Management,
Laws and Regulations

BRI B ~ IR BGR R

in each facility).
JITEE A B A A (AR B (Undi ) 5
DU E BB ~ IR -

KPI Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions, Performance Data
PSSR IRALL PEn A K& B PR - Summary
Peic) ~ RBIBR =

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where | Emissions
S SRR IRAL2 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume | HEi4)

in each facility).

{2 SR A A R i (DAMERTIR) K (v 1)) %6 8 (An DA

A - IHRE R
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste
BB SUIRTEALS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume | B 54
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B S A A B TR GBS - g RBRIRERIINE Tk
A. Environmental
A, B
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Waste
B AT TEAL where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production JBEFEY)
volume in each facility).
o A T R T A (DAMESHRD) K (gl Y ) %5 % (i
DU B B~ IHEM RS o
KPI A1.5 Description of measures taken to mitigate emissions and | Emissions
SR TEALS results achieved. PEic
it A B TR A it B P A R o
KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes | Waste
B AR EALG are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. JEE FEY)

AR I S S E RO i WU A B
Jit e BT A R @

Aspect A2 Use of resources
JE T A2 R

General disclosure

— B R

Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

AR R (ELARREIR ~ 7K B AR AR ) R BLSR o

Resources Consumption

BRI FE

KPI A2.1
B BUIIRIRA2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume in each facility).
PR /10 E 3 S SRR VR (W78 ~ SRS ) 4
FER (DLT T FURp o) B B (D g g BB - 45
HB M) -

Energy Consumption

REVRTH #E

KPI A2.2
BB AESIREA2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume in each facility).

BFEK B ST (LA B B ~ A TH SO RT3 ) -

Water, Performance Data
Summary

KB~ KRBT 2

KPI A2.3
B AR AR A3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

A7t RE YR8 1 8 i ) B PR AR

Resources Conservation

B IR

AREBIEEERL
“zs-szgrw O]
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Rz - HREEES (1F)

B A SIEIE AR5

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit of
production volume.

S B LA R AR (DAMERT ) S (s )
AR AL & o

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
Edpieig TR GRS - g RERIERIINE Tk
A. Environmental
A BE
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water | Water
B AT TR A2 4 that is fit for the purpose, water use efficiency initiatives | 7K & i
and results achieved.
fiti e SR IR R IR W] A AR AT I RE > LA 3R TH K 3as
FE K A R o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products (in | Packaging Materials,

Performance Data
Summary

BB ~ R BRI

B AR TR REAS.1

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

70 SE 5 U B S BRI S R SR BRI B R 2B M L PR
EHA R BNTE -

Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources

JE A3 BRIE e RIRE R

General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on | Environmental and Natural

— AR the environment and natural resources. Resources Conservation
AR EEAT NBS BRI B K IR E IR R B EOR » | BRIBE e B AR IR R

KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the Environmental and Natural

Resources Conservation

BRI M A R TR R
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B S R A A R 5 R ~ & RAETR S R I RE Tk

B. Social

B. i®

Aspect Bl Employment

J&THIB1 (B0

General disclosure

— PR

Information on:
BRI SRR~ R ST - TAEREE S B - £
ol ~ FEERE - SO DL R A R 2 AR AR -

a) the policies; and

BOR 5 )

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
TR AT AT R RSB A Bl ok 1 S BB )
Kt

related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity, equal
opportunity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare.

Employees’ Rights and
Welfare, Laws and
Regulations

i B AHER S AR A ~ ik
FAER

KPIBI1.1
BRI B B

Total workforce by gender, employment type (i.e. full- or
part-time), age group and geographical region.

SRR ~ (R T (R 2R ) - AR B AE I Bl
#7310 B AR -

Employees Composition,
Performance Data
Summary

i BALIK ~ R B =

KPIB1.2
BB B .2

Employee turnover rate and new hire rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

FEVER ~ AFHARI e 0] 73 1) B ISR 3R SRR AR o

Employees Composition,
Performance Data
Summary

B BALAR ~ R E MR 2

BRENEEERAD
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Rz - HREEES (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
Edpieig R 5 R ~ & LTRSS E Tk

B. Social

B. #&

Aspect B2 Health and safety

J& B2 fRR S22 4

General disclosure

— B

Information on:

A7 B PR A2 A TARER I S PR o e B SRS VA T Y

a) the policies; and

BR s &

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
ST BT AT R RSB A Bl vk R S BB B
Kt

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety, Laws and
Regulations

fERR B2 Ay ~ R S

KPI B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities. Performance Data Summary
B A AIR1EB2.1 B AR BRI AL T AN B KB

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

B AIE1EB2.2 R TAGHH R TAE H 8 - i R B 27 A

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety

B SRR 1EB2.3 adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. i e B 4

ot T R 9 )T S R B 22 A A it > DA SR BRAT S
BTk -

Aspect B3

Development and training

JETHB3

B RS

General disclosure

— B R

Policies on improving employees’” knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

A B THE BB AT TARRE S 0 Ak S B BRI BUR -
A FIE ) o

Training and Development

Bl K % I

KPI B3.1
B S A R B 3.1

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.

AR B A BT #1731 32 L B A e EE o

Training and Development,
Performance Data
Summary

Hroll b gk R ~ R BIBUER
S
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RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

B S R A A R 5 R ~ & RAETR S R I RE T ik

B. Social

B. i®

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Training and Development,

B AR FE 1EB3.2

gender and employee category.
R B2 A BRI B 70 (9454 1 B 58 R AN RG24 s
AIRFEL o

Performance Data
Summary

el Je g - RBLEE
e

Aspect B4 Labour standards
JE B4 55 THEH

General disclosure

— M R

Information on:

A B 1E 2 TR 55 TAY

a) the policies; and

Bk 5 &

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
ST B ERAT AT R BN AR Bk T R 1 )
Ko

relating to prevention of child or forced labour.

Labour Standards, Laws and
Regulations

55 THEQI) 5 SRR

KPI B4.1
B S A B A B 4.1

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.

AR TS AT I 91 94 i e LA B B T R R 5 T

Labour Standards
&5 T HER

Aspect BS

Supply chain management

J&IHiB5

A g 2

General disclosure

— B R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

B LS IR G ) BR 0% B A B S BRBOR

Supply Chain Management
L 2

KPI BS.1
B S AR 1BS 1

Number of suppliers by geographical regions.

iz [ ) 3 O PR RE R B -

Supply Chain Management,
Performance Data
Summary

(e B~ KRB IE
%

KPI B5.2
B S AR AR AR 5.2

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored.
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Supply Chain Management
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Rz - HREEES (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
Edpieig R 5 R ~ & LTRSS E Tk

B. Social

B. #&

Aspect B6 Product responsibility

J& i B6 FE i FUAT

General disclosure

— B

Information on:
A BT R AL EE AR ) R B 2 2~ A AR
FLBE =B DA S A RO R/

o
ot
XA

a) the policies; and

BOR s K&

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
ST BHEEAT A R R B A Bl vk S BB )
Kt

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

Product Responsibility
7 fih FLATE

KPI B6.1
B S BUHR 1EB6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

B 2K it A b 8] 22 2 Lt e 8L ey T 2 [ g
A -

Product Responsibility
FE i AT

KPI B6.2
Bl S BUR AR 1B6.2

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

WAC 3] 14 7 ity B A AR B 45 ) SR DA Ao L o

Product Responsibility
FE AT

KPI B6.3
B A SR EB6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

it LA A I (R e R i 7 AT R AL A1)

Product Responsibility
FE AT

KPI B6.4
B S B 1B 6.4

Description of quality assurance process and product recall
procedures.

fit it B A AR B E it DR o

Product Responsibility
7 i AT

KPI B6.5
BB SIEEB6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
LT 2 B R B R FL R EOR > DL SRR BT e B
BTk

Product Responsibility
A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBiE - HBREEHRS (1F)

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B S R A A R 5 R ~ & RAETR S R I RE T ik

B. Social

B. i®

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

JETHIB7 &S

General disclosure

— PR

Information on:

A BB RIS - R R R PR ERAY

a) the policies; and

BOR s K&

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
ST AT A B BB E E SR &
K-

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption, Laws and
Regulations

FCEis ~ R RIEN

KPI B7.1
B SRR BEBT.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the year and the outcomes of the cases.

A R BT ASCHR B4R I OB A5 10 B T5 a5
GO RPN G R

Anti-corruption
[ E5

KPI B7.2
BHSRE 1B .2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

fil 2t 5 A i S SRR T - LA SO BT S BT

Anti-corruption
g

Aspect B8 Community investment
& B8 I 15

General disclosure

— B R

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

DAL I 22 BUAC T PR A T N\ 3 T A A o 5 A i R
SEBE B e % AL I A SR W EUR -

Community Investment

MR

KPI BS.1
B S AR B HEBS. 1

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

BT E R (N - BRIEHEE - 5 LK -
xfb - ®EH) o

Community Investment

e 1

KPI B8.2
BB A SR AR BS.2

Resources reserved for the focus area (e.g. fund and time).

T S A G T 380 1) U (< SR kg [H]) o

Community Investment
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEREHERASHEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 15 November 2016. He has been appointed
as the Chairman of the Board, with effect from 14 June 2019. Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul was also the chief executive of the Company from
15 November 2016 to 1 December 2020. Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
obtained a Bachelor of Science from Columbia University, New York,
the United States of America in May 1993. Prior to joining the Group,
he has worked in various international investment banks and securities
firms and is experienced in the area of finance and investments.
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul is (i) a cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Ho, an
executive Director; and (ii) a cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lam Chun Kei (“Mr. Lam”), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 20 February 2014. He is also a
director of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management and previously worked
in an international accounting firm and listed groups.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (“Mr. Ng”), aged 36, was redesignated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director with effect from 3
July 2018. He has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 1 December 2020. He is experienced
in banking and finance, and previously worked in various banks and
financial institutions. He is also a director of the subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ng obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Finance and
Financial Economics Degree from the University of New South Wales
in 2008. Thereafter, Mr. Ng further completed his Master of Science in
Financial Mathematics Degree from the Cass Business School of the
City University in London in 2014. Mr. Ng is (i) a cousin of Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul, an executive Director; and (ii) the younger brother of
Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREMH

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 34, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 13 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and the
audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 8 years of accounting experience. He
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2010 to June
2015 and is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Business (Banking and Finance) from the Queensland
University of Technology in 2009. Mr. Chan was an independent non-
executive director of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8147) which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
from July 2017 to July 2018. He was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Huisheng International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1340) on 22 March 2019, a company listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. On 9 January 2020, he was appointed
as the company secretary of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8200), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (“Mr. Yum”), aged 43, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 13 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee. Mr. Yum has more than 10 years of management
experience in the corporate and financial industry. He has served
as a director in several financial institutions from 2008 to present.
Currently, he serves as a managing director of Ayasa Globo Financial
Services Limited, principally engaged in providing financial services
and as a director of Greenpro Trust Limited, a company principally
engaged in providing a full range of trust services. Mr. Yum graduated
with a Bachelor of Science in Finance degree from the University of
Illinois at Urbana-Champaign in 2001.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREHERASHEN(E)

Mr. Hung Kenneth (“Mr. Hung”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 27 October 2014
and is a member of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee. He holds a degree of Bachelor of Science
awarded by Woodbury University in June 1995. Mr. Hung has
extensive experience in the entertainment industry. From March 2008
to September 2010, Mr. Hung was the China business development
director for Golden Sun Films Distribution Ltd. From October 2010
to June 2012, Mr. Hung was the chief operation officer for Top
Action Culture Development Co. Ltd. From July 2012 to October
2013. Mr. Hung was the business development director for Star
Alliance Movies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung was the chairman of
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8086) (‘“Sino
Vision”) from September 2016 to May 2017 and an executive director
of Sino Vision from May 2017 to November 2017. Mr. Hung was
an executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8081) from February 2014 to August 2018, was an
independent non-executive director of IR Resources Limited (Stock
Code: 8186) from March 2015 to April 2019, and has been appointed
as an executive director of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co., Limited (formerly known as Deson Construction International
Limited) (Stock Code: 8286) on 29 July 2019, all of which are
companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (“Ms. Chan”), the company secretary of the
Company, joined the Group since August 2014. Ms. Chan holds
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in
Accounting from Lingnan University in Hong Kong. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan
has over ten years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management and previously worked in international accounting firms
before joining the Company.

Mr. Lai Ho Bun (“Mr. Lai”), the chief operations officer (COO) and
a director of Star Kitchen Catering Group (HK) Limited, joined the
Group since October 2019. He has over 30 years of experience in the
food and beverage industry and has worked as a management in a
number of food and beverage company. He has expertise in operation,
management of food and beverage business. He is responsible for
managing day to day operation and management of food and beverage
business.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Managément (Continued)

EEREL

Mr. Lam Ka Hang, the managing director of China Demeter Securities
Limited, joined the Group since September 2016. He is responsible
for overall business development, operations and management
of China Demeter Securities Limited. He has over 20 years of
experience in securities and futures businesses, and has worked in a
number of securities firms. He has expertise in brokerage operations,
sales management and market operations of securities and futures
businesses. He is the Committee Member of Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association and Life Honorary President of Hong
Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators
Limited. He is a responsible officer recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC”) for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities. He was also a responsible officer
recognised by SFC for engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities from 2006 to 2015.

Mr. Chan Chi Fung, the vice president and a director of China
Demeter Securities Limited, joined the Group since October 2016. He
has approximately 17 years of experiences in financial market. He is
responsible for managing day to day trading operation. He worked in
Win Fung Securities Limited from December 2013 to October 2016
and his last position with Win Fung Securities Limited was a director
and was responsible for managing day to day trading operation. He is
also a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in the
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (Advising on securities) and
Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2020 interim
report of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

—  Mr. Ng Ting Ho has been appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company and authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 1 December 2020. His Director’s fee
has been adjusted to HK$80,000 per month with effect from 1
December 2020.

—  Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul ceased to be the chief executive officer
of the Company from 1 December 2020.

- Mr. Lam Chun Kei has ceased to be an authorised representative
of the Company from 1 December 2020.
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Cogorate Governance Report
PREGHRS

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
and to instituting procedures to ensure integrity, transparency and
quality of information disclosed thereby enhancing the value of the
Company for its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices and the corporate governance
principles of the Company are adopted in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

Save for the deviations as described below, the Board considers that,
the Company has complied, to the extent applicable and permissible,
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the Directors will use their best
endeavours to procure the Company to comply with such code and
make disclosure of deviation from such code in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

Code Provision A.2.1 requires the position of the chairman and the
chief executive officer be held separately by two individuals to ensure
their independence, separate accountability and responsibilities. The
chairman of the Company is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Company and for strategies and planning of the Group. The chief
executive officer is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business and operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, during the period before 1
December 2020, Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul held the role of both the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board believes that during the said period, vesting both the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the
aforesaid arrangement was not impaired and the structure had enabled
the Company to make and implement decisions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company had since fully complied with Code Provision A.2.1 in
which with effect from 1 December 2020, Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul had
ceased to be the chief executive officer and Mr. Ng Ting Ho, executive
Director, has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company and the position of the chairman and the chief executive
officer be held separately by two individuals.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Ng Man Chun
Paul, Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held in 2020 due to unexpected business
engagements. The Chairman will endeavour to attend all future
annual general meetings of the Comapny unless unexpected or special
circumstances preventing him from doing so.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and for overseeing the business of the Group. The Board
has delegated authority and responsibility to the senior management
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. Key matters will remain
as the responsibility of the Board whose approval will be required.
In addition, the Board has also delegated responsibilities to various
management committees. Details of those committees are set out in
this corporate governance report.
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Cogorate Governance Report (Continued)
PEEEHS(8)

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Chun Kei

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Details of the members of the Board, including the relationship (if
any) between the Board members, are provided under the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors had
participated in continuous professional development with respect to
directors, duties, relevant programmes and seminars or had perused
reading materials and updated information in relation to business
and industrial development. The Directors had provided the relevant
training records to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training
to all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each
Director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is
fully aware of his roles, functions, duties and responsibilities under the
GEM Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Re ort (Contmued)

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has met
the requirements of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules
of having a minimum of three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise.

Independent non-executive Directors are required to give an annual
confirmation of their independence to the Company pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. This practice has been observed
and the Company considers the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

For further details of the terms of appointment of the independent
non-executive Directors, please refer to the section headed “Directors’
Report — Directors and Directors’ service contracts” of this annual
report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS

11 Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2020. The Directors use their best endeavour to ensure that for all
Board meetings to be held, Board minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”), and be open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access
to the board papers and related materials and have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and have the
liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board has established three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

T JE VAT B o ik

IR E R CRFE A =+ —HIEF
B ¥ G CRSF GEM L T AR B £ 5.05
L5 05AIRIKLE - HEA > =2 W Ik
HITES (hEFGHRD =2 —) Tﬁ
Hfgb— 2B ERiTEHRA
%%gﬁu&@ﬁ&w%wﬁ£@%%
Ik o

M5 GEM I 17 KL R 25 5.09 0% - %87 FF 3
A7 S 2R M S M ) AR S R AR
MERR o AN A CESFRZEN > AN R
Ly IE AT S S AL o

FEHITHEFZ W

ARZIE LA TER TN ZE D
FENG o T2 BIAER R RS —EE
B EE HRs A 4 ]

ERETRMEFZR TR

BEZFTHF+_H =T HIEEE
BAT TR E R GGk o EhE s

AR GRITNERSOR  EFHT G
SO B AR F 2w AL (A F B
) R T3 R AR - 5 E A HE
MR SO MM B E R > IR FEAR
Z RN B F R E 2
MR > S n] s Bl AT SR AN B2
=R

HEHEON L =MEFLZES ﬂ%$
ZE® FMNEEE &ﬁ%%é

BRENEEERAD
—s—sxg8 /D



Cogorate Governance Report (Continued)
r

26 (4)

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the general
meetings are as follows:

Names of Directors HHEA
Executive Directors: WiTES
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul Rl

Mr. Lam Chun Kei VNG S e

Mr. Ng Ting Ho RIEW A
Independent non-executive Directors: Bor BT E
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BRAT T e
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien fEreEst
Mr. Hung Kenneth WHEBRA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Board was established on 26 October 2011,
written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. The main functions of the Audit Committee
of the Board is to recommend to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors; to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors as well
as any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; to review
the quarterly, interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group;
and to oversee the Company’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hin Hang (chairman of the
committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr. Hung Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held
4 meetings. The Audit Committee has reviewed the final results for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and also the quarterly and interim
results during the year ended 31 December 2020.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
7 6 Annual Report 2020

£ S o VY N R R
LU

No. of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

R G R UL R R O
Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHY B 3K JBe 3
ik BERE i
11/11 0/1 0/0
11/11 0/1 0/0
11/11 1/1 0/0
11/11 11 0/0
11/11 0/1 0/0
11/11 01 0/0

HBREEG

HHRHGZERZAGOR _F——F+
H =+ /NHW > B AR EGEM L
TR R EmE R 2 R - &
THERELEGZ FERMBELNTT - #
T Ko %% 15 HE P 470 A il ) 3 < 6 A o
WERE 5 L E SN AZ BT 2 T 4 K 723 HE Ak
K BB R P B A S5 A% B AT B B
GEB AT E  FRAEE L F
B~ R AR R IR E 5 REEER
s F) A R R~ B A A R A S e R
ﬁ? o

EHGHEMZ B GNEOFE =485
TS > MBRTfT e (ZREE
J§) ~ ALSeRE A IR R -

WEF FEF AL
FE - AR BB R AT D
HHEAGCHMRE F FE
H = B2 A R B
FoFE S B B
Ferh 28



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The members and attendance of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members

EREZHGMEES

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
AT e

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(BT s

Mr. Hung Kenneth
R B

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee of the Board,
with the majority of its members being independent non-executive
Directors, is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee has to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive
officer of the Company on their proposals relating to the remuneration
of other executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee may seek
independent professional advice as it considers necessary in respect of
its function.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Hin Hang
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr.
Hung Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings. It reviewed the remuneration policy of
the Company, assessed the performance of the executive Directors and
senior management and recommended specific remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management to the Board with reference
to the level of responsibilities of the individual Director, the scope of
operation of the Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.
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The members and attendance of the Remuneration Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members

B % H &l H Lk

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
BRATAT e

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(BT e

Mr. Kenneth Hung
HAEREAE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed appointment
and re-appointment.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chan Hin Hang and Mr. Hung
Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
of the Board held 1 meeting and has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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The members and attendance of the Nomination Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

RAZHGHEEH

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
AT e

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(BT s

Mr. Hung Kenneth
R B

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of senior management (comprising executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and senior management) of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 by band is as follows:

HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000
s M T 2 5 151,000,0000T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
#%:1,000,001 70 2 #%1,500,000 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
#EHE 1,500,001 76 2 #:#52,000,000 T

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000
5 2,000,0007T £ i #2,500,000 7T

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 12A and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

In order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance and
ensures that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Company will also take into account its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in forming its perspectives
on the Board diversity. The Company will endeavour to ensure that
the diversity of Board is achieved and appointments of Directors are in
the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to be appointed to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments will be based a range of objective
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, skills and professional experience. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
In assessing potential candidates of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will give adequate consideration to the diversity
perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and propose any
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as it thinks fit, and
recommend any such amendments to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition taking into
account the diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity

Policy are summarised as follows:

Designatiox}
Age Group
A i A1 Y

Length of Service (year)
s 8 (48)

Professional Experience

R

Educational Background

BHENR

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination policy has been adopted by the Board with effect from
1 January 2019. Any subsequent amendment of the nomination policy
shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee and approved by the

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

T

Board Diversity Perspective

HEHREFZIUAHR

Executive Director

PATE

Management

Accounting and Finance

Independent Non-Executive Director

2 5 JE PLAT

Finance

BREEGHRS ()

RAH S B > RS 2 ou L BOR B
T S 2 AT R 2 AL R R A A

46-50
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o2 CEEA EZ 3
Science Finance Accountancy
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Number of directors
A
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Board.
1.  General Provisions 1. RS
1.1 The Nomination Committee has formulated a nomination 1.1 4% 880l E £ 4 BUR
policy (“Nomination Policy”) to standardise and enhance (MRABOR |) B S 42 =48
transparency for the nomination procedures and the process % 72 B G T B A S
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requirements of the Company’s business. A o
1.2 The Nomination Committee shall be responsible for 12 RAZEGHARFHIRZE

reviewing the Nomination Policy and disclosing the
same in the corporate governance report to ensure full
compliance with the CG Code, the GEM Listing Rules, the
Bye-laws of the Company and other relevant provisions.
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Selection criteria for nominating a Director

2.1

2.2

The selection criteria for assessing the suitability of a

proposed candidate as a Director which shall be taken as
reference by the Nomination Committee are listed below:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

©)

)

(2)

integrity and reputation;

skill, accomplishment and experience relevant to the
Company’s business;

commitment in respect of available time;
existing and potential conflicts of interest;
diversity of the Board, including but not limited to

gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience of the Directors;

not being prohibited by law from being a Director;
and

any other factors as the Nomination Committee
may deem fit to consider in the best interests of the
shareholders of the Company.

The above selection criteria are not exhaustive nor

conclusive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion

to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2020

2.

P24 A HOR AR
2.1 RAZBGINSHI SR

2.2

3R N\ T8 T Y T 2SR AT M
AT -

(a) A5 M52

(b) B Y F) S5 A B Y
fiE ~ B S AE B

(©) FIECARRRRH
(d)  BUA R e B F] 5 flr 2€

() EFREMZool  BiFHE
NS R G
B UL REBES S - 5
HEE

() PEH A LA
P

() RAZHER/ITEAL
) SR B AR M) 2 AT A
(ECSESE

bR BB AR HE NI IR R R R IR P
EVERER o 24 % B &l B
PeE B4 HR Sl AT A
+ o



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

3.  Procedures for nomination of a Director

3.1 Any Director may nominate a candidate for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a
general meeting. Upon obtaining the required information
from the candidate as listed above, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate whether such candidate is
qualified to be appointed, elected or re-elected into the
Board based on the criteria as set out above and the relevant
GEM Listing Rules and the policies of the Company.

3.2 The Nominate Committee shall convene a meeting to
discuss and consider the recommendation of the candidate
to the Board for appointment, election or re-election as a
Director.

Please refer to the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights — Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director” of this
report for procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Directors are responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, make recommendations to the Board, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. Also, the Directors are responsible
for reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
its disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report
and developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance practices and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements including compliance with the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Summary

The Company and the Group have engaged a consultant to conduct
a review on the Group’s internal control environment and report to
the Audit Committee and management for the purpose of evaluation
of the documentation, effectiveness and efficiencies of the control of
the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020. The Board has conducted a review of the internal
control system and the effectiveness of it operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020, including
financial, operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. That will ensure that the Directors will oversee and monitor
the Group’s overall financial position so that the interests of the
shareholders are well protected and covered. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering the reviews performed
by the consultant. The Board and the Audit Committee considered
that the risk management and internal control system are effective
and adequate during the year. The Company complies with the code
provisions relating to internal control contained in the CG Code.

Risk Management Philosophy

Risk taking is a necessary and accepted part of the Company’s
business. Effectively managing risk is a competitive necessity and
an integral part of creating shareholder value through good business
practices designed to ensure that the Company achieves its strategic,
business and governance objectives, and protects its corporate
reputation, values and integrity.

Risk management applies to all aspects of the Company’s business
and forms a critical part of developing strategic plans, preparing
operational plans and budgets, completing detailed project approval
requests and designing and managing project plans.
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Risk Management Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the oversight of
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for reviewing
and assessing the major risks facing the Company and reviewing,
approving and monitoring the Company’s approach to addressing such
risks annually.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management systems and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee oversees the risk management process and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems by
conducting the following procedures:

. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by
the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

. discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective systems; this discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

. considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

. reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

. reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;
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. reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

. acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

. ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

. conducting exit interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller or internal credit control manager upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure;

. preparing work reports for presentation to the Board and to
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

. considering the appointment of any person to be a committee
member, auditors and accounting staff either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional committee member, auditors and
accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

. reporting to the Board on the matters set out in paragraphs C.3.1
to C.3.7 of the CG Code; and

. considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

Inside Information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or
their trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA
of the SFO. Executive Directors also may have responsibility for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Re ort (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Process

During 2020, the Company engaged a consultant who conducted an
interview with key personnel and senior management of the Group,
reviewed the internal control manual and related documents and
performed site visit to observe the daily operation to understand the
Company’s risk management and internal control system. The findings
on internal control and enterprise risk management were summarised
and was distributed to the Audit Committee for its review. The Audit
Committee concluded that the Company had in place effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems. The Company
has ensured that the risk management and internal control provisions
under the CG Code have been complied with. The Board, has
confirmed that the adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications
and experiences of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions during its annual review on the risk management and internal
control systems.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(1) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results; (ii) the probability that the risk will occur; and (iii) the velocity
or speed at which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

. Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate the
risk entirely.

. Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or the
severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

. Risk retention — senior management may decide that the risk
rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for the Company
and that no action is required. The risk would continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management program to ensure the
level of risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Cor
PRSI (B)

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

(1)

88

Credit risk management

For loans granted by the Group, the Credit Committee will hold
meetings on a monthly basis to review the repayment record of
the loan interests and loan principals. The Credit Committee will
assess the credit quality of the outstanding loan portfolio and see
if provision needs to be made for non-performing loans.

The Credit Committee will regularly report to the Board relating
to the repayment record of the loan interests and loan principals
in the loan portfolio, its components and other matters, which
need to be bought to the attention of the Board.

Given that the targeted customers of the Group’s money lending
business are well-heeled and reputational individuals and well-
established companies, in the case of provision of short-term
loans for the purpose of short-term financing for personal/
business needs, the Group will generally not require collateral as
it may not be viable for such customers to provide collaterals and
thus requiring such would only deter them. Moreover, for short-
term loans, the creation and release of collaterals would create
unnecessary administrative cost to the Group. Nevertheless,
the Group would apply the established credit approval policy
and process to assess each and every potential customer such
that, the Group would only approve any loans on the condition
that the Group is of the view that any provision of loan will not
constitute a high credit risk and the Group would usually require
customers to provide signed and post-dated bank cheques with
payments in accordance with tailor made repayment schedules.

We are exposed to credit risks during the course of our business
in providing financing services to our customers for trading on a
margin basis.
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Corporate Governance Re ort (Contmued)

The credit assessment of a customer is performed during account
opening through enquiry and collection of information so as
to verify the customer’s net worth and income, and evaluate
their risk profile by understanding their financial condition,
investment preferences and investment experience. We did
not independently obtain credit information from third parties
(such as any credit reports on our customers) during our credit
assessment process. However, given that (i) our financing
service are provided with listed securities pledged as collaterals;
(i1) margin ratio is assigned for each individual securities; (iii)
marginable amount of each of our customer is determined based
on (a) the market value of securities held under the securities
trading account; and (b) the margin ratio for each securities;
and (iv) our margin call policy and trading limit set for each
securities trading account would limit the maximum loss due
to customer’s default, our Directors consider that our credit
assessment procedures are appropriate and sufficient to manage
our credit risk.

Business and operational risk management

The Credit Committee is responsible for the assessment of the
business and operational risks and implementation of credit
policies. Monthly meetings are held among Credit Committee
members and regular meetings are held between the Credit
Committee and the Board to review the operating activities of
the money lending business.

We have established internal reporting procedures to report
any suspected case (including but not limited to employee
misconduct and fraud). We have formulated credit policies and
operational procedures (which are continuously updated), and
implemented initiatives which include:

- segregating duties between credit assessment, loan file
reviews and loan approval to establish checks and balances
in the loan approval processes;

—  checking and recalculating loan repayment schedules
upon loan settlement to ascertain the accuracy of interests
charged in accordance with the stated effective interest
rates;
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— adopting staff handbook which documented our
requirements on employees’ code of conduct and contained
reporting policy as a procedure guideline for staff to report
fraud or suspicious fraud case, if any;

— adopting information security guidelines to prevent
unauthorised access to our information system and
to reduce the operational risk caused by failures of
information technology systems by maintaining backup
data for the key data processing systems; and

—  strengthening our anti-money laundering monitoring efforts
via verification of identity, record keeping, recognition of
suspicious transactions, reporting of suspicious transactions
and staff education and training.

Liquidity risk management

The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
Specifically, in conducting the money lending business, our
management will monitor our Group’s cash inflow and outflow
on a weekly basis to ensure the accuracy of cash collection
and deployment and that there is no shortfall in cash which
may interrupt our Group’s business. The Group will maintain
sufficient cash buffer to meet the working capital requirement
and liquidity needs for our business operations in the coming
months. The Group’s major liquidity needs mainly include
the settlement of operating expenses such as office rental and
employees’ remuneration. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group had not experienced any shortfall in cash for
meeting the above liquidity needs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

We are required to maintain at all times the liquid capital which
is not less than the minimum requirement as set out under
the financial resources rules and financial return (“FRR”).
Our accounts department is responsible for the preparation of
the financial returns and the computation of liquid capital in
accordance with the requirements under the FRR. The monthly
financial returns are submitted to our responsible officers for
review and approval before submission to the Securities and
Future Commission (“SFC”) no later than three weeks after
each calendar month. Our accounts department also conducts
the liquid capital computation on a daily basis which is reviewed
by our responsible officers to ensure that we are able to comply
with the FRR requirement on an ongoing basis.

During 2020, our Group did not have any material non-
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement as set
out by the SFC.

Legal and regulatory risk management

The credit approval policy and process as described in the
paragraph headed “Credit policy and loan approval process”
above has been designed to ensure that the Group’s money
lending business operates in accordance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance and applicable laws.

The Credit Committee has adopted suitable documentation and
procedures in the application and assessment process to calculate
the effective interest rate of all loan applications and ensure
that the procedures are in compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance. The Credit Committee and the Board will, from time
to time, review such documentation and procedures to ensure
the documentation and procedures to be in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

Depending on the nature of food and beverage business of the
Group, the following are the principal types of licences that may
be required for the operation of our restaurants in Hong Kong:

(a) Food business licence, including restaurant licence for
restaurant operation, restricted food permits for sales of
live fish, shell fish, sashimi and oysters to be eaten in a
raw state, and food safety licence for food importation
and distribution which are required to be obtained before
commencement of the relevant food business operation;
and

(b) Liquor licence, which is to be obtained before
commencement of sale of liquor in the restaurant premises.
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We are required to obtain certain licences in relation to our restaurant
operations in Hong Kong. We have obtained all relevant licenses
and permits that are material to our operation in Hong Kong. Our
consultant keeps track of the expiry dates of relevant licences and
timely applies for renewal. Our restaurants will only commence
operations after obtaining or renewing the relevant licences and/or
permits. During the year, we had not been involved in any unsettled
safety and licensing related violations, the outcome of which we
believed might materially and adversely affect our business, operation
and financial position.

On the operational level, the Group has complied with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the guidelines recommended by the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data when collecting and processing
data from students, customers and borrowers. The Group has also
paid attention to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) when preparing and delivering teaching materials.
Besides, the Group has complied with the Education Ordinance
(Chapter 279 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in application of applicable
certificates for running school, the Child Care Services Ordinance
(Chapter 243 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in application certificate
for running child care centre and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in preparation and
publication of advertisements.

On the human resources level, the Group has abided by the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), equal opportunity legislations
(including Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
to safeguard the health, safety, interests and benefits of the Group’s
employees.

Other details of the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Re ort (Continued)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividend (“Dividend
Policy”) in compliance with Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is subject to compliance with applicable
laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws
of the Company.

Dividends may be paid out by way of cash or by other means that
the Directors consider appropriate. Declaration and payment of any
dividends would require the recommendation of the Board and will
be at its discretion. In addition, any final dividends for a financial
year will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount and rates
of such dividends, will be subject to, among other things, the Group’s
results of operations, cash flow, financial conditions, operating and
capital requirements and other factors which the Directors consider
important.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group to the
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
including quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the corporate
information of the Group are also available on the Company’s website
(http://www.chinademeter.com).

The shareholders’ meeting provides a useful channel for shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board which the Directors are
available to answer questions related to the Company’s affairs.

The procedures to elect Directors were uploaded to the Company’s
website (http://www.chinademeter.com).

The latest version of the Company’s Bye-laws can be downloaded
from the website of the Company or the Stock Exchange website.
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The Company will continue to improve the communication with
investors and to provide them more opportunities to understand the
business of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount of fees in

respect of audit services and non-audit services paid/payable to Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate was set out below:

Services rendered B R AR BS
Audit services TR
Non-audit services FE R BB
Total st
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company Secretary complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can convene a special general meeting by depositing a
requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for
the purpose of requiring the convening of the special general meeting.
The written requisition shall be deposited to the Company’s office
at Office AO1, 35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the Board

The Company is committed to regular and proactive communication
with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of disclosing clear,
adequate and relevant information to Shareholders in a timely manner
through various channels. The Company has complied with the
GEM Listing Rules by posting announcements, notices, quarterly,
interim and annual reports as well as shareholders’ circulars on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(http://www.chinademeter.com).

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for
any enquiries in relation to the Group, or for putting forward any
proposals at a shareholders’ meeting:

Address: Office AO1, 35/F,

United Centre,

No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty
Hong Kong

(852) 2116 1218

(852) 2151 1872

The Board of Directors/

The Company Secretary

Telephone no.:
Fax no.:
Attention:

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws and
applicable legislation and regulations.

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the member himself/herself) for
election as a Director at that meeting, he/she/it can deposit a written
notice to the following address:

Head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong

Office AO1, 35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong

In order for the Company to inform all shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required
by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned together with a written notice of the person
proposed for election as a Director indicating his/her willingness to be
elected.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

Save as the procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
a general meeting as set out above, there are no other provisions
allowing shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
the general meeting under the Bye-laws of the Company or under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Shareholders of the Company
may follow the procedures set out above to convene a special general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The
written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the shareholders
concerned. The written requisition shall be deposited at Office AOI,
35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong, the
head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in the preparation of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and in presenting the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements, and announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim at
presenting a balanced, cleared and comprehensive assessment of the
Company’s performance, its current position and future prospects.
The respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors of the
Company in respect of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out in the independent auditors’ report on pages 113
to 121 of this annual report.
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The directors (“Directors”) of the Company present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as discussed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of the annual report, which forms part of this Directors’
report, there were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activities and
geographical locations of operations for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and financial position of the Group as at the year end
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 122
to 126 of the annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$Nil).
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this Directors’ report as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual report. A
discussion of Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders, and
environmental policies and performance is contained in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report. These discussions form part of this Director’s report.

Key risks and its management

The Group is principally engaged in (i) alcoholic beverage distribution
and miscellaneous business; (ii) food and beverage business; (iii)
money lending business; (iv) financial services business; (v) securities
investment business; and (vi) provision of children education services.

Key risks
(1) Reliance on key personnel

The effective operations and future success of the Group’s
business are depending, to a significant extent, on the capability,
experience and continued efforts of our key management
personnel. If the Group is unable to attract, retain and motivate
the necessary key management personnel, the business and
operation conditions of the Group may be disrupted and the
results and financial positions of the Group may be materially or
adversely affected.

(2) Reliance on close relationship with the Group’s customers

The success of the Group relies heavily on good relationship
with its customers. If the Group fails to maintain the current level
of business relationship with its customers and retain them in its
sales and distribution network, the sales, financial condition and
operating results of the Group may be adversely affected.
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

(3) Risk relating to the food and beverage business

(a)

(b)

Uncertainties on obtaining or renewing the licences and
permits for the Group’s operations

The Group is required to obtain and maintain various
type of licences, including (i) general licences and (ii)
liquor licence and other approvals or permits, including
restricted food permits for its restaurants operation in Hong
Kong. Most of the requisite licences are usually valid
for one to two years and the licences are required to be
renewed before their expiry to comply with the relevant
requirements and ensure that business operation can be
continued without any disruption.

The Group may experience difficulties or failures in
obtaining or renewing the necessary approvals, licences
and permit for new restaurants in a timely manner or at all
for factors beyond its control.

Rely on individual to hold all the liquor licences of
restaurants

All of the liquor licences of the Group’s restaurants were
held by individuals.

Pursuant to Regulation 15 of the Dutiable Commodities
(Liquor) Regulations (Chapter 109B of the Laws of Hong
Kong), any transfer of a liquor licence must be conducted
in the prescribed form with the consent of the liquor licence
holder. In case of illness or temporary absence of the liquor
licence holder, the secretary of the Liquor Licensing Board
may in his/her discretion authorize any person to manage
the licenced premises under Regulation 24 of the Dutiable
Commodities (Liquor) Regulations, upon application by the
liquor licence holder. For any application for cancellation
of the liquor licence made by the holder of liquor licence,
one must make an application for new issue of a liquor
licence to the Liquor Licensing Board. In case of death or
insolvency of the liquor license holder, his/her executor or
administrator or trustee may carry on the business in the
licence premises until the expiration of the licence under
section 54 of the Dutiable Commodities Ordinance.
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

)

)

If the relevant liquor licence holder in each of the Group’s
restaurants refuses to give consent to a transfer application
when a transfer is required, or fails to make an application
in respect of his/her illness or temporary absence or
makes a cancellation application without consent, or if an
application for new issue of a liquor licence is required
in case of death or insolvency of the relevant employee,
the relevant restaurant may have to cease it sale of liquor
for the time being, in which case may adversely affect its
business and profitability.

Risks relating to the money lending business

The money lending business of the Group is exposed to default
from the Group’s customers, which involves the risk of loss
due to the inability or unwillingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations. If the customers of the money lending
business of the Group fail to meet their contractual obligations,
the Company may incur additional costs to collect the loan
principal and corresponding interests. To mitigate this risk, the
board of Directors (“Board”) has set up the Credit Committee
with relevant experience of this business segment and report to
the board of the Company directly. The Credit Committee has
full authority to deal with all credit matters. The members of the
Credit Committee are appointed by the Board and the quorum
of the Credit Committee is at least two committee members.
The credit policy of the Group’s money lending business is
subject to the review and amendments by the Credit Committee
and the Board from time to time in line with changes in market
environment.

Risk relating to the financial services business

The financial services business of the Group is subject to
the performance of the Hong Kong securities market and the
performances of the Group’s competitors which are beyond its
control and the Group cannot assure that our historical level
of income can be sustained. In addition, non-compliance with
extensive regulatory requirements could cause the Group to
incur fines, restriction on financial service activities or even
suspension or revocation of some or all of the licences for
carrying on the Group’s business activities.
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

Also the Group’s brokerage services involved active interactions
between its staff and customers and therefore it is subject to
human errors, which the Group has to bear the losses resulting
therefrom. For placing and underwriting business, the Group
exposed to business risks in case the securities underwritten by
the Group are undersubscribed or the placing exercises are failed
to complete.

(6) Major financial risk exposed to the Group

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit, interest
rate, liquidity and other price risks. The Group actively and
regularly reviews these risks and will adopt measures, if needed,
to control and mitigate these risks.

(7) Difficulties in recruitment and retention of the Group’s
employees

The success of the Group depends in apart upon the Group’s
ability to attract, retain and motivate a sufficient number of
qualified employees, including responsible officer, teacher,
restaurant staff, chefs and kitchen staff. Highly service-oriented
and qualified individuals are in relatively short supply in Hong
Kong and competition for these employees is intense. Any
failure to employ and retain enough qualified employees could
delay planned new restaurant openings, cause untenable teacher-
to-pupil ratio to meet the statutory requirement or result in
higher employee turnover, either of which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business and results of operations.
In addition, competition for qualified employees could also
require the Group to pay higher wages, which could result in
higher labour cost.

For a discussion of how the Group would tackle with the management
of the material risks, please refer to the paragraphs headed “Internal
Control and Risk Management” in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of the annual report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties on COVID-19 facing the Company is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 33 of this annual
report.
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EFB8HS(H)

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation and
financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is responsible to
ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. During the course
of the business operations, the Group shall comply with different
laws and regulations, further details of which are discussed in the
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of the annual report, the discussion of which forms part of this
Directors’ report. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
was in compliance with these said laws and regulations.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and events
that have taken place during the year under review are incorporated
under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
the annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-year Financial
Summary” of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had twelve
management agreements with Global Food Culture Group Limited
(“GFC”), an independent third party of the Company, dated 16 July
2018, 16 October 2018, 1 February 2019, 16 February 2019, 18
February 2019, 1 June 2019, 3 October 2019, 25 October 2019, 1 May
2020, 20 May 2020 and 1 July 2020 respectively in relation to the
provision of day-to-day operation and supervision services by GFC
to certain restaurants of the food and beverage business of the Group,
for an initial term from 13 months to 39 months respectively, subject
to compliance with the relevant requirement under the GEM Listing
Rules and termination at any time with 90 days prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, there are no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the group were entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements during the year in the reserves and reserves
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders of the Group
and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the annual report and in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales amount to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 3.6% of the total
sales amount of the Group, whilst the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 1.27% of the total sales amount of the
Group. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 77.3% of the total purchases amount of the Group, whilst the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 67.2% of
the total purchases amount of the Group.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

OTHER BORROWING

Details of other borrowing of the Group are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
Mr. Ng Ting Ho
Mr. Lam Chun Kei

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Biographical information of Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” of the annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and compliance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Hung Kenneth
and Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 31
August 2020. The appointment will be terminable by three months
prior written notice given by either side.
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

Mr. Lam Chun Kei has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 16 October
2020. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 1 December
2020. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 13
November 2020. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 13
November 2020. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Hung Kenneth has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 27 October
2020. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 to indemnify the
Directors and officers for their liabilities arising from their lawful
discharge of duties. The insurance coverage and premium is reviewed
on an annual basis.

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that the Directors for the time
being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and every
one of them shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12A and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
a connected entity of a director of the Company had a material interest
subsisted, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long Positions

(a) Shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
HEHEEA Sty

Ng Man Chun Paul Beneficial Owner
SRR JEEnt 2PN
Ng Ting Ho Beneficial Owner
SR gt 2PN

(b) Share options of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
HHEEA g1

Ng Man Chun Paul Beneficial Owner
Stz Hit A A
Ng Ting Ho Beneficial Owner
R Ha A A
Note:

The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the

number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020, that is
153,029,515.
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Approximate
Number of percentage
shares held of interest
15 Fe HE R
i A B H HONERidza
(Note)
(BfF&E)
961,250 0.63%
961,250 0.63%

(b) AL Al
Approximate
Number of percentage
options held of interest
5 Fe R BE
Ft 45 B B HE 8 H HONEpig
(Note)
(B &E)
1,530,000 1.00%
1,530,000 1.00%
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2020 that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARE OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled the Directors,
their respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following persons/entities, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had notified the Company at
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company:

Long Positions
Name of Shareholder Capacity

JBOR RS R St

Mr. Ng Ting Kit
REAEAE

Beneficial owner

Ha A A
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Directors' Report (Continued)

EFB8HS(H)

Note:

1. The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the
number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020, that is
153,029,515.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 22 April 2020, the Company, as vendor, and Mr. Yang Kaijun
(“Mr. Yang”), as purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“SP Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Yang agreed
to purchase, and the Company agreed to sell, (i) the sale shares,
representing all the equity interest in Tony China Limited (“Tony
China”) and East Shine Group Limited (“East Shine”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company held by the Company, and (ii) the
sale loan, representing all the shareholder’s loan owing by Tony China
to the Company as at completion, at an aggregate Consideration of
HKS$1,152,000.

Immediately prior to the completion of such disposal ("Disposal"),
Tony China was owned as to 90% by the Company and as to 10% by
Mr. Yang who is a connected person of the Company.

As the Disposal is a connected transaction between the Group and a
connected person at the subsidiary level of the Company on normal
commercial terms, the Disposal is only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements, but is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Completion has taken place immediately after the signing of the SP
Agreement and each of Tony China and East Shine has ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company. Upon completion of the Disposal, the
Group has discontinued to engage in the agricultural business.
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Directors' Re%ort (Continued)

During the year, (a) a subsidiary of the Company, China Demeter
Securities Limited, received commission income and interest
income from Directors, a substantial shareholder, a director of a
subsidiary, associates of connected persons of the Company and
companies which directors of such companies are also a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a director of the subsidiary; and (b)
the Group had advanced a loan to Mr. Lam Chun Kei, an executive
Director. Such related party transactions fall under the definition of
“connected transactions” pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Particulars of such related party transactions are disclosed in
note 41(a) and note 41(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of
business, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates had any business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted and committed to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules and has prepared the corporate governance report,
which is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of the annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$68,000.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint the auditor, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Independent Auditors' Report

@ bakertilly
R B B8l PR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA DEMETER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
122 to 293, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

ﬂﬁuiﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁi (48)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

[oR 7 A T IR

Impairment of loans and interest receivables

M 5k e A3 ik e

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 4
and the disclosures of loans and interest receivables in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

S B 45 A S TR 35 B SR A 7T AS e 2 TR 2R 1) 2 BBl TR I
WA 5 2.6 M AT B 30 e A1 B R o

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”)
requires the application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the identification of
exposures with a significant deterioration in credit quality,
and assumptions used in the ECL models for exposures
assessed individually, such as the expected future cash
flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.
TS B4R ([ TR SR ) (FH B ZOREA R
A S A AR - LA A £ R R B A
A JEL By - DA B ol B8 Wil gy ) AU 5 5 s TR Y o
o P AR 5% > {91 20 30 ) A 2 B < O 2 A I S M ) 2%
BIRHEHE R o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAY P9 7 A% T oy G BRI A O

Our audit procedures included:

A TR (45 -

- We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables, which relates to management’s
identification of events that triggered the provision
for impairment of loans and interest receivables and
estimation of the amount of provisions.
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—  We inspected the loans and pledged agreements
entered into between the Group and the borrowers,
and other relevant information relating to the
borrowers as assessed by the Group.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

IoA 818 7 % T IR

Impairment of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

M Bk e AL Dot e ()

We focused on this area because the carrying amount
of loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements, the identification of
whether exposures triggered deterioration in credit quality
and the estimation of the individual impairment amount
require the use of significant judgments and estimates.
FAM BLE A L HEE > T e A B A R R B 2 MR T
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRATY #2520 o i L O O % T IR

We circulated auditor’s confirmations to test the
existence of the loans and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period. We also checked
the accuracy of the aging of loans and interest
receivables as at the end of the reporting period by
tracing to loan agreements.

FAM B A B AR RE bR DA IS B R R
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We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
model and the criteria for assessing if there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis. We also assessed recoverability of the
loans and interest receivables with reference to
borrowers’ interest repayment records and principal
repayment subsequent to the year end date and up to
the date of this report, and traced the repayments to
the bank statements.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

IoH 818 7 % T IR

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Py B2 Dot 1 P A

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in
Note 4 and the disclosures of goodwill in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

S BG5BT 35 B SR A R AS e R TR 2R 1) T2 BBl TR I
B 5 1 8 PR 2 41 7R o

At 31 December 2020, the Group carried out an
impairment assessment to the goodwill attributable
to the financial services business, alcoholic beverage
distribution business and children education business and
impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$Nil
(2019: HK$2,967,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020.
W_F_FEF_H=+—H > BEEBEEMIREE
B~ TR RIOR 20 85 SE 5 e L B R S i A e AT
BWAEREAL - WA E —F _FFE A =+ —HILF
JFE R AR a8 45 S AR AR T W iR R b > T R R (e
BAERT T (CF—JUE - #12,967,0007T) ©

For the purpose of assessing impairment, goodwill
was allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of
the respective business, and the recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined by management based on
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection.
In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to determine the key
assumptions, including operating margins, terminal
growth rate and discount rates, underlying the value-in-use
calculation.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAY F% 7 A% T f  BEL  OH

Our audit procedures included:

FAM B AR (45

—  evaluating the independence, competence, capability
and objectivity of the external valuation expert
engaged by management;

—  WPAGE PR R T A0 S B AG (B B K A R L - TR
HE ~ REJI BB

— evaluating the valuation methodologies and
assumptions including comparing source and
market data used in the underlying assumptions
for the valuation of financial services business,
alcoholic beverage distribution business and children
education business with reference to comparable
companies;
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—  assessing the appropriateness of the key assumptions,
including operating margins, pre-tax discount rate
and growth terminal growth rate, used for calculating
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit as
adopted by management for the goodwill impairment
assessment; and
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Fl O B 4 A AR BT 4 AT Ui e < ) R R % (L
TEACE AT - BUATRE B R KOk AR 2R) iEE
s K

— evaluating the appropriateness of the relevant
disclosures in respect of the impairment assessment
of goodwill in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

IoA 818 7 % T IR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets)

Yy ~ W7 B ik i (€395 1 /1 R B s vt )

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note
4 and the disclosures of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2 ARG BAS HR N R EA Al ST AN HE S IR 28 A9 1 AR B
Bfak16%3E ~ Mchs KB (BLIE G REE ) 1% -

Management performed impairment assessments of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets by comparing the carrying values with their value-
in-use to determine the amount of impairment loss that
should be recognised for the year.

EHECY BEBNYSE - WS Kk LR R
G AT ARG > 585 2 0 1% SH R i (e B o P
(EUAH HLABEAR i 7 4F A ME Tl R Y el (L s 4R 7 -

We identified assessing impairments of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit
matter because of the significant judgement and estimation
required to be exercised particularly in respect of
estimating terminal growth rates, future revenue, future
cost of sales and other operating expenses, the discount
rates applied and also because of the selection of these
assumptions could be subject to management bias.
A A ZE ~ MRS B Bt L e (o HE S 9 s A
i Pl 27 — TE B S A A% R TH - )5 e iR ZEAE R
fliwt > LHEABRAKABRR - RAWA - RREE
AR B A K8 B S L R i Y R 3R 28 i Al 5t > 8 el 7R
%S B Y R A B i SRS o
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ToH o o A% 2 0 (A7)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRATY #2520 o i L O O % T IR

Our audit procedures included:

A B TR (45

- assessing value-in-use calculation methodology
adopted by management;

— PR B AR 0 (R (75905

- assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, terminal growth rate
and discount rate) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

—  MRARIAME SRS AT IR T MR A ARG (|
FEECE MR ~ K AR AT BB 195 B
K

—  checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-
in-use calculation in the management’s impairment
assessment.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
1 1 8 Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

Tong Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P06231
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o8 /e H {ih 2 i ik i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 % £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

Continuing operations

Revenue

Alcoholic beverage distribution and
miscellaneous business

Food and beverage business

Dividend income from listed equity
instruments

Loan interest income

Provision of children education services

Provision of financial services

Total revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit
Other income, other gains and losses
General and administrative expenses

Fair value loss on financial assets through

profit or loss
Impairment loss of goodwill
Share of loss of a joint venture
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Loss for the year
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Notes

g

18
21

10

2020 2019
- e 22 ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ek com T
(Restated)
()
14,224 12,314
106,926 68,793
101 86
5,901 8,476
4,287 5,427
5,433 1,816
136,872 96,912
(50,685) (34,171)
86,187 62,741
(3,780) (43,130)
(100,080) (100,266)
(3,457) (5,634)
- (2,967)
- (1,732)
3,795) (2,021)
(24,925) (93,009)
(757) (132)
(25,682) (93,141)
(2,843) (12,372)
(28,525) (105,513)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Change in fair value of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of foreign operations

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Change in fair value of equity instruments

at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Loss for the year attributable to owners

of the Company:
— from continuing operations
— from discontinued operation

Loss for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests:

— from continuing operations

— from discontinued operation

Total comprehensive expense
for the year attributable to:

— Owners of the Company

— Non-controlling interests

moRER

H fth %2 i &5 26 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Notes
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2020 2019
CERORE SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T
(Restated)
(K&H41)
158 (164)
(400) (209)
427) -
(669) (373)
300 (2,072)
(369) (2,445)
(28,894) (107,958)
(25,654) (93,118)
2,799) (11,093)
(28,453) (104,211)
(28) (23)
(44) (1,279)
(72) (1,302)
(28,525) (105,513)
(28,784) (106,690)
(110) (1,268)
(28,894) (107,958)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2020 2019
RCOEE —E -4
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
R 5T T i i TH
(Restated)
(&)
Total comprehensive expense for the A/ B HEG A FE A A 4E B
year attributable to owners of the 4TI P S AT -
Company:
— from continuing operations — 3 B R R (25,558) (95,597)
— from discontinued operation — 3 H B I 58S RS (3,226) (11,093)
(28,784) (106,690)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Al
(Restated)
(K& )
Loss per share (534 Ei] 15
— for continuing and discontinued —FHEREEBT X
operations B LR S
Basic HA (18.59) (68.10)
Diluted g (18.59) (68.10)
— for continuing operations — R AR 2B
Basic FEAR (16.76) (60.85)
Diluted T (16.76) (60.85)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Investment in a joint venture
Loans and interest receivables
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Other assets
Deposits and other receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trust bank accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other borrowing
Current tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net assets

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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Notes

Bt &

16
18
19
21
26

22A

23
27

24
25
26
27
22B

28
28

29
30

32

32

2020 2019
TR TR —E A
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T BT
38,613 13,340
17,233 17,233
500 500
405 10,056
6,095 9,587
255 230
8,341 8,383
71,442 59,329
1,510 1,036
55,944 12,572
25,615 56,749
11,445 15,915
18,125 21,247
23,346 10,689
35,597 29,689
171,582 147,897
59,589 31,716
10,016 -
246 87
31,131 19,416
100,982 51,219
70,600 96,678
142,042 156,007
31,893 17,468
110,149 138,539
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

o Wil 15 R 3R 76 (48)

At 31 December 2020 j* — 3 ZEFEf—H ~+—H

Capital and reserves BA B it i
Share capital JBeA
Reserves (T

Equity attributable to owners AN A NEALRESS
of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEHE B A

Total equity BE 75 4831

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 293 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

EH
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
Rz

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
1 2 6 Annual Report 2020

2020 2019

TR TR TEJUE

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
R W T
33 1,530 1,530

34 107,236 135,196
108,766 136,726

1,383 1,813

110,149 138,539
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Balance at [ January 2019

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Reclassification adjustment upon
disposal of equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Share consolidation (Note 33(1))

Balance at
31 December 2019

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Reclassification adjustment upon
disposal of equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Amount transferred to written off
accumulated loss (Note 34)
Disposal of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary group (Note 10)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
(Note 35)

Balance at
31 December 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — &~ F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTEH MEL
Fair value
Foreign ~ through other Attributable
PRC Share currency comprehensive to non-
Share Share  Contributed Capital statutory options  translation income  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
#IAR
Rl A
i M Hekm R
Rk Rl AARE  EARE Gl BRERE  WURE  RERE  ZdER it R it
HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT EETT MTT dWTx #WTx #BTx Bkt BT #gx #iTr #Tx ElTx
12042 160,109 153,551 61,545 873 - 897 (28462) (117339) 13416 3081 46497
- - - - - - - - (104,211) (104.211) (1,302) (105,513)
- - - - - - (198) 2.281) - (2419) 34 (2445)
- - - - - - (198) 2.281) (104211) (106,690 (1,268) (107958)
- - - - - - - 2974 (26974) - - -
(10712) - 10,712 - - - - - - - - -
1,530 160,109 164,263 61,545 873 - 699 (3,769) (248524) 136,726 1813 138,539
- - - - - - - - (28453) (28453) M) (28,525)
- - - - - - (231) (100 - (331) (39 (369)
- - - - - - (231) (100) (28453) (28,784) (110) (28,894
- - - - - - - 840 (840) - - -
- - (10,712) - - - - - 10712 - - -
- - - - 873) - - - LIR] - (320) (320)
- _ - - - 824 - - - 1) - 84
1,530 160,109 153,351 61,545 - 84 468 (3,029) (266,232) 108,766 1,383 110,149
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 % £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax:
— From continuing operations
— From discontinued operation
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Dividend income from fund investments
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of a direct non-wholly-
owned subsidiary group

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Share of loss of a joint venture

Impairment loss of trade receivables

Impairment loss of loans and interest
receivables

Impairment loss of goodwill

Reversal of impairment loss of trade
receivables

Write-down of inventories

Waiver of debts from suppliers

Impairment loss of amount due from
a joint venture

Loss on early termination of leases

Equity-settled share option expense

COVID-19-related rent concessions
received

Gain on disposal of financial assets
through other comprehensive income
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2020 2019
SERORE . CFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ek com T
(Restated)
(&&= 41)
(24,925) (93,009)
(2,843) (12,372)
3,796 2,026
(1,401) (854)
22,102 23,657
- (11)
- (1,903)
- 527
2,400 =
- (1)
11,849 44,636
- 1,732
- 8,797
4,310 6,201
- 2,967
(629) (12)
- 902
(1,000) (1,209)
- 172
10 —
824 =
(4,844) =
(187) —
9,462 (17,754)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continu&d)
GHoBREm=2%(58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables
Decrease in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in current account with a joint
venture
Decrease in loans and interest receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
payables
(Increase)/decrease in trust bank accounts

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from investments

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
through other comprehensive income

Proceeds of capital return from fund
investments

Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries

Payments for rental deposits

Net cash inflow on disposal of a direct
non-wholly-owned subsidiary group

Net cash inflow on disposal of a direct
wholly-owed subsidiary group

Repayment from a joint venture

Net cash used in investing activities
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2020 2019
“EORE CE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
i1 AW T T
(Restated)
(K&H41)
25) 2,937
470) 2,451
(43,128) (3,889)
5,582 (4,084)
3,122 3,584
- (226)
36,553 11,399
25,524 (8,858)
(12,657) 12,307
23,963 (2,133)
1,382 584
(3,780) (2,026)
(598) (216)
20,967 (3,791)
- 11
4,014) 9,187)
- 114
- (10,976)
3,537 2,124
- 555
- (2,300)
(3,784) (3,593)
1,093 -
- 2,297
15 720
3,153) (20,235)
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Consolidated Statergent of Cash Flows (Continued)
SGolREm=2%(58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2020 2019
RCOEE —E -4
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
P EE T i i TH
(Restated)
(REF))
Cash flows from financing activities MEHRHMEZIHERE
Proceeds from other borrowing HoAb At B pr A5 08 40 10,000 =
Repayment of lease liabilities & A AT E 40 (22,172) (14,891)
Net cash used in financing 3 ) Py ) < B 4
activities 12,172) (14,891)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BHEeRBE 5 EmRm,
cash equivalents (WA ) F# 5,642 (38,917)
Cash and cash equivalents R—H—HZBE&ERBE
at 1 January EEY 29,689 68,576
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ¥ [ 3 5 8 2 5 2815 45 266 30
Cash and cash equivalents RTA=Z1T—HZBE&ER
at 31 December BeSHY 35,597 29,689
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fr o il 15 ¥k 76 b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — &~ F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

GENERAL

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 September 2000 under the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

In 2014, the Company has been deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda and the change of domicile became
effective on 8 May 2014 (Bermuda time).

The shares of the Company are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Office AO1, 35/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) was involved in the following principal activities:

provision of loan financing in Hong Kong;

—  provision of financial services (including advising and
dealing in securities and asset management);

—  investment in listed and unlisted securities;

—  provision of food and beverage services;

—  alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business;
and

provision of children education services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Frawmework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the Amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

1 32 Annual Report 2020

Y BT T e R 5T A o S 5 e o
e S0 (78 o8 B 25 e o R S0 D)

TP 74 4 JBE 5 ) A 28 2 A i B s o
e RT A

JAAAEJE > A B2 1 Ll A A T
Bk E REMEEGSHAA g
([ 7 & wt B 2> 67 1) B 1) 7k B
5 i ot Y R e S AR A AE ZR Y SR Y
ERT A KT 51 2 i B 25 i ot 1 JI Y
BRTA > ARERTTN % _FF—
H— 22 1% B a0 4F 12 3 ] 5 il
AR

TG EHEAE ERRER
LA s et
8 (BRIA)

i s it e S
FIEERTA)

7o s 5 i A HE
ot - HEgHf
HEHI 3955 [
7 F s o e
RIS 798 (BRTA)

ES R

GBS S h &

BEAh > A £E 1 L 4R B T A ik B 5
o HERISE 1658 (B RTAS) B 2L AR
I B3 AR B A < A

BR T SCH#CE Sh > AR R A
i PO ot ) e S AR A 2R Y
e 4B T A A i o s i o R I Y
ERT AN & S A 5 [ A AR 4 B KR
TEAR 8 2 PR T S R B B, 8%
S AR S5 i R T SR 40 R 2 T
HRBE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide
a new definition of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses
usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated
set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business (Continued)

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine
whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on
whether to apply the optional concentration test is available on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should
the Group make any acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in
the current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

U the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

U any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021;

U there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if
the changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has derecognised
the part of lease liability that has been extinguished by the
forgiveness of lease payments using the discount rates originally
applied to these leases respectively, resulting in a decrease in the
lease liabilities of HK$4,844,000, which has been recognised as
variable lease payments in profit or loss for the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Phase 2*
HKEFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments:

U update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

U add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to business
combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become
an associate of a joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments of Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

U specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) 1if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

U clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that
were produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
(such as samples produced when testing whether the relevant
property, plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the
proceeds from selling such items should be recognised and
measured in the profit or loss in accordance with applicable
standards. The cost of the items are measured in accordance with
HKAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or the lender in the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor
in order to remove any potential confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

U Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

U has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

U the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

U potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

U rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), or when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the
lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date;
or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same amount as
the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

1 46 Annual Report 2020

By B 5 e A R e e R
nt BUR (A7)

EEGEHBOR ()
KBGO ()

T WS FI i B T A
PRI AR TE s S RERD - I
NHIEA BRAP

o  ERBIEHEENKEM > UKIE
B AR I 22 PR B kB A
AR 5% A s g wh e R 2 1298
[ S8 ] R E st RS 19
S50 1R B Aa A JEsd et &

o WO T 2 el AR 2E PR E A
G B AT S B A 3R 22 PR
WS 7 < BBE 3 At sk 22 R AT B A
RS T H i W H AR %
i 0 2 S o Y B S 2 R By
Rk T (R SCERIEOR) 5

o HRIRTA U I Al HE U SR 55T
[FrfEEZ I RE EE KB
KR R ) B A R AR
B2 EE (B EHE) RiE
TEMERIE R 5 I

o HE AR AR AR O
7 b1 7 ok 5 ik A HE TGRS 16
) 2 BUEMERD Kt & > A
W i S REL A S e I 2 S L
B M@ R O B 121
HNAEH 5 o) B E E MK
EERFH RSN o IR E
He BELA B LB A (A I Y <
AR KRt > LTI LR
M B i S e AR LU AR B 22 A A
AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior
to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SHBOR (45)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEFBUE ()
Goodwill R

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGU)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any of the
CGU within the group of CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a CGU within a group of
CGU), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGU)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
joint venture is described below.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a
portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Any retained portion of an investment in a joint
venture that has not been classified as held for sale continues
to be accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint
venture.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction

of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

3.
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the customer controls as the Group performs; or

U the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when services
are rendered.

Commission from securities dealing are recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant contracts are executed.

Placing and underwriting commission are recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements or deal
mandates when the relevant significant acts have been completed
(i.e. when shares are allotted).

Clearing and handling fee income are recognised when the
services have been rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights
to receive payments have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Al BUSR (42
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEGHBOR ()
Leases HE

Definition of a lease T E ) EFe

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Excludes non-lease components

Non-lease components are separated from lease components on
the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

J the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

U any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

U any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Al BUSR (42
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEGHBOR ()
Leases (Continued) HE (#)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REE[FE L RN (45)

Right-of-use assets are presented within the line item of property,
plant and equipment

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

U the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

U payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at
the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT =FBE (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEFBUE ()

Leases (Continued) HE (#)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) NEE T E L ARTN (78)

Lease liabilities (Continued) MHERLE )

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a AEFRLL MENEN S EHEA

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) & (I 5 A A (5 P 4 7 1 AR I 3

whenever: )

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the o THMIESECH BT E R
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case SR A S . NI > FHEE
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the & A B WA i B 4G H
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the W 2 A HTRY I AL R &R 5T
date of reassessment. & A KM ST -

»  the lease payments change due to changes in market rental o MHEMKEHEST IS S A
rates following a market rent review/expected payment B4 AR A EE T
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the 4 T I A KA B T e B S )
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the ABLEDL R > B & & A5
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate. A ) e B B AR B B AR B R T AR

B A R o

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the AL A GRS BRI R AT E
consolidated statement of financial position. BEEY AHEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT SHER (45)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEFFBOR ()
Leases (Continued) HE (%)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) IRLE [BIE LR TN (45)

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change
is a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

U any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

U there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s joint venture.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those asset
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditures on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Government grants
relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from the
related expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income, other gains and losses”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Obligations for contributions to retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the PRC central
pension scheme, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRSs
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees after
deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT aHBCR ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEFBUE ()
Share-based payment arrangements TR 50 22

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.
The fair value of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods and services qualify for recognition as
assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities in a
net basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZLZAWMEHMEFMUILER FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT aHBCR ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEFBUE (E)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) Y~ R R R ()

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whether there is an indication that may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified. The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a cash- generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method for agricultural segment and on first-in, first-out for
food and beverage segment and alcoholic beverage distribution
segment. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT aHBCR ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEFBUE ()
Cash and cash equivalents B R &5 EY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, at
banks and securities brokers, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be required
to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial assets or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT =FBE (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEGFEIBOR (&)

Financial instruments (Continued) 2T A (4F)

Financial assets =l B

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets SRVEE MR EER R

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are RN SR 2 4 & HAR i

subsequently measured at amortised cost: FHRLA T & -

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose o RAIEEE R BB RS B
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and CEBHEANFEZEME

5 &

+  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash o BHRRLSINFEHMELEZ
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on & B 5y A4 Mo R
the principal amount outstanding. ERASFE -

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are R A 2 &R E E H A RN

subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive FAE (B FEA A A T Y AR (TR 2 fe

income (“FVTOCI”): AR A At 2w as |) =t

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose o R DIHUA A B A S
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash B REEE N E W2 EBR
flows and selling; and KNFFEZE&MERE : &
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AREMEEER.
“z-—=szg@ 175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

U it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset

that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI

as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

BEMBEMERREER TR
RFBOR ()

FREGHHBOR (4)

TR ()

& MEE ()
EREE SR HAR G R ()

Bk > A G2 [ AT AN AT fa [a] 4 e —
TEJECH% i 0 A B3 U (EREA
oAt 2 ThD Wi i R B 2 4 A DA R
NRBEEF ARG ARAA
R4 S AT PR SO D i i -

() RS ARA RFLE A

WA e 5 A w2
B R HAR A R fEEREA
A 4 T W 4R R R 2 BB T
H/MEWGIIATT = > FLE A
HE A S LR o FMLEIRA
T 3 <5 i 7 AR T (LR
FREAI ARG > MR B
HIEZ SMEE (30 B
Sh o HUHAR HBUE B RH 2 &
RV & > ALE A T
R W ) 2 A E
JEAS I B B M R o AR
B E < T 2 A5 B R b
W i EMEE A HBE
BEWE > AW B e
T B B R 1 s
PIHE > et < Al A AR R AT (L
JE FH B BRI A e

AREMEEER.
“m—mgrm 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
and loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit and loss with corresponding adjustments to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in revenue when there
are derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business
or in the “Other income, other gains and losses” line item
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other income, other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, loans and interest receivables, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, deposits and other receivables, trust bank accounts and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Al BUSR (42
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEGHBOR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) T A (4)
Financial assets (Continued) TG A (4)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) S RE A E (4E)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings should tailor to reporting
entity’s specific facts and circumstances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 365 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
1) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

(iii)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT =g (45)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEFFBOR ()

Financial instruments (Continued) T A (4)

Financial assets (Continued) ENEE ()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) A A R E (4F)

(iv) Write-off policy (v) s EOR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is A ERMER 3 50 8 F A ik
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe RS TR B H IR A B R AT (el
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of B (T 5E T EETE
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been Bl O AR E AR ) B (0 4
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy IR SR ) R K A S o AR T 4
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the (DA LA 5 Ay dE) > AL
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs L S REE o M ALEE
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject Wi [ F2 7 3 2% R R R (A
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery W) o O e 4 RE = T fE
procedures, taking into account legal advice where 32 B IETE B R AT IR o HHLEH
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. TR I R S TE o (T ff AR
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss. Wi [ SR IE AE 18 25 P AR o

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TEWEBEBENE = R
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability HHEEERNSE EEY
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the HWEAR > FEA B IR (A& A 7
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. FAR SR ) R A R B R
The assessment of the probability of default and loss B o FEAMER KB AIRIRTY
given default is based on historical data adjusted by LA AR S I I R R R R 1Y
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects JE SR R R, - TEIE B R
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is AR T Ay Pz ke 4T S R M =R T
determined with the respective risks of default occurring S 4 EE o EHTIARE TN A AH
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in JE 25 % SR\ B 1T 7B E o AN R
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision FARTATRER ik > At e
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss R 5T R WA MR ok ) T A s
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is o EhFER R ARG EER
available without undue cost or effort. B o M PR AT R LY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables and loans and interest receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying amount
of these debt instruments. Such amount represents the
changes in the FVTOCI reserve in relation to accumulated
loss allowance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Al BUSR (42
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEEGHBOR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) T A (4)
Derecognition of financial assets AR iR 2 B

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL

or (iii) contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZAMBEHEHRMULETE FEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (4E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEFFIBOR (4)
Financial instruments (Continued) £ T H (45)

ERA R TR ()

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) N B EF AR 2 4 /A

(#)

A financial liability is held for trading if: LA B - & A R T B S

e -
* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of o EETATAEINEER A
repurchasing it in the near term; or 179

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making; or

it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading (or contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination) may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities that
contain embedded derivatives, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining the amount
to be presented in other comprehensive income. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
accumulated losses upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, other
borrowing and lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability
A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group.

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Recognition of deferred taxation

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses of approximately HK$Nil (2019:
HK$4,717,000) arising from subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which are available for setting off against future
taxable profit of that subsidiary and due to expire within one
to five years and estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$60,063,000 (2019: HK$31,148,000) available for offset
against future profit that may be carried forward indefinitely due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are less than or more than expected, a material reversal or
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings/past due analysis as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportably
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables (Continued)

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the loan
portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models. Management
assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables have
increased significantly since their initial recognition and apply a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their ECL. The Group
is required to exercise judgement in making assumptions and
estimates when calculating loan impairment loss, including any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant observable
data that reflects current economic conditions.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and loans and interest receivables, are disclosed in Notes 25 and
26.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the
asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$38,613,000
(2019:HK$13,340,000), after taking into account the impairment
losses of approximately HK$11,849,000 (2019: HK$44,636,000)
in respect of property, plant and equipment that have been
recognised respectively during the year. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment, is disclosed in
Note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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REVENUE

S.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Continuing Operations

Revenue

Alcoholic beverage distribution and
miscellaneous business

Food and beverage business

Dividend income from listed equity
investments

Loan interest income

Provision of children education services

Provision of financial services
— Commission from securities dealing
— Placing and underwriting commission
— Bonds commission
— Interest income from securities clients

— Clearing and handling fee income
— Asset management commission

A
A BB 8 S M 6B

B i R s
b AR 2 BB A

BB A
SR G O R
PR 4 Pl AR 5
— B G4
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— &4
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FERBEH
2020 2019
“EROERE F A
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T
(Restated)
(KHES)
14,224 12,314
106,926 68,793
101 86
5,901 8,476
4,287 5,427
3,026 1,165
98 33
52 34
1,824 339
294 231
139 14
136,872 96,912
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

—  Money lending segment comprises provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong;

—  Financial services segment comprises advising and dealing
in securities and asset management;

—  Securities investment segment comprises investment in
listed securities;

—  Food and beverage segment in Hong Kong and Singapore;

—  Alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business
comprises distribution of imported craft beer, sales of
premium wine and whisky; and trading of miscellaneous
goods in Hong Kong; and

—  Kindergarten or pre-school education business.

An operating segment regarding agricultural business in
the PRC was discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported below does not include any amounts for
this discontinued operation, which is described in more detail in
Note 10. Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
Singapore.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
from continuing operations is presented based on the location of
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of assets.

Revenue from
external customers

5y RER (4
il it R}

AR I 2 B S R A s BRI
B o

AL R [ RS AN E T
WA E R T T MBS o
AR B 2 IR T R B T R
FAAEHIF IR

Non-current assets (Note)

REINRE R ZBA FE By & (R 5T)
2020 2019 2020 2019
TROFE X NF SROFRE CFUE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT e R
(Restated) (Restated)
(KHES) (RKES])
Hong Kong T 127,719 94,597 57,774 37,473
Singapore HFms 9,153 2,315 6,913 457
136,872 96,912 64,687 37,930

Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to the discontinued operation,

financial instruments and other assets.
Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Nil) are government grants obtained from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region supporting

the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the Group had

to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not to reduce

employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of

time. The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the ESS

for the year ended 31 December 2020.

7. OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HABWCA ~ Fofllias g E
2020 2019
TR —EF N
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
(Restated)
(RESI)
Continuing operations FRAE R B
Bank interest income SRATRLE A 84 107
Interest income from a joint venture B EH—H AR EIRA 93 249
Dividend income from fund investments  FE&#E 2 B EIA - 11
Loss on disposal of property, HEYIE - 7 Rkt 2 e
plant and equipment - (508)
Impairment loss of loans and interest JRE Wi B 3 % B, 2 WA R 18
receivables (4,310) (6,201)
Impairment loss of trade receivables JRECHR 3K 2 B s 4R - (970)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HH S BB A m) 2 i A - 1
Bonds interest income &5 FLE A 786 329
Interest income from other receivables oAt E MO IE R B A 438 168
Impairment loss of amount due from a MR — RSB THZ
joint venture BB R - (172)
Impairment loss of property, W - B okt 2 B s 1R
plant and equipment (11,849) (42,922)
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition U5t — 1Bt > 7] 2 i fE i H
of a subsidiary g - 1,903
Reversal of impairment loss of trade JRE S B R 2 i s 4 4% [
receivables 629 12
Government grant (Note) BUM A B (B 5E) 6,767 -
Loss on early termination of leases s S| ik opd) <Fi=| (10) =
Management fee income ERLEU PN 957 =
Gain on disposals of financial assets at IR B R A oA A2 T
fair value through other comprehensive Wit 2 <5 B S 2 AR
income 187 =
Sundry income HETE A 1,733 2,225
Consultancy and referral fee income LT SIE <L ON 900 2,933
Net foreign exchange loss BEE 51, e 1, 1 4 (185) (295)
(3,780) (43,130)
Note: Among the government subsidies, approximately HK$3,146,000 (2019: FRtGE = R A B I o 4 kB 3,146,0000C (=%

—IJLAR ) 7 o R 4T B [ B
F1 B 58 i < JEUS PRt 2w (T PR
) AR AR F SRR B 34 194
B o MRERORERT ] - AL F TR
o PR % 56 Al B AR 38 < B ST > SIETERR
S I3 [R] 19 08 5 AR B > A E
KPR o AERMPEE T _F4F
ToA=ZtT - HIEFECBETABR
BT ZHE o

BREMBEHRL A
“E_EHHH

203



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

8. FINANCE COSTS 8.

Continuing operations

PR

Interest on lease liabilities & A EA 5
Interest on other borrowing HoAth A BB
Finance charge 8 %
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.
Continuing operations FREE BT
Current tax: AU IE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax B AR
Under/(over)-provision in prior years: BB AR,
GERERAM) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax s R

Total income tax expense recognised in

profit or loss

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
204 Annual Report 2020

TR 4t AR P AR B S 4

W AR
2020 2019
SEROEE SR
HK$°000 HK$’000
i AW BT T
(Restated)
(&)
3,352 2,014
436 =
7 7
3,795 2,021
P 15 Bt BH 52
2020 2019
TR TR —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
i3 AW BT T
547 231
210 (99)
B 757 132




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the qualifying group
entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

9.

Fi 4 B8 B 2 ()

WZFE—NFE=ZH+—H  F
S e T — LR (BR])
(BET79) IR ([ HRPIEE]D) -
FL5 | A A il R A5 4 BE o ARl
RN -FE—/NFE=ZH -+ /\HEZ
By A I N S H TR R R o AR
PR AR AR B GE  GEEE
I %) B 7 2,000,000 G ik A
Fic 8.25% 1) i R A B - 177 e 4t s e
2,000,000 1) i F A54% 16.5% HI B %
BB o AT A AT R A5 BUE A 1Y
S VB 2 Ui R A A A4 16.5% 2 1
— Bl R ELBLIE -

RIE > A A% 42 B B 1 5 s A1l A B
T 5k s %62,000,000 7T 2 fif 51 HE R
Tt i IR 268 25% 5144 » i ik iR
5 152,000,000 7 2 Ak 7 E BB s Al
i %16.5%%1 & o

H A w] R L A 2 BLTE S 4% A B
FIEHE R BUAT B ARG o

AREMEEER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

9.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
206 Annual Report 2020

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before tax from continuing operations

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of share of loss of a joint venture

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax loss previously not
recognised

Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior
years

Income tax of concessionary rate

Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Income tax expense for the year
(relating to continuing operations)

9. PRGBS (A7)

HRAR -

A A FRARACE 260 2 BRBLAT 5 1R

B EBRLZR16.5% 5tHE 2
BiIE (ZF— LA 1 16.5%)

VORIl P i P ks %
IR WA Z LS 7 2

MM — & B R
BB

KT MR YRR
BLBS

R TR Z BB iR 2
BB

Bl DR T #lERS 2 BB 1R

BB AR,
(EEAEEA)
EEBLRZ T FH
TEHAth F] EE HE I A2 2
Wi 2 RIS Bl e 2 s 2

A TN PSR BA 52
(BB B A )

AR 2 B A B S B AR 1R A
HAth 2 T A i % 2 R A 1B 2

2020 2019
TR —F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 AW BT T
(Restated)

(&)

(24,925) (93,009)
(4,113) (15,346)
2,531 11,738
(659) (118)

- 286

879 179

2,094 3,769

- (67)

210 99)

(185) (185)

- (25)

757 132




10.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

10. CDRIEBBER

Agricultural business

On 22 April 2020, the Company, as vendor, and Mr. Yang
Kaijun (“Mr. Yang”), an individual who is a shareholder of
Tony China Limited (“Tony China”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, as purchaser, entered into the sales and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to purchase,
and the Company agreed to sell, (i) the sale shares, representing
all the equity interest in Tony China and East Shine Group
Limited (“East Shine”), a wholly owned subsidiary, (collectively
known as the “Targets”), held by the Company, and (ii) the
sale loan, representing all the shareholder’s loan owing by
Tony China to the Company as at completion, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,152,000.

The Targets and its subsidiaries in the PRC (the “Tony China
Group”), principally engages in manufacturing and distribution
of feedstock products and related activities. Tony China and East
Shine together directly or indirectly hold 100% of the equity
interest in each of the other members of the Tony China Group.
Immediately prior to completion, Tony China was owned as to
90% by the Company and as to 10% by Mr. Yang whereas East
Shine was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The completion of the disposal took place on 22 April 2020, and
the Group has ceased to hold any equity interest in each member
of the Tony China Group and each member of the Tony China
Group has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

JRSEEH

AZFE_FRENHA A ZH > AL
w (fE 25 5 07 ) BiAg $6 SR 564k ([ 1
etk ) (R R B A RA R (3R
A1) (— IR 2GR @ A R 2 JBR)
(TERE ) WIS B E ek - 981
B 7[R 2 MR AL A R E S G
R NN S R S
J% East Shine Group Limited ( [ East
Shine |) (—[H 2 &M B A7) (S
[HEEAT ) 2 2R > K Gi) 8
B By A 58 LR B R A
A 2 AR - HEAAE S s T
1,152,0007T °

H AR 2w B H Hp g 2 ] (1 3R
B2 |) 2 A A E Ko B R R
i S A B 7S o BRI K East Shine
A 30 R W R A AR 4R [ A
% BB S 71 100% B RE o B4 52
FRCRT > HOA) B AR 2 7 A 90% HE 4
Ko MG e A BEA 10% HE %5 > T East
Shine Z4 A/ 7 2 2 & Bt B 22 ) o

HEFER T _FFNA —+ =
H 52 - AL B O A FEA A
25 1 B s ) A AT BECHE > T SRR
LEHSRERNFRCAHAERRFZ
i) A

BREREEERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&
10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. BRILBEBE ()

PRHEH > HEREEBZERE

The assets, liabilities and loss on disposal of agricultural business

as at the date of disposal are as follows: BfELERT
HK$’000
BT T
The net assets disposed of are as follows: EHEEETFEIT
Property, plant and equipment Wy ~ W Dot 1,367
Trade receivables JREMCHR K 368
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 ~ TE A ZE S HoAth e i 208 2,561
Cash and cash equivalents Bl M &% EIHE 59
Shareholder’s loan JBE B (560)
Trade and other payables and accruals JRE AT WK B LAt JRE A 3k T % T 2 (31)
Lease liabilities iEN= =i (25)
Net assets disposed of B EEEFE 3,739
Loss on disposal: B R
Consideration A 1,152
Non-controlling interest FE ¥ R 2 320
Shareholder’s loan disposed of OB R AR (560)
Net assets disposed of B S E e (3,739)
Release of foreign currency translation 175 0] S B M T
reserve 427
Loss on disposal & 1R (2,400)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZBLE A THE
Cash consideration e E 1,152
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of ¥ : & 2 Bl& L BlG&EEY (59)
Net cash inflow B R WAL | 1,093

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
208 Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10.

The loss for the year from the discontinued agricultural business
is set out below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have
been restated to re-present the results of the agricultural business

as discontinued operation.

Revenue

Cost of sales

Other income, other gain and losses
Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Finance cost

Loss on disposal

Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Loss for the year from discontinued
operation includes the following:

Depreciation

Directors’ emoluments

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss of trade receivables

Interest on lease liabilities

Cash flows from discontinued operation
Net cash outflow from operating activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash outflow

A

5 A

oA~ HoAthlicds J iR
S 15 B 73 8 AR

— B AT 32

SA B A

H & R

EL A IR 588 2605 2 4F R 1R

IR AL
AR FHA N
EEdiigl &

DA% IR 588 SR B Z 4R N 1R
WH T HIFIE

I

L

AR ARAR I E LR

EA IR 28 SR ()

E A% 1k J2 36365 1 4F T4 s R 8
o &R H g M H A A T iR SR P
BT E > LU R 6 EHS
SRR 201 5 E A LR AR S

Period from
1 January to

YIS BB Kkt < 1R

JREMSR K 2 B s 1

HEREHE
CRIEEEREH B SRR

K TE BB B U TR
Pl BB B < L e AR

Bl it T

22 April 2020 2019
ZEROFRE
—H—HZ%
MH—-+=H

1 SR

HK$°000 HK$’000

i1 T VEi o T

1,375 15,232

(1,446) (15,842)

246 (10,163)

(52) (175)

(565) (1,419)

(1 (5)

(443) (12,372)

(2,400) -

(2,843) (12,372)

(2,799) (11,093)

(44) (1,279)

(2,843) (12,372)

130 1,019

- 68

33 166

- 19

- 7,827

1 5

(566) (191)

(126) (39)

(692) (230)

BReNREEIRAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Continuing Operations

Loss for the year from continuing
operations has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Employee benefits expense
(excluding directors’ emoluments)

— Salaries and other benefits

— Contributions to retirement benefits

schemes

Equity-settled share-based payments

Directors’ emoluments

Total staff costs

Cost of inventories recognised as an

expense (included in cost of sales and

services)
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange loss
COVID-19-related rent concessions

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 1 O Annual Report 2020

11.

A FERE IR ASHNBREIA
(&%) T 3458

1 B A B 52
(G EME)

— i S A AR A

— RARAE A F ] 3t 3k

DA SBEAS & SR B A5 K

EHM

i B A AR

RS B S 2 A7 B A
(FEASIE SRS A )

% B i 3

Wi ~ s KB

41N MEE 52, 1M 15
T e S B A R A <

A4 B s 4B
2020 2019
SERORE CEUE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T T
(Restated)
(58 E )
44,537 39,231
2,517 1,584
658 =
4,041 4,481
51,753 45,296
49,998 31,824
968 1,015
21,972 22,638
185 295
(4,844) -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the

directors of the Company and the chief executive are as follows:

2020

Executive directors

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chairman)
(Note (iii))

Mr. Lam Chun Kei

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief Executive Officer)

(Note (iii))

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Hin Hang

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hisen

Mr. Hung Kenneth

e e 22

PITES
BRI ()

(Bif ki)
NCE i

SR (FTBUEHR)

(i3 i)

BT
BT ek
2T
WHRR LS

RA.EHFRFEETEANEME

BB A ] 45 % AT
B B 2 B R s T -

Salaries, Contributions
allowances  to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
Bl R RICER DURBESSE
f ez oyl At WRHER R AL AL it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
- 2,040 18 83 - 2,141
- 598 18 - - 616
- 823 18 83 - 924
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
360 3,461 54 166 - 4,041
REAMRBEAMRALD

“E_EHHH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors of the Company and the chief executive are as follows:

2019

Executive directors
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul

(Chief Executive Officer and Chairman)

(Note (ii))
Mr. Lam Chun Kei
Mr. Ng Ting Ho

Non-executive director
Mr. Zhou Jing (Note (i)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Hin Hang

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hisen

Mr. Hung Kenneth

Notes:

PTESR
SRS

(TR TR

(B aEGi))
M AEE
R

FHfTE S
JRlh e ()

B
BT etk
et
HEBSEE

12A. EH R ERTBA B & (A7)

EAT BB A A RS H L E AT
BN B Z Ml wE s an s

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  toretirement  Equity-settled
and benefits benefits ~ share option  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
B Rl BIREF DURESE
e HiEf] atBIfkE R By EAL Xl
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
- 2,640 18 - - 2,658
- 576 18 - - 594
- 810 18 - - 828
109 - - - - 109
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
469 4,026 54 - - 4,549
i
O  AEREAEER F—IUEAH A

(1) Mr. Zhou Jing was resigned as a non-executive director and chairman on

14 June 2019.

(ii))  Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul was appointed as the chairman of the Company
with effect from 14 June 2019.

(iii))  Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has ceased to be the chief executive officer and

Mr. Ng Ting Ho was appointed as chief executive officer with effect from

1 December 2020.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS

12B.

(Continued)

The emoluments shown above for executive directors were
mainly for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The fees for the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. No inducement
payments to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office were paid or payable to any director or the chief
executive officer for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

LOANS, QUASI-LOANS AND OTHER DEALING IN
FAVOUR OF DIRECTORS

Amounts due from a director

12A. EH R ERITBA B & (A7)

12B.

SO R B AT 3 S P < T B
SEMANF RAEEEG R
B A B o JF AT o S OB L IR

T M S R FE AL A
EHAR -
REBEE_F_FEL_F—F

ToHA=ZtT—HIEFE > MRES
i‘zi%ﬁiﬂlkéﬁiﬁjﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁ
T 922 PF o IR —F T4
E=F—NE+ZHA=+—HI4F
JE > Sl 4 16 4T o] 3 2 B E ZAT LA
B S SRR AHE AT i A A 4 1 =
AAREE J Ry 2 48 B B 1 -

JAAAETE > 35 T 3 S 0 EF 10 A 4R
1 i A Al 5 T R A A 2 W) 22 M M e

éﬁ%f;ﬁ%ﬂ&% o BERBCHERT ) 2w
B HR G5 A PSR 35 -

VA# 3 2 32 55 NI B - MR
B A2 5

W W — 44 # K H

Maximum amount outstanding

Asat during the year ended
BET HHILERER
i Y S
1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2020 2020 2019
“ENE “E N “RTRE e e 22 “EE
“H=H +ZA=Zt—H +ZAZR FZAZEH FSAETH
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T il S T
Mr. Lam Chun Kei WA - - 1,028 1,035 =
These amounts are non-trade related, unsecured, carried interest AR A B By e - EHEAR

rate of 9% per annum and repayable on 1 March 2021.

FEO%FF Rt B A & . —4F
=H—HfE®E -

BREMBEHRL A
“E_EHHH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year

included, two directors (2019: one director) of the Company,

details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 12 above.

Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three

(2019: four) highest paid employees who are neither a director

nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Fr R L E YR F
MY IR IEAL
AR PR A w3 Ak

13.

4 g v i R B

AR A T4 s i R B
o ZZ(ZEFJUE T —R)AAK
YNCIE: & RS o S
SCMEEL2 o« RAFEERT =4 (CF
—JUEE - UA) G FA A R E S
BATHN B 2 = % 8 B 2 < 40
T

2020 2019
“EOEE SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
4,664 5,385

54 72

4,718 5,457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Emolument bands P 45 5
Nil — HK$1,000,000 o 2 5 %1,000,000T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 #1,000,001 T E
#H1,500,0007C
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #%1,500,001 T E
75 1:2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 #:12,000,001 T E
#¥52,500,0007C

During the year, certain non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group under the share option scheme of
the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2019: HK$Nil).

13.

14.

Tt b e B (A7)

B 6 LA 48 1l 9 A 24 ] s
H RE R BE T

2020 2019
SROEE F UF
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

- 1
2 2
1 1
3 4

AN > 5 T IR ER IR
FTBUN B B e B R B AR A 2
SRR > AR S A 4R B g
) AR 55 T 45 s PO HE o B PR Mt
BIREAE HOR &7 5 B PR I T3S -

958

7 JEE 37 48 1] A 2 ) 2 s B SRR
e BEIRA IS - B R IR ISR
INEEEIRAE AT (ZF—JU4E « i

AREMEEER.
“z-—zsz7@ 21D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. #REHE (A7)
From continuing and discontinued operations R E RS R ORI RS
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable AR F A N REAG B B A T i
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: s 8 T AR DL BT A
Loss y 71
2020 2019
e e 22 —F-hAE
HK$’000 HK$’000

i T T T

Loss for the year attributable to owners At BRI A R R
of the Company for the purpose of basic AN FHEA NEAG AR AR

and diluted loss per share 518 (28,453) (104,211)
Number of shares Mt % H
2020 2019
TRCORE CENE
000 000
T Tk
Weighted average number of ordinary A BRI R R
shares for the purposes of basic and 288 R0 R 4
diluted loss per share 153,029 153,029

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from

continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
Less: Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company from
discontinued operation

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company for the purpose of
basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations

A FI A NG AR A s 1R

W KA ERIRRE S 2
AN FHEA NREAS
FNEBIR

FHASR B RERRE SE
BRI S i 1R

IR ()

Pk fit-e 37

EEESF b S e N/NTIE XS DN
B A S AR I s 4 T AR A

AN TR NHEALAF A 8

TR
RS RN
2020 2019
TR TR —F U
HK$°000 HK$’000
T VE i o T
(Restated)
(&)
(28,453) (104,211)
2,799 11,093
(25,654) (93,118)

AREMEEER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 15. #REHE (A7)
From discontinued operation KHDOKIEBEEH
2020 2019
TRTRAE —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Loss per share: (5313 2
— Basic (HK cents) — A () (1.83) (7.25)
— Diluted (HK cents) — T GBIl (1.83) (7.25)
2020 2019
TERTRAE ZE U
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T oo
Loss: e
Loss for the year attributable to owners of 52K B O 4 IE & EH 2
the Company for the purpose of basic and A [ i i 48 2
diluted loss per share from discontinued A AR N AL AE NS48
operation (2,799) (11,093)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 did not assume the exercise of
potential ordinary shares granted under the Company’s share
options scheme outstanding at year end since their exercise
would have an anti-dilutive effect.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Cost
Balance at | January 2019

Additions

Disposals

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020
Additions
Disposals/write-off
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10)
Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 January 2019

Provided for the year

Disposals

Impairment loss in profit or loss

Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Provided for the year

Disposals/write-off

Impairment loss in profit or loss

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries

(Note 10)
Effect of foreign currency exchange
difference

Balance at 31 December 2020

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December 2020

Balance at 31 December 2019

A
e S il i

Kk

hE
BRI A 7 (IFE39)
EiEg g

FETZRAET-HR
gfizﬁ*ﬂ*EZ%%

$EiR

e /Hsh
HENE A (k1)

B ER YR

2 gl = |
25

Rt Bk

e Sy R i
Rl

i

b o
ExzEzyE

~EFZA=T-Bk
“RE-R-HZ8R
N
it /s
BRMZuEER
R A I

(Hf3E10)
(352 va 7

REZ-ZELZA=1-H
25

e

L
24

RE-AFAZ
24

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fn o Wil %5 ¥ e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

16. W3 ~ Wb Kkl

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Leased Leasehold Plant and office Motor
Lands Properties Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Rff - #E R
flgLi Lt By HAERERE  RRRBS  BAERA il it
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
(Note (i), (i)~ (Note i), ii)
(WEEG), D) (W3EG), )
1,032 21,781 5,864 8751 6,366 3410 3818 51,022
- 30,060 - 6,391 - 2,79 - 3947
- (750) - (683) - (379 (325) (2,137)
- 1274 - 2519 - 742 - 10,535
(18) 13 (109) (63) (130) 5 ) (303)
1,014 58,378 5755 16915 6,236 6,574 3490 98,362
- 56,525 - 283 - 1,191 - 60,539
- (18,306) - - - - - (18,306)
(992) (70) (5,643) (3.298) (6,102) (320) (81) (16,506)
22 m (112) (15) (134) 47 (V)] (1)
- 96,754 - 16425 - 7492 3407 124078
(169) (494) (4.284) (4612) (5,620) (1,668) (1,654) (18.501)
(1) (18,047) (156) (3.263) (457) (932) (781) (23.657)
- 500 - 518 - 126 292 1,49
- (31,701) (1,420) (7478) (283) (375 V)] (44.636)
3 (14) 105 50 124 4 4 276
(187) (49,756) (5753) (14725) (6,236) (6,222) (2,141) (85,022)
1) (19,093) - (1852) - (31) (119) (22,102)
- 18,141 - - - - - 18,141
- (11,030) - (710) - (109) - (11,849)
188 4 5,643 2710 6,102 30 81 15139
6 (83) 12 4 134 (16) 1 08
- (61,746) - (14473) - (6,408) (2838) (85,465)
- 35,008 - 1952 - 1,084 569 38,613
821 8,622 - 219 - kA 1,349 13,340
BREMBEFIRAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, after taking
into account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of term of lease or
5%
Over the term of the lease

Buildings

Leasehold lands/leased

properties
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of term of lease or
20%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33.33%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 10%-25%

(i) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

equipment)

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2020 )/ e 25
+ZH=1+—H
Carrying amount FRTE{E
As at 31 December 2019 B F A
+ZH=1+—H
Carrying amount FRTE{E
For the year ended BE_REE
31 December 2020 +ZHA=+—H
IR 5
Depreciation charge nEEM
Impairment loss recognised SR ERSEAIEL 7Eic
Exchange realignment E 5o, ]
For the year ended BRE_ZFAE
31 December 2019 +ZH=+—H
1A EE
Depreciation charge WELEH
Impairment loss recognised SR ERSEAIEL 7Eic
Exchange realignment E 5o, ]

16. W& ~ Wabs Bewkfli (4

EASE - s Kk IE H (LR R
RIBRME ) A E SRIETE T BI4E R G1HE

#rE -
M & I 55%
(DA 5 B 1)
FHE £~ FHEH
&Y
MEYEEE HEMH20%
(DA 5 5 E)
7 T A 10%
B~ B R 10%-33.33%
NG
1RH 10%-25%
G HRAREEGIADE - WE

Leasehold
lands

ML
HK$°000
BT T

827

(16)

21

(lg)

Bk tf)
AL 1 25 AR N

Leased
properties
IR/ S
HK$°000
BT

35,008

8,622

19,093
11,030
174

18,047
31,701
(1)

Total
At
HK$’000
i AT

35,008

9,449

19,100
11,030
158

18,068
31,701
(16)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 2 O Annual Report 2020



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

equipment) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Expense relating to short-term
leases

Expense relating to leases of
low-value assets, excluding
short-term leases of low value
assets

Variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of
lease liabilities

COVID-19-related rent concessions

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

JE HIRE B 22 A B B 52

EEEEEHRE

(R ERAE

G A E)
ZAHBHBASZ
Rt AHEA MG &

Z ] B E AR
T 2 TR R R A B L < 9
R B 40 i AR

ST R

16. W€ ~ Wps Kewk i (4

6 FH B ¥ (Gt A3 ~ B3

Bk ti) (4

AL ERARN (4)
2020 2019
EOEE CF N
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
362 2,247
- 504
60 130
(4,844) -
25,946 19,771
56,525 37,334

AREMEEER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

(@

(i)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. W3 ~ Wi Bt (48
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and (i) MHEEEGIADE - BFE
equipment) (Continued) Kkt (48)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, R e WA s REFEMEE
warehouses, and restaurants for its operations. Lease BRI T~ B N R EE
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 5 I o fHE A 4 IRE E IR A
years (2019: 2 years to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated UERSE(ZE—JLE : 2R
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different 54F)FTAL  FLE KT EAE R
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and FERE ARG o ALAE S AN A A5
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the AT o T i R FEL A R R
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines A A AT 48 [m] A ] AR R B IR > AR
the period for which the contract is enforceable. L e & #0026 B E B
)R] 5 AT R I o
Variable lease payments (i) WIsEMEN %
Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease REHENRNEEAFHEHE
payments or contain variable lease payments that are based A} 3B & He B EFE 1Y 10%
on 10% to 15% (2019: 10% to 27%) of sales and minimum F15% (—F—JL%F  10% &
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. 27% ) w5 1Y ] s R B AT K &
Some variable payment terms include cap clauses. The AR B 0 A [ R 1) S (IR AF AR
payment terms are common in restaurants in Hong Kong AT o 2T A A AR
where the Group operates. The amount of fixed and 5 BRAG K o 3% A5 A SR AE A
variable lease payments paid/payable to relevant lessors 45 [ S8 BT AE 1 7 S 2 TR L
during the year: TR o AEFNEAT AT
A B A B [ e KT
i
For the year ended 31 December 2020 e X _FFESf - H=F—
H IEEPE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
stores payments payments payments
i Bk 28 Il 5 5 K CIEI0F 4 o sk AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
i3 i3 i3
Restaurants without i n] S HH B AT
variable lease payments 2 %/ 13 15,673 - 15,673
Restaurants with variable A A] %8#FH & 1] 3k
lease payments ZAENE 2 2,272 60 2,332
15 17,945 60 18,005

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Con:cinu&d)
oM E e (55)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(ii) Variable lease payments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

16. W€ ~ Wps Kewk i (4

(i) VISR )

BEFNFLZHA=A1—

H IE

Number of Fixed Variable Total

stores payments payments payments

G SR [ 72 A5 3k CIE-ZDE- iy 4%

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T i oo aTH
Restaurants without e ] S FH S AT

variable lease payments g 8 10,912 - 10,912
Restaurants with variable A A] 55 FH & 3K 2

lease payments B 3 2,385 130 2,515

11 13,297 130 13,427

The overall financial effect of using variable payment
terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants
with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of restaurant
sales in future years.

50 P T 8 AR A A k) A4 B 5
HEE > HERRRNEES
JEE A W A A B A o AT A
<& B SCTRGG I A R A 2647 A A
R S B OB L A1 o

AREMEEER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  17. AZ & L EHE A 72 30

COMPANY
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the AR R > A 4B E] T E S A T
reporting period are set out below: ZREEEAR
Proportion of ownership interest held
by the Company
A% T ik i A .
Paid up issued 2020 2019

Place of incorporation/ share capital/ CRORE “E-NE
Name of subsidiary registration/operations registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

AEARE,/ ARHn
W 24l 4 7 AL /A T /LB A Hfk GEA HH# Mt FEEH
Bright Peak Investment Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
HUEREA R KRELTR IESH fila<eid

([EBELIE])

City Ally Holdings Limited (“City Ally”)  BVI US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
IR PR ] () KRELTR IESH fia<eid
Delight Sky International Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EREBARAT KRELTR 1% fiaceid
East Gain Enterprise Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Rt EARAH KRELTR 1% HEHER
East Shine Group Limited (Note (i) BVI USS1 - - 100% - Investment holding
East Shine Group Limited (fzk(i)) b i 1% BEHR
Eternal Speed International Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
KRB R KRELTR 1%L e
Fast Creation Group Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding

KRELTER EIH e
Golden Harvest Holdings Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding

KRELTER 15 figceid
Keen Profit Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEERARA KRELTER 15 figceid
Profit Network Asia Inc. BVI US$600 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding

b el 6007 e
Way Union Development Limited BVI USs1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
RHRRAR AT KRBELTER 15 B
Eternal Code Holdings Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
B RATR A ] RRBELTER 1% g e

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil %5 ¥ e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
Place of incorporation/
Name of subsidiary registration/operations
AEbARE,
W 7 447 R/
Happy Laughter International Limited BVI
ERBELTER
Star Kitchen Catering Group Limited BVI
ERREEMARAF ERBELTER
China Demeter Securities Limited Hong Kong
Bl HRAT ik
Delight Sky Finance Limited Hong Kong
ERMHARAT ik
Tony China Limited (“Tony China”) Hong Kong
(Note (i))
RAREARAR (A ) (Fik6) &
Amber Wealthy Holdings Limited BVI
ERBELTER
Town Ally Investment Company Limited ~ Hong Kong
IE B EAR AT ik
Way Union Finance Limited Hong Kong
R AR AR ik
Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”) Hong Kong
HAIRF T Tl A A A ik
([ WA T |)

Paid up issued
share capital/
registered capital
ArRcEt
Bk /M A

Uss!
1#0

Uss!
17

HK$103,000,000

T1103,000,00078

HKS$1,000,000
11,000,0007C

HK$40,655,000

T 1540,655,0007C

Uss!
1#70

HK$1

LAV

HK$100
10070

HKS$5,000,000

T15,000,0007C

Proportion of ownership interest held
by the Company
% i A R s e

2020 2019
=1 B

Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly

Hik Tl H# e

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- - 90% -

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

- 100% - 100%

17. Ao v R 2 7 Z w4 ()

Principal activities

FERH

Investment holding

fracidl

Investment holding

pracidl

Licensed to carry on regulated
activity in connected with
dealing in securities, advising
on securities and asset
management

FETHRERRE
RO R
ZEHETES

Money lending
A

Investment holding

Investments in securities

AAHE

Provision of administrative
services and investment in

securities

SRR B SR E A

Money lending

Distribution of alcoholic
beverage in Hong Kong and
PRC

B R B SRR

AREMEEER.
“z-sxrH 225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  17. A2 ®] L EHE A 5 2 2384 (47)

COMPANY (Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest held
by the Company
% B i e
Paid up issued 2020 2019
Place of incorporation/ share capital/ ZERIER “E-NE
Name of subsidiary registration/operations registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly ~ Principal activities
AEbARE, ARCEL
W 7 4 A /A T /B A Hik E3 H# M REEH
Nobel Education Organisation Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 51% - 51%  Provision of children education
(“Nobel Education”) services
AR REARAR Fi 115,000,007 Het iR B
([l HE ]
Star Kitchen Catering Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% = 100%  Food and beverage business
R (k) AR A ik b B e BRRERS
BLVDHK Pte. Limited Singapore $$100,000 - 100% - 100%  Food and beverage business
sk 1000008 15572 Rl BARE
Xiamen Dongyu Trading Company PRC US$4,500,000 - - - 90%  Investment holding
Limited* (Note (i), (i)
HMAEE 5 A RAR (GG () FE 4,500,000 2 ba e
Longyan Dongyu Bio-feedstock Company ~ PRC RMB18,000,000 - - - 904%  Trading, development and
Limited* (Note (i), (if)) manufacturing of feedstock
products
EATTREEYIRARAR i AR H18,000,0007C M ERZ RS W RERE
(HFEG) ~ (i)
Fuijian Oriental Unicorn Agricultural PRC RMB1,000,000 - - - 90%  Eco-breeding, animal
Company Limited* (Note (i), (ii)) pharmaceuticals and terminal
marketing of agricultural
products
RERATRERE S AREARAT  +H NRH1,00000078 LR B RRAE R
(W) » (i) ES g
& English names are translated for identification purpose only

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
both years.

Notes:

(1) The subsidiaries were disposed during the year. Further details are set out
in Note 10.

(ii)  The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned

17.

Aoy W) B 2 Wl Z WA (A7)

EREIIARF ZWE AT - EFE
YR ) NGRS 2 X S
ZHEBMBERE - EHEDS > WHS
H At 6 P8 2 ] 2 R I 4 T R A R
Tl -

% A1 4 J3E 1A AR B8 B JA 2 ) 2 8% 4T
{LfERS R

enterprises.

GOODWILL

Cost B

At 1 January w—H—H

Disposal of subsidiaries H 5 R A )

At 31 December Bt+=A=+—H

Accumulated impairment losses BiHE s

At 1 January w—H—H

Impairment loss recognised in the year A A e R (e 1
(Note 20) (Bf5E20)

Disposal of subsidiaries HE 5 R A )

At 31 December Wt H=+—H

Carrying amounts R i L

At 31 December wtHA=+—H

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in Note 20.

Wi -
() EREEMPE A ) B R AR BE T o
— R B EE10 -
Gi) 3% WA 7 DS R o 3 2 Tt
REM -
18. &
2020 2019
=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
35,308 35,308
(889) -
34,419 35,308
(18,075) (15,108)
- (2,967)
889 —
(17,186) (18,075)
17,233 17,233

A7 T TR (L B P 15 S R 20

i -

AREMEEER.
“x—mgrg 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

Trading rights 3 5 HE

Intangible asset comprised the eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group can use
to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights are
considered by the management as having indefinite useful lives
because they are expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The trading rights will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the trading rights with
indefinite useful life are allocated to the financial services
business cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment
assessment (Note 20).

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs for
impairment testing:

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution TEAGAIORL 7 8 26T 2
business R 4 A A

CGU in children education business
CGU in financial services business

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 2 8 Annual Report 2020

19.

20.

23 RS QCE P e XS
<5 IR BS 65 2 B < e A B - -

B & e
2020 2019
R TR “E A
HK$°000 HK$°000
il TN BT
500 500

e TE2 I LA R M 2 ST B2 A M 52
P52 55 2 BARRER o 52 o RESIR A
A 1 T A A R B WA B B T
Slf7 48 ] ¥R LAY PR o PR L
8 7o 52 oy WE R AT SRR T 68 I 4F 5
JEL IR 7% LU A 45 5 1 RS K 7 B
EWMA - XAV EERER
A IR R 2 FLtE A & 7 DA - A1
o Hoi A 4F KO A B R R WTH AT
REE R AEEA T I (BT o

ECE WK > BUBERE TS o B
4 FR A fik ARSI 2 X S W TS 0 B &
<5l A 5 S 2 B e AR AL (T B
sr R ) (FiEE20) -

BIEHE - BEEEMDE - W
B B i i 2 B < 2 B S YRl AV 1)
!

PR EL 40 T B B/ B
FraRfEB -

2020 2019
ECEE CF A
HKS$°000 HK$°000
i ATH BT
15,441 15,441
1,792 1,792
17,233 17,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING 20. fIiGHe s MEEERDE - W

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

In addition to goodwill above and trading rights set out in Note
19, property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets
and allocation of cooperate assets) that generate cash flows
together with the related goodwill and trading rights are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment
assessment.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based on
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation were those regarding the discount rate and growth in
revenue and direct costs during the year. Management estimated
the discount rate of 15.84% (2019: 16.42%) using pre-tax rate
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the CGU. Changes in selling price
and direct costs were based on past experience and expectations
of changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.5%
(2019: 3%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be higher
than its carrying amount.

No impairment loss of goodwill (2019: approximately
HK$2,967,000) had been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount.

P B i i 2 B < s A Lot Yol A
il (4

B 3 10 BT L0 52 55 W
5h > BTGV R WA  BOR K
e (LA ) ) e
51 Bl BB 7 8 52 S M
1A 5040 72 L O 17
{ECHFAY -

7 B e A AL 2 AT i [ R
e J H BB RS T

RS OB 3 85 38 05 2 B 4 e A B

A B 4 A B 2 A [ Wi 4 KR T A
A B A o (8 EE
SR EBARE T B A B AR ARG B R
DA RS A B 4 A S = R % o
3R (o B i ) 3k L R B 8 A
15.84% ( —F—JL4F 1 16.42%) > #%
b T A1) 256 5 B i T 35 3 5 s IR
BB 0 A DA S 3 4 7 A B R A
)RR o BEAE N B A 2 8 E) Ty
DA 7 8 i N v 35 T S ) o L o

o M LT B 20 1 A A L g
R AR S A B A B TR 2 Bl it &
TEH o RS B B R
H2.5% (= F— L : 3%) R e
RBETHEE -

R EREERE > EHER > I
FH R < AR B 22 AT (| i < A R
HIRH(HE -

EE-FZ R E L H=1—H
1 R P ek (B 1R (L
4 K 2,967,00000) FEAE G 1B 48
T A A T g R AR o

HHRL > EMTZFRE AT S
WA RE B N e R B A
37 9 R TR A 208 H T i ] < 3 o

AREMEEER.
“z-sxrm 229



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in children education business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based on
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation were those regarding the discount rate and growth in
revenue and direct costs during the year. Management estimated
the discount rate of 19.7% (2019: 18.54%) using pre-tax rate that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGU. Changes in selling price and
direct costs were based on past experience and expectations of
changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%
(2019: 3%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be higher
than its carrying amount. No impairment loss (2019: HK$Nil)
had been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2020.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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20. WIHRE - B EERVE - W

B Be it i - B < A4 LA Yol AV 1)
%‘it (/‘é’g)

GHEATRH R

AR B 4 i A LA 2 AT i [ 4 AR AR
WA EEF A EE - R EAER
B2 EEBFTIREE R Z A B
WA R K B A 2 Rk -
J& Al S RE B R 5 19.7% ( —F— L
4 1 18.54%) » TofH R B H R &
Iy [ A (B 2 T 35 WAV T B 4 e A B
P2 5 8 JEU B 2 BB HT A % o B AE
T B 4% AR 2 5880 T DA A 28 B I
T 5 T s o o S o

o (A R T2k B AR g it
HEZ B R AR SAF A B TH AL A5 2
B&m el o MasaEm 2 51
nECHEABENFHERERIR(—
T— I 1 3%) A -

R REERE > EHE LA
S 2B LA 2 T o (e T e L M
HIfH o B MR EE—F %
FE+ZH=+—HILFEELEFE
it 2 At 2 T Wi i % e ol (L s 12
(ZF— U - BHET) -

EHRLS o AT RS AET &
B R B A g B e E A A
P19 4R TR L A0 L T i [ <2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING 20. fIiGHe s MEEERDE - W

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in financial services business

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a period
of 5 years and pre-tax discount rate of 13.6% (2019: 19%). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a
steady growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%). The discount rates used
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant business. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and operating costs which are determined from past
performance and management’s expected market development.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be higher
than its carrying amount, no impairment loss (2019: HK$Nil)
was recongised for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount.

P B i i 2 B < s A Lot Yol A
il (4

< il IR 5 3 B 2 B 4 s A BEAor

AN 4 A B 2 ] i ] A A AR
B R EEFEES - MAEET)
R 5 DA 468 45 B g 1L v 22 5 4F 1A B 1B
TS 7y 3 e 2 B 4 3 TR K R B A
AEFZ13.6% (& —JUAE 1 19%) 7t
B oo SIERZ Ble g g 1
RR3% (—F—JLF : 3%) H#H -
ST FFY S 3R 2R I A B SE S 2 o e JaL
B o i B FH < Hofh 3 SRk
BUGFI WA LA B > a4
TS A S A > T UM AR
B % P TR A 2 T 55 8 o

BB R (3 5 - R A
B4 1 . 2 P M ] 0 7
MR - R % TN
= 1AL O R (0
(CF U EHETT) -

HREDS > AT R AT &
AT B 4 B 2 A ol B < A LA
P AR TR L A0 L T i (] S

BREREEERAD
“z-sgrw 231
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in provision of food and beverage of services

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based on
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation were those regarding the discount rate and growth in
revenue and direct costs during the year. Management estimated
the discount rate of 12% (2019: 12%) using pre-tax rate that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGU. Changes in selling price and
direct costs were based on past experience and expectations of

changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%

(2019: 2.5%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be lower
than its carrying amount. Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) of approximately
HK$11,849,000 (2019: HK$44,636,000) had been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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20. WIHRE - B EERVE - W

B Be it i - B < A4 LA Yol AV 1)
%‘it (/‘é’g)

PO £ S BORE SR B 2 Bl e AR B

(DA

AN 4 A BV 22 T i (] 4 A T AR
B R EE A EE - A EES
B2 EEBETIEE R Z QB
WA SR B B AR 2 Rk - R
JE ARG R B 12% (—F— LA -
12%) > Tofdi = B H A6 i e A
(B 2 T 55 A S B 4 s 2R A 2
%E%Z%ﬁmﬂﬁ BE K EE
BLA 2 5 ) T DA 1 46 B K T 35 1
HA S L R VE o

i B A(E RT3 T2k B AR A g it
HE 2 RA S Bob A B TR T iR 2
Bl& i E el o Himsa im 2 B4
TR AR R R3% (%
—JUAF : 2.5%) HEH. -

R FREERE > EFERAARE
4 A B 22 AT R [ R T AR A R
WfE - Bt > EESRE T _F4F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

21.

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as

follows:

Cost of investment in a joint venture

Share of post-acquisition loss

Share of other comprehensive income

Effects of equity transaction of a joint
venture (Note)

Note:

A RGBS BUE A
A W B Ml 1R

JREAG oA 22 T Wi 4

— GBS

(BR5E)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, BLVD Cayman Limited’s ownership

interest in its operating subsidiary was increased from 80% to 100%. As a result

of this equity transaction in the BLVD Group, the Group’s share of net assets of

the BLVD Group was increased by an amount of approximately HK$1,676,000,

due mainly to the purchase consideration paid by BLVD Cayman Limited for

the additional ownership interest was lower than the carrying amount of non-

controlling interest acquired.

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting

period are as follow:

Country of
incorporation/
registration
L) WA
sk B 5%

Name of entity

HRMAH

BLVD Cayman Limited Cayman Islands

iy

Principal place
of business

FREENS

Singapore

B

R—HEEREEIRE

ALER—HGE AR AT
LU

SR
2

2020 2019
SEOEE CFUF
HK$°000 HK$’000
W Tu T
15,000 15,000
(16,907) (16,907)

231 231

1,676 1,676

FEeE -

WEE_Z—LFET_H=1T—HILFE
BLVD Cayman Limited ji H % 7 fff J& 25 7] /9
JIT 7 RERE 73 FH 80% 15 N ££100% » H R BLVD
GroupZ [l IR HEAZ By » < 4% 8 JEE A BLVD
Group 2 & 7€ 15 {H 4 Jin £ ¥ %5 1,676,000 ¢
F % H A BLVD Cayman Limited 5t 88 51 Fr B
PREEREE i 7 S AT G ol AR A7 2 WA i I 42 i
HE 5 1 R TR0 (1 P 2 o

AL B IR Z &8 R
LU

Proportion of ownership

interest held by the Group ~ Principal activities
AL i
i A e FEEH
2020 2019
“EOFE CERAF
50% 50%  Operating restaurants,

café and takeaway outlets

in Singapore
AR A B -

INVERE KANETE

AREMEEER.
“E-mrrw 233
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”’)

Summarised financial information in respect of BLVD Group
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in BLVD Group’s consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
BLVD Group is accounted for using equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

BLVD Group

R—HaEBEEZRE A

BLVD Cayman Limited 5 3 Ff J& 2
H] (TBLVDAE B |) 2 B % & B 22

BLVDZE | 2 FA 5 & A A 4l 6 51
T o DATN BARS B ORMBEEE 2 AR R A
B 5 4 Y T A S B BLVD 4E 8 45
A MR 8 R 4 %8 - BLVD
52 B A 5% 55 4 A B 2 T 66 P E
IEAR -

Current assets ) &
Non-current assets FEME & E
Current liabilities e =N
Non-current liabilities FEME A E
Net liabilities R T A

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

LAl g E kAR
THIFIH

include the following:

Bl KB a5 EY

Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade i) 4 il & f& (A £ 15 A IR K

e A AT R T K 48445 )

and other payables and provisions)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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BLVDZ# 5
2020 2019
ZEIRE —E—JUAE
HK$000 HKS$’000
T T
1,687 6,593
- 38,721
(16,713) (20,441)
- (34,214)
(15,026) (9,341)
43 992
(10,077) (9,265)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”) (Continued)

BLVD Group (Continued)

Revenue

Loss for the year attributable to equity
owners

Other comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to equity owners

Total comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to equity owners

WA

RERR WA A NG A4 Bl 1

e FEAT A ASAF 2 HoA
ST B S

HEL AT N A AR 4F I 2T
BH S A

The above loss for the year include the following:

Impairment loss of intangible assets
Depreciation
Interest expense

TR B < W E 1R
IrEs
MBS

R—HEEREIRE ()

BLVD Cayman Limited 5 3 ff J& 2
w] (TBLVD4E Ml 1) = B4 % % B} 2

(#)
BLVDZ 5] (%)
2020 2019
- 2 —F—JUAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
5,796 45,254
(5,360) (12,736)
(325) (68)
(5,685) (12,804)

AR 2 ER RIS T AIAIA

2020

S —
HK$’000

i T

1,052
1,355

2019
—E N
HK$000
i

2,159
4,381
1,828

AREMEEER.
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21.
Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”) (Continued)

BLVD Group (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

the carrying amount of the interest in BLVD Group recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Net liabilities of BLVD Group BLVDZ [# 2~ B {1581
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 2 4 [ i A HERE A L 451
interest

The Group’s share of net assets of BLVD ~ AN4E [H fE{5BLVD GroupZ
Group EEE B E

The unrecognised share of loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$2,843,000 (2019: HK$4,670,000) and unrecognised
accumulated share of losses as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$7,513,000 (2019: HK$4,670,000).

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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R—HaEBEEZRE A

BLVD Cayman Limited 5 3 Ff J& 2
w] (TBLVD4E Ml 1) = B4 % % B} 2

(48
BLVDZ 3] (#5)
bl A A R M e L A B

FKINHEFR Z FABLVDAE [H 2~ HE 25 >
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

22A. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unlisted investments: FELHHE :

— Equity investments —RAKE

— Fund investments —REH,E
Debt instruments BB A

— Bonds listed in Hong Kong — & LA
Notes:

The unlisted equity securities at fair value represent investments in equity
securities issued by private companies. The directors of the Company
estimated the fair value of these securities is HK$Nil because of the
underperformance of that private company. An aggregate of fair value loss
of approximately HK$1,140,000 is recognised in other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed the
unlisted equity securities to an independent third party at a consideration
of HK$300,000, resulting a fair value gain of HK$300,000 recognised
in other comprehensive income. The fair value loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the accumulated losses upon
disposal.

The unlisted fund investments at fair value represent the investments
placed to private funds incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not receive
any distributions (2019: approximately HK$565,000) from the fund
investments (2019: out of which approximately HK$555,000 was return
of capital).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of a private
fund with carrying value of approximately HK$156,000 to an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately HK$273,000, resulting in
a fair value gain of approximately HK$117,000 is recognised in the other
comprehensive income.

22A. 3% 2 S B AR H A Bt 22 vl 45 2
B

2020 2019
SECBE CF U
HK$’000 HK$’000

T BT

20 20
20 20
6,075 9,567
6,095 9,587

N el R 2 IE T A i At
AL N TV BEAT 2 AR i 2 L -
A %L N T A > ARATE
FE RSB SR A NREE BT
TG MEZE—NFETZH=1T—H
IR AR BE > N Fo A (B s 18 48 RE A0 s
1,140,000 7T A Ho At 2 7 i 4 0 ERR o

Mo FAET A= — H L
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SEH =07 o AR 2 K 300,0000T > B
O b 2 T i 35 R AR S Ao B (E R 2R
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M AEE SRR R SR E R E
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A BH 2 T B S B 2 RS 2 B
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

22A. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

b. (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has accepted the
offer from Convoy Collateral Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, an independent third party to purchase all of
the shares of an unlisted investment fund at a disposal price of HK$6.6
million (“Disposal Price”) by cash settlement in 34 instalments from
March 2019 to December 2021.

For the remaining unlisted investment fund, no fair value loss (2019:
approximately HK$1,049,000) was recognised by reference to the

statement of account provided.

@ During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed of debt
instruments at a consideration of approximately HK$3,237,000, resulting
in a gain on disposal of financial assets through other comprehensive

income of approximately HK$187,000 recognised in profit or loss.

22B. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

22A. %2 S B A\ Bt 2 v e 45 2
el E (A7)

(%)
MEE-Z—NF+_H=1+—H1
R AREE BN AR M A R
25 ) (— [ A A v 5 M T 9 A R A
Al — AL =) B EL) &
B (T 858 ) ¥ 796,600,000 78 i
BRI A 0 AT Ry DB
EEEFW T R34 (B T — L=
AEZZ-—F+2H) A -

MR L REREN T > HES
2 P HE AL IR B R R 2 A o (E
M8 (& — JUAE 493 ¥ 1,049,000
JG) °

WEE-ZRET A=A 1k
R AREEBEGEERE  UELH
7y U5 13,237,0000C - E BRI 45 iR
H R A AL 2 T i a8 2 S E 2
Wi g5 405 187,000 ©

22B. #% 2 s fEAE R A TR 5 2 5 A

8 Hl e~ REEF AR R EZ &

Pl

2020 2019
TR OFAE —F—NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Listed investments held for trading: FEEREZ E e -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — U LT RARE IR 18,125 21,247

23. OTHER ASSETS 23, Fofth e s

HibEEBHFR -F _F
H=+—HE&FBELH &
AIRAE R FHERREEH
A([HF#HEH]) ZEER

Other assets included statutory deposits with the Hong Kong
Exchange and Clearing Limited and Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) amounting to
approximately HK$255,000 (2019: HK$230,000) as at 31
December 2020 and are non-interest bearing.

230,0007C) > HAFHE
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24.

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INVENTORIES

Finished goods

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
— Non-financial services business
Less: Allowance for credit losses

— Financial services business
— Dealing in securities
— Cash clients
— Margin clients
— Clearing house
— HKSCC marks
— Share subscription

Less: Allowance for credit losses

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

24.

B

25.

JEUS R 3K
— < P AR5 2E 5
W 5 E R IR

— Sl IR S
—HEws
—Ba%F
—REEEF
— G

WH T

— Fis AR 2 TG

— ey it

W A5 RO R

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to approximately
HK$55,944,000 and approximately HK$12,572,000 respectively.

it

2020 2019
SETEE CFOUF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T VE i o T
1,510 1,036

JFEE IR e 3k
2020 2019
ZRORAE ZE IR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
i AN i T
8,620 24,148
(346) (12,641)
8,274 11,507
112 127
45,033 943
2,036 -
362 -
127 -
47,670 1,070
- (5)
47,670 1,065
55,944 12,572

BOFFERCE U

—t+—H > REBEFGHZEIIE
Ay B &) By ik 055,944,000 70 M 4 HE
#12,572,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Non-financial services business

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on the
invoice date:

0-90 days 0-90K
91-180 days 91-180K
181-365 days 181-365K

The Group’s trading terms with its customers from the
non-financial services business are mainly on credit. The
Group generally allows a credit period of from 30 to 60
days (2019: 30 to 60 days) to its trade customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the management regularly reviews the
overdue balances.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$5,469,000 (2019:
HK$10,693,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, approximately
HK$1,404,000 (2019: HK$2,004,000) has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2020, the management considers
that the trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers and to be of a
good credit quality.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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25. EWCHRK (A7)

FF: <o Tl I 5 2 5

PATF 4% 35 55 H 251 2 &40
Brfe Sk R R R R
HRH T

2020 2019
CEOEE U
HK$°000 HK$°000

ML T T
6,870 9,503

817 2,004

587 -

8,274 11,507

A4 13 B I 4 A RS £ &
FzEBEGRKEEBGTIRE

R o $%@Lamﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
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25. BEWORK (A7)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Non-financial services business (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
had not recognised an allowance for credit losses relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances nor did it have a legal right of offset against any
amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

Balance at beginning of the year EHES R

Impairment losses recognised on
receivables

Reversal of impairment losses
recognised on receivables

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10)

Foreign currency translation reserve

PR R
5

USR]

ﬁzj{nlﬁl

Balance at end of the year

As at 31 December 2020, included in the allowance for
credit losses are impaired trade receivables based on
provision matrix, with aggregate balance of HK$346,000
(2019: HK$970,000). As at 31 December 2019, included
in the allowance for credit losses are impaired trade
receivables based on individually assessment with
aggregate balance of HK$11,671,000. The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties and the receivables are expected to be
in default.

(a)

HURE WO IE R < W (B 12
JIE R 2 S8 (ELRE 1R
H B B 28 =] (K EE10)

T il 5 26 85 (A

NERDEREFZH =+ —
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H - WP AR > &
JEARME > BFER RS 4 R AE
BB > R A RE R
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AT A Bl ) o A 4R [E Sl 4 R A
S5 5 BR R AT Aol S A
FENNR I > IR A A HER
K 51 4 45 [ 45 KB T 2 AR K

TH o

1 B 16 1 i 5 3
2020 2019
SEORE E
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T T oT
12,641 4,036
- 8,797
(624) -
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(228) (192)
346 12,641
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25, WEWHRK ()

<6l e 5 3 5

(b) Financial services business (b)

The settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the
ordinary course of financial services business of dealing
in securities from cash clients and clearing house are two
days after trade date.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit risk
and the overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities collateral
to the Group in order to obtain the margin facilities
for securities trading. At 31 December 2020, loans to
margin clients are secured by clients’ securities pledged
as collateral with market value of approximately
HKS$174,057,000 (2019: HK$7,477,400). Management
has assessed the market values of the pledged securities
of each individual client who has margin shortfall at the
end of each reporting period. Based on the assessment,
the loss given default is low in view of the estimated
realised amount of ultimate disposal of the collateral and
the management considers the ECL for receivables from
margin clients is insignificant and therefore no impairment
allowance was recognised. The margin loans are repayable
on demand and bear variable interest at commercial rates.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of securities margin
business.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
242 Annual Report 2020

HER P LGRS IE
4 Al IR 5 SRS AR R v T E A
F) R SR 5 ) s R S PR 2 22
HARM XK -

AR B0 3 O AR 2 B USRS
REFERAS Ba s > ISR B IRRAS
LR R - A8 &5 T B
TEWE -

P78 & & P K 1 75 75 HK 47
i T A ) DL R RS O 5 )
BIRFEME o R T FE
+oA=+—H > #EBLEEF
B & P 2 54 5 Y
SR > HEL 5B
174,057,000 7C ( & — JL4F :
HEH7.477,40000) - EHEE
FEAG A R R A RSB &5
BB A58 A & 5 Y BRI RS
AT E - ARIEFEAL > 8 B4
KR S AL R B S
ERTBIRAEAK » mE
JE 58 B RE WS AR 35 4 % 5 22 3K
ZHEMEEBERAELR > FHik
3 SRR AE R o RS 8
T L SR B R A ] S 3
FIZFTE - AN A EHER
LIRS T BB w8 A R eE & 3
W5 0 - Sl 4 R T 4E OME
{8 > Bl 5% FE AR E AT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(e
i N

Bl 75 ¥ Ze B 5E (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Financial services business (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, receivables due from cash clients
represent unsettled trades transacted on the last two days
prior to the end of each reporting period and it also related
to a wide range of independent clients for whom there was
no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2020, receivables that were past due
but not impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to
independent clients that have good track records with the
Group or are subsequently settled. When cash clients fail
to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the right to
sell the purchased securities of the respective transaction.
Based on past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary after taking into
consideration the recoverability from the purchased
securities and past collection history of each client.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

R A B
AF R IR 2 R

Balance at beginning of the year
Amounts recovered during the year

FEREEER

Balance at end of the year

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss
of trade receivables of approximately HK$5,000 (2019:
HK$12,000) was recovered and reversed, and no credit
losses was recognised.

25. BEWORK (A7)

(b)
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26. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

26. MR & A S

2020 2019
SBOBE CENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
i1 W BT T
Loans and interest receivables JRE WS B S A S 28,162 71,019
Loans and interest receivables from K E—H G B ERN
a joint venture JRE IS Bk S A B 2,168 2,090
Less: Allowance for credit losses W 5B (4,310) (6,304)
26,020 66,805
Analysed as: SN E
Current T 25,615 56,749
Non-current JE L ED 405 10,056
26,020 66,305

75 42 [ 3K 7 3 R A 2 I A R R S R
MR A B > BRI B R
WERE - HHEHAFFEEZE
Gt > T EE 5 RS AR
B AT i [l AT AR T o R T
FHEF A=+ —H » B ERE
FT A M B 2 BRI RS S
PRSI 24 (—FE—JLAF ¢ 5
JEHZE24JH) o

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans and interest receivables so as to minimise credit risk.
The granting of loans is subject to approval by the credit
committee, whilst overdue balances are reviewed regularly for
recoverability. At 31 December 2020, loans receivables are
charging on effective interest rates mutually agreed with the
contracting parties, ranging from 8% to 24% (2019: 5% to 24%)
per annum.

MNoE_EE+_H=+—H > &
R B FILEL 4 5 K 1,812,0000T (—
T—JUAF © #35758,320,0000T) T
RN S 2 W) SE R o

At 31 December 2020, loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$1,812,000 (2019: approximately
HK$8,320,000) were secured by a property in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

A maturity profile of the loans and interest receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of
provision, is as follows:

0-90 days 090K
91-180 days 91% 180K
Over 180 days A 180K

The aging analysis of loans and interest receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired fesn S TR e
Past due but not impaired A E R

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,566,000 (2019: HK$290,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, no
loans and interest receivables (2019: HK$Nil) has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default. The amount
was subsequently settled.

Included in the Group’s loans and interest receivables were loan
to and interest receivables from director amount to approximately
to HK$1,028,000 (2019: HK$Nil), which is unsecured, carried
interest rate of 9% per annum and repayable on 1 March 2021.

26.

JE W Bk e ML G (A7)

TS A 2 2 30 H 8 03 2 B
A F B (BRI BT

2020 2019
s CFOUF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T BT
7,066 25,425
11,170 18,953
7,784 22,427
26,020 66,805

A 20 S 6 Bl 1 2 B WA K B LB

2RI -
2020 2019

“EORE CF AR
HK$000 HK$’000

EWTE BT

24,454 66,515

1,566 290

26,020 66,805
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26.

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, loans and interest receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified customers for
whom there were no recent history of default. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these loans and interest receivables
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. Past due but
not impaired relate to loans and interest receivable owed from a
customer and was subsequently settled.

Movements in the Group’s impairment loss recognised of loans
and interest receivables are as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year A R
Impairment loss recognised RATERSEATN Fis
Written off ]

Balance at end of the year RGN

As at 31 December 2020, loans and interest receivable of
approximately HK$4,310,000 (2019: HK$6,201,000) were
individually impaired. The total amount of the provision was
approximately HK$4,310,000 (2019: HK$6,304,000). This was
related to customer and a joint venture for whom the directors
are of the view that the collection of this loans and interest
receivable was not probable.
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26. MEMCHK RS ()
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2020 2019
CEOEE U
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
W T T
6,304 6,907
4,310 6,201
(6,304) (6,804)
4,310 6,304
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments FAHIE
Deposits and other receivables e gz R At RE W K IA

FEA IR EY B A e
Al R USRI

Deposits and other receivables included
under non-current assets

Current portion included under R AL & A 2 RIUBIER 2

current assets

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental deposits and other receivables amounting
to approximately HK$8,341,000 (2019: HK$6,846,000) and
approximately HK$Nil (2019: HK$1,537,000) respectively,
which are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
after more than one year. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

27. ¥4 > TR M Al KR

2020 2019
EOEE CF N
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T T
1,576 1,180
18,210 23,118
19,786 24,298
(8,341) (8,383)
11,445 15,915
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK
ACCOUNTS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trust bank accounts

fERESRATIRF

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group,
deposits placed with securities brokers and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances that earn interest at floating rate based on daily bank
deposit rates and short term time deposits that earn interest at the
respective short term deposit rates. The bank balances and short
term time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
and trust bank accounts of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2019: HK$120,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The Group maintains trust bank accounts with authorised
financial institutions to receive and hold money deposited by
clients in the course of the conduct of the regulated activities.
These clients’ monies are maintained in one or more trust bank
accounts and bear interest at commercial rates. The Group has
recognised the corresponding trade payables to respective clients.
The Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
those payables with the deposits placed.
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=
2020 2019

= L S
HK$°000 HK$’000

T BT

35,597 29,689
23,346 10,689
58,943 40,378
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Trade payables JEAST K

— Non-financial services business (Note (i))
— Financial services business (Note (ii))

Dealing in securities =g Lo

— Cash clients —BEexF

— Margin clients —REEEF

— Clearing house — &

— Asset management —EEEH
Other payables and accruals A B A SRR T B AR T
Notes:

()

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from non-financial
services business, presented based on invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

0-90 days 0F90°K
91-180 days 91 E 180K
Over 180 days I 180K

B A5 W sk B L At B ASF sk 2L

2020 2019
SROEE F UF
HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

— I & R AR 265 (FEG)) 11,965 8,369
— 4 A AR ZS 285 (M3 (id))

16,601 7,690
10,879 1,887
- 156

596 574
19,548 13,040
59,589 31,716

i :

() DT ARERE R EEE RS
2K I 4 Rl s S B 2 A R 2 R

4T
2020 2019

RS i —E U
HK$°000 HK$°000

i T T e
11,965 6,766

- 79

- 1,524

11,965 8,369
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

29.

30.

31.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)  The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the ordinary course of
financial services business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date.

Trade payables to clients bear variable interest at commercial rates, and
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No aged analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the aged
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of business.
At 31 December 2020, the trade payables amounting to approximately
HK$23,346,000 (2019: HK$10,689,000) were payable to clients in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received which are held
for clients in the course of conducting the regulated activities. However,
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset these

payables with the deposits placed.

OTHER BORROWING

The other borrowing is from an independent third party, is
denominated in HKS$, unsecured, interest bearing at 10% per
annum and repayable within one year.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$Nil (2019: HK$4,717,000) arising from
subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong which are available
for setting off against future taxable profit of that subsidiary and
due to expire within one to five years and estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$60,063,000 (2019: HK$31,148,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. Other temporary differences are not material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but
not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years but
not more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under current
liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

32. HEAMA
2020 2019
TERORIE —E— U
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
JEAT L AE -
—4EN 31,131 19,416
B —FH D A AR
22,832 10,661
R 208 T A AEL D A FLAF
9,061 6,807
63,024 36,884
W FIAGRE) A EE A 1248 H
A 2] 3009 45 B8 1) 2
(31,131) (19,416)
B FE LB B AR 124 A &
B HA 4455 0 3R 31,893 17,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number Share
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B U 10001 0 1 3% 28 Ik of shares capital
ikt 8 H Jie A
000 HK$’000
Tk i RPTH
Authorised: WE
At 1 January 2019 W_F—-NHFE—H—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation (Note (i)) et & BF (MERED) (87,500,000) —
Share sub-division (Note (1)) R P4l (B 5EG)) 87,500,000 -
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and ﬁ/‘igéﬁﬁﬁﬂ“#ﬂ =+—H -
31 December 2020 TR CERE-H—H K
“EFCFEF"H=+—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: o# ﬁ KO :
At 1 January 2019 W _F—FE—H—H 1,224,236 12,242
Share consolidation (Note (i)) A& BF (BFREGD)) (1,071,207) (10,712)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and ﬁA:£*ﬂ£ﬁ+gﬁ =+—H-
31 December 2020 TR CERE-H—H K
“EFCFEFH=+—H 153,029 1,530
Notes: B &E -
i) Capital reorganisation (@) Ji5t A T AL
Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 27 May 2019, the special IR = F—JUAERH & 0847
resolution approving the capital reorganisation comprising the share ZIHRFERI R & > HEHERAS B A (4G
consolidation, the capital reduction and the share sub-division was duly Je A OF > AR ) A A R 4 ) 2
passed by way of poll and took effect on 28 May 2019. R I P 58 AR SR R Py U AE U

o W —FE-RFERH /AL

3 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(@

(e
i N

o il 5 ke b st (£48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

33. AR (4E)

Notes: (Continued) FeE « (42)

(Continued) i )

The capital reorganisation involved, JBeA A

(1)  Share consolidation (1) RGO
Every 8 issued and unissued then existing shares of par value RN ) AR F A 8 I A % T (L HE
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company were H0.01 702 O 84T M R B8 75 IRe
consolidated into 1 consolidated share of par value of HK$0.08 HEA Ak & 1 5 1 1% 55 1% T L
each. #H0.0870 2 A OF A ©

(2)  Capital reduction 2  RAHNE
The par value of each of the then issued consolidated shares were P EE B AN F AR A (LA
reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up JR IR 28 AT A OF v 10.07
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.07 on each of the TR o A ERERCBITS
then issued consolidated shares, the credits arising from (a) such 1 B Aoy 22 o (8 H HE 20,08 76 1l I8
reduction of the paid up capital; and (b) the cancellation of any FEEH0.017C > F(a)iZHl g E
fractional consolidated share in the issued share capital of the BOREAS 5 K (b) ik & R B &
Company which may arise from the share consolidation, which P AT BE 2E AR 2 AN R E AT
together, amount to approximately HK$10,712,000, were credited J A o AT ] 2 B A D A E A=
to the contributed surplus account of the Company. Z HERR A L A5 910,712,000 0T

FEARR RSB ERIE -

(3)  Share sub-division Q3 RN
Each of the then authorised but unissued consolidated shares of par BT {E HE 00,08 0 i IR s 78
value of HK$0.08 each was sub-divided into 8 new shares of par (B R BEAT A T AR 20 % £ 8 B B
value of HK$0.01 each. & T {E W 0.0 1T 2 Ly o

BREMREGIIRL D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

34.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 127 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the Bermuda Law.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from
share capital and share premium due to capital reorganisation
comprising the share consolidation, the capital reduction and the
share subdivision.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting and special general meeting, held on 24
April 2014, 3 February 2016 and 27 May 2019 respectively
and took effect on 5 June 2014, 4 February 2016 and 28 May
2019, the directors were authorised to use HK$195,134,000,
HK$15,782,000 and HK$10,712,000 credit balances in the
contribution surplus account result from the reduction of the
paid-up capital of the Company to eliminating or setting off the
accumulated losses of the Company.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2020, HK$221,628,000
(2019: HK$210,916,000) credit balances in the contribution
surplus account were account were used to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

RESERVES (Continued)
Capital reserve

The capital reserve arises from (i) capitalisation of a loan and
represents the difference between the amount due to a former
beneficial shareholder capitalised and the nominal value of
shares; and (ii) the expiry of conversion option of convertible
bonds and warranty.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate at least
10% of its after-tax profit, based on the PRC statutory financial
statements prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and financial regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises, to the general reserve until
the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the PRC subsidiary’s
registered capital. Thereafter, any further appropriation can
be made at the directors’ discretion. The general reserve fund
can be utilised to offset the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to
increase the capital on the condition that the general reserve shall
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital
after such increase.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the PRC statutory
reserve was released upon the disposal of the agricultural
business.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve comprises the portion of the grant
date fair value of unexercised share options granted to executive
directors, employees and consultants of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

FVTOCI reserve

The reserve represents cumulate gains and losses arising on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income.

34. i (4E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

35s.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2013. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible persons, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for the shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue on 30 September 2013 unless
the Company obtains a refresh approval from its shareholders.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
under which such options are granted, as the case may be, shall
not be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the limit
has been exceeded.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options which
may be granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. No options may be granted under any share option schemes
of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing from 30 September 2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be
such price as determined by the board of directors in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant option but in
any case the subscription price shall not be less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share. The options must be taken up within
21 days from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, which period may commence from
the date of acceptance of the offer of the grant of the options but
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to encourage the
participants, including employees, business associates and
trustees, to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions and
to provide the participants with incentives and help the Company
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees.

No participant shall be granted an option if the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant to such participant would exceed 1% of the
shares for the time being in issue unless the proposed grant has
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting with
the proposed grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
A circular must be sent to the shareholders of the Company
disclosing the identity of the proposed grantee, the number and
terms of the options granted and to be granted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

35s.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Where any grant of option is to a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the
proposed grant of option, when aggregated will result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant, (i) representing in aggregate
over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, then such proposed grant of
option(s) must be subject to approval by shareholders on a poll in
a general meeting where all connected persons (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company must abstain from voting
in favour at such general meeting (except where such connected
person(s) (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) intend(s) to vote
against the proposed grant of option(s) and his intention to do so
has been stated in the circular).

Details of specific categories of the share options granted by the
Company are as follows:

35S.
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fair value at
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Name of Grantee

KBNS

Directors:

%

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
L3¢

Mr. Ng Ting Ho
Sub-total

it

Employees

&8

Sub-total

/it

Other eligible persons:
HbaErAL:
Directors of subsidiaries
WEANES
Sub-total

/it

Total
ot

Weighted average exercise price

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Option Type

L HERIRI

2020 October
S A
2020 October

RS

2020 October

E=

2020 October

SRR

HEFH R

Exercisable at the end of the year  FMEA T FAT{f

Date of Grant

Rl M

12 October 2020
A%
THTZH

12 October 2020

12 October 2020

12 October 2020

23
it

fn o Wil %5 ¥ e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Exercisable Period
TEREAIR
12 October 2020 to
11 October 2021
ZRCRETATCRE
e Swet2S  al
12 October 2020 to
11 October 2021
e e 223 i
LA
12 October 2020 to
11 October 2021
“RCRETHTCRE
“Z--FE+A+-H
12 October 2020 to
11 October 2021
“ECREFRTORE
“F--FEHAT-H

) =l
35. etttk s 5 (4
Outstanding as
at 1 January
2019,
31 December Outstanding
2019 Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise price  and 1 January during during during 31 December
per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020
1
“EOLE
A=A
IR0 1
+2R=-0 “RORE
RoFFE +2
~A-A =t-h
PRI MARLTHE R LA LIPS WAL
HK$0.2392 - 1,530,000 - - 1,530,000
023927
HK$0.2392 - 1,530,000 - - 1,530,000
10239278
- 3,060,000 - - 3,060,000
HK$0.2392 - 9,180,000 - - 9,180,000
0239270
- 9,180,000 - - 9,180,000
HK$0.2392 - 3,060,000 - - 3,060,000
5023927
- 3,060,000 - - 3,060,000
- 15,300,000 - - 15,300,000
- HK$0.2392 - - HK$0.2392
- 15,300,000 - - 15,300,000
REAMRBEAMRALD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

35s.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 15,300,000 (2019:
Nil) share options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
No share options have been exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 15,300,000 (2019: Nil).

The fair value of the share options granted to employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries was determined
using the Binomial Model. Where relevant, the expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
(including the probability of meeting market conditions attached
to the option), and behavioural considerations. Expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s
share price, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. it #kze 5 (45)

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price B B IR fE
Exercise price FriffE
Expected volatility T
Exercise multiple Frififs g
Risk-free interest rate e B 1| 2
Expected dividend yield k]S

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, equity-settled share-based
payments to employees (including directors) of the Group of
approximately HK$824,000 has been included as an expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the corresponding amount of which has
been credited to share options reserve (Note 34). No liabilities
were recognised on the equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

The total consideration received during the year ended 31
December 2020 form the grant of share options amounted to
HK$10.

All share options have been accounted for under HKFRS 2.
The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.78 years. No
share options were outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

i ALK 2 R}

Option type

Sl Je 1)
2020 October
“ECFEAH
HK$# %0.230070
HK$#0.239270
64.812%

22-2.8

0.081%

0%

CL 4% 1 B e ME A 42 1 B A L R B
B REBE _F_FFE+ A
=t—HIEFE > mALEES (B
THE ) 2 DABEAGE B A4 3K
#5 1:824,000 0 B A A7 A 1 £ M
by 2 T AL 2 3% R B AE B SZ > AHIRE
O A BRI (B aE34) o HE
4 3t DA JBEAS %8 B B3 AF 38 5 e
M1 -

BEZFZ " FEF+_H=+—H1
AERE > [RIP H E FBEARE T WA B A AR AT
8 By 107G ©

%ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%a*ﬁﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁi@

HIZE2BEAMR - IR —F —F4F+H
= H R RAT 2 B R 2 i b
-2 R B 5 H AE I F50.784F - R
F—NFETH=+— B R
AT {68 P S S

BREREEERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

36.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China and
Singapore are members of state-manged retirement benefit
schemes operated by the relevant governments. The Group
is required to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The central pension scheme is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to all
retired employees and the Group has no further obligations for
the pension payments on post-retirement benefits beyond the
monthly contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, defined contribution
retirement benefits expenses of approximately HK$2,604,000
(2019: HK$1,804,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

A subsidiary of the Group is licensed with The Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) for the business it operates in.
The Group’s licensed subsidiary is subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under SF(FR)R, the
licensed subsidiary must maintain a liquid capital (assets and
liabilities adjusted as determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of its total adjusted liabilities, whichever is
higher. Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid
capital level of the licensed subsidiary to ensure compliance with
the requirements under the SF(FR)R.

37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. As
part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:

Debts (Note (i)) B (Bt 5Ed))

Equity (Note (ii)) R (P EEGi))
Gearing ratio EAAEL R
Notes:

(i) Debt is defined as short-term borrowing, as detailed in Note 30.

(i)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 64 Annual Report 2020

37. EAREHM(H)
AREHEREAGBHRERE
AR o VER AL — IR0y > AEHE
2 JE G A AR DA B 4558 Bl A AR
B JEU g
B A LR

RIE RO EAR B AR WT

2020 2019
ECEE CFUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
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10,016 -

108,766 136,726
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. &Rt TH

38.1 4k T HIE R

38.1 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets B EE
2020 2019
“EROERE F A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Fair value through profit or loss AT EEHF AR 7 ([ T4
(FVTPL): REEFABRE]) -
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL AT EEHTIA
Amal
Held-for-trading FHERE 18,125 21,247
Loans and receivables: B REN I -
Other assets HoAh 255 230
Trade receivables JRE WS B 2K 55,944 12,572
Loans and interest receivables JRE Ak e AL 26,020 66,805
Deposits and other receivables i 4 Jo FAth ISR IR
(included in financial assets) (FEAERMERE) 18,210 23,118
Trust bank accounts FRESRITHRF 23,346 10,689
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &5 E ) 35,597 29,689
Investments: #’E -
Financial assets through other e R AR A A
comprehensive income A T i 2 4
6,095 9,587
Financial liabilities £ A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R LA G2
SAEE -
Financial liabilities included in trade and 71 A JEASS lR 3k K HoAth g
other payables PRI 2 4 il A K 53,789 23,023
Other borrowing HAfEE 10,016 -
Lease liabilities HE A 63,024 36,884

AREMEEER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)

38.2 WA Ba A BE H AR R BOR

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other assets,
trade receivables, loans and interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, trust bank accounts, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, other
borrowing and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 BAMS I B B H AR S BUR (A7)
(Continued)
38.2.1 Market risk 38.0.1 TisGmBE

Foreign currency risk management

Transactional currency exposures arise from revenue
or cost of sales by operating units in currencies other
than the unit’s functional currency. Substantially
all the Group’s revenue and cost of sales are
denominated in the functional currency of the
operating units making the revenue, and substantially
all the cost of sales are denominated in the operating
unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the directors
consider that the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities. The Group are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rates bank
deposits and fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed rate loans receivables, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, fixed rate borrowing and lease liabilities.
The directors continues to monitor the interest rate
exposure of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)

38.2 S e B A BE H B S BUSK (4

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 38.2.1 Tl G B (4E)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

All of the Group’s loans receivables are based on
fixed interest rates with original maturities in range of
2 to 24 months (2019: 3 to 240 months). The Group
prices these loans receivables strategically to reflect
market fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest-
rate spread.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest rates.

Changes in market interest rates may affect the
Group’s securities margin financing business and
the Group mitigates this risk by revising the margin
financing rate as and when appropriate.

Interest rates on bank deposits are relatively low and
not expected to change significantly.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing financial assets resulted from
the changes in interest rates and considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 68 Annual Report 2020

FU 7 PE (A

7 55 [ BT A T M K 4 [ o )
o R B AR A 2224
il H (=F—JLF - 3224018
H) o A B KW I 5y 5% 55
JEMCEE e > DA BT 5
B M B A PR A 2 o

ACHE B 2 T E M A T BT S
A 3R 2 AT e S 37 A UK

WIGHRE LR BAREE
it 7 DR < il E RS AR
EHAE T E UL S OOR
Al 5 LU A BT B ML LB

SRAT A7 3 2 P R S A
THERES -

EHELETE > AR A G
ArEEmEEELEERVE
N7 A% gy 36 A 4 B T 5 S
JEIE e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 HAR R F s P H B R iR (4F)
(Continued)
38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 38.2.1 BB (4E)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/lower (2019:
15% higher/lower):

U post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 would decrease/increase by HK$2,193,000
(2019: HK$2,584,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
equity investments.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W R B4 PR H B R BUR ()
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment

38.2.2 5 B B B PR Do 77 A%

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties are arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the credit sales of goods to customers, the Group
has concentration of credit risk as the top 5 credit
sales customers related to non-financial services
business and accounted for approximately 4%
(2019: 79%) of the Group’s trade receivables as at
31 December 2020. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Regular review and
follow up actions are carried out on overdue amounts
to minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk. An
aging analysis of the debtors is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit
risk associated with these debtors.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 BAMS ) B B H AR S BUR (A7)
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment

38.2.2 fF B B PR T ol £ AT A

(Continued)

In respect of trade receivables arising from financial
services business, the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of trading limits,
trading approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
outstanding balances. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each of reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Margin calls are made when
the outstanding balances due from clients exceed
their respective limits with consideration of the
quality, liquidity and price volatility of individual
stock, and the transaction history and credibility of
the clients. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in the prohibition of further purchase of securities or
liquidation of the client’s positions on a case-by-case
basis.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables, and loans and interest
receivables individually or based on provision matrix.

(%)

L Rl Al s S s A 2 R
WeHRAKIM & > ACSR R 3
JEEARIR— M - AR
i TE 52 o IR~ X it
B H AW BEHERE S > DARRELR
PRIUBRAEEA T B i ] R AR R
REAR o BUAL > AEEER
A5 R B A A1
JRE WSO T 2 AT Wi ] 2
fi P L AN AT i ] g R AR
AR A BERR - #8758
AR B R ~ B &
Be FEEAB MR A 1 % 5 22 )
JE S R R B R - EER
%5 R AR A5 R LA
A2 BR#R > & F g
KB MPREE & o RAEEN
PR < F] AR BAE LA —
A5 R e A ] SR i v
HEF¥AE -

BEA > A G2 B AE I A it
St s i ot 1 S 2 9 R AR %
T E B R R
MR 2 B WS B B M) B B
T T R A A A T 9
{EFFAY -

BREMBEHRL A

—s—zuxgn 271



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fn o Wil % 0 e I 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W R B4 PR H B R BUR ()
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment

38.2.2 f5 B B B PR 0o (e AT A

(Continued)

For other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
trust bank accounts and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model application of HKFRS 9 based on 12
month ECL.

The credit risk on deposits and other receivables is
limited because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
changed for the 12 months after the reporting date.

The credit risk on trust bank accounts and cash
and cash equivalents are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group only invests in debt securities with low
credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI
mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded in the
top investment grade as per globally understood
definitions and therefore are considered to be low
credit risk investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 AN R\ B as PR H R R WK ()
(Continued)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment 38.2.2 15 B0 Fw 2 BE e p{e 7P A
(Continued) (45)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment A AE 7] A 5B AE B R B 0 8
comprises the following categories: SEAE RSN AER
Trade receivables/ Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description contract assets other items
NSRRI L] VEWeHR%, /5 40 Hfbmg e HAEH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
{9 G T A B > FL AT g O FREMEMESER - @A B R
RBAE R R
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
after due date not credit-impaired
%24 (B AR AEZ ) PRI SR (HA R A 2 HAR A FREMEMESER - @A B R
RBAE R R
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
Tt AR S AT B A - AORTRERELRG PRI EE - ARG S -
By B BRI RB AR B
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
JEtR AR A G C R R R MBI SEE - ARG Sk -
BB EA AR R
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in service Amount is written off Amount is written off

financing difficulty and the Group has no realistic

prospect of recovery
67 AEEEUR A BA BRI BN AASLEARS M AR e i A B

FA% R B R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the major credit risk

exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which are

subject to ECL assessment:

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
0 B R A Al 2 e
ZEBEILR

Investment in listed bonds

v

Financial assets at
amortised cost

BRSO 2 e

Loans and interest receivables

TEN B S A B

Trust bank accounts

{RRERATIRS

External
credit
Note rating
hhiE
2A  AA
26 N/A
A
28 N/A
AN
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Internal
credit
rating
R

N/A
A

Low risk

(i

Watch list
BRAY

Doubtful

Frft

Loss

i

Low risk

(iR

12-month or
lifetime ECL
128 A S
T 5 Bk

12-month ECL
1218 7 1R B 10

12-month ECL
12 A (5 B

12-month ECL
12 A # (5 R

Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired)
T BTG Bl
(4 S )

Credit-impaired

R

12-month ECL
1248 H A1 B

EMITH(HE)

38.2 WAL KG A B H AR S BOR (4

38.2.2 f5 B B B PR R 0 (e AT A

(%)

T RFRIRE G B
RGO AR 5 1 < R
TE 8§ 14 = 2 R

2020
“EEk
Gross carrying amount
e 41
HK$000  HK$000
i3 T B T
6,075 6,075
24,561
1,459
4,310 30,330
23,346 23,346

2019
e

Gross carrying amount

MR 48 e
HKS'000  HK$'000
LTI o P

9,567 9,567
52,060

6425

8.320

6.304 73,109
10,689 10,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bl KBl Y

Deposits and other receivables

fiede B A A REICOR

Trade receivables
- Non-financial services
business

TSR — I 4 AR5 205

Trade receivables

- Financial services business

REMORR — R 2T

External
credit

Note rating

Shi
e
28 AA+
27 NIA
R
25 NA
T
25 NA
R

Internal
credit
rating
R

N/A
A

Low risk

{9

(Note 1)

(Bif3EL)

Watch list
L3244

Loss

ftR

Watch list

Doubtful

st

38. &Rt THHE)

38.2 Jhs JE b A B BT B OSR ()

38.2.2 fF B B PR T ol £ AT A

(%)
2020 2019
CRORE “EhA
12-month or
lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
1248 A gt 00
A HER IR T 4 £ MR A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT W% % Te ¥
12-month ECL 35,597 35,597 29,689 29,689
1248 H AR B
12-month ECL 18,210 18,210 23,118 23,118
12ff A B R B R
Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix) 8,620 11,519
iz iRy o
(P (i)
12-month ECL - 958
121 A M5 S 1
Credit impaired - 8,620 11,671 24,148
fri B
Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) 47,670 943
T AU SR
(3 A i)
Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) - 47,670 127 1,070
AU SR
(3 A i)
BREMREGIIRL D

“E_EHHH
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Note: For trade receivables, other than financial services business,
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except
for debtors with credit-impaired, the Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision

matrix, grouped by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to provision food and beverage of
services, alcoholic beverage distribution and provision of
children education services because these customers consist
of a large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired).
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Wb - B B OIRIE T = (B

R 2T A1) o AR
bR J1 7 vl B 5 o o 2
569 5% il 5 T i it i
AT B 2
B o BRI
{8 2 MEUIR AR AN > AR 4R
9 o ) 2 3 AR R 2 AELE)
T M85 R I e 2 SR JH H
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 B e\ P s B H O R B (4F)
(Continued)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment assessment 38.2.2 f5 B¢l f B PR Jk g 7 TEAL
(Continued) (#)
Note: (Continued) BEE : (4%)
2020 2019
SECEE “EuE
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
Rl FiEES FEWCRR PR EER JEMAR K
HK$°000 HK$’000
i i W T T
Current (not past due) RVHH (R aaii) 5.18% 2,019 3.37% 3,876
1-90 days past due i 1-90K 5.17% 4,065 4.66% 4,667
More than 90 days past due 490K 0% 1,404 52.11% 2,006
7,488 10,549
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical fili & e 18 2% 0 2 B K
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors 4 0 Y A 1R LA A
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is o I gk T AT 2
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is B B85 1 B AT A5 1Y R
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant WS P R A L R A A
information about specific debtors is updated. FEER AR o A B ALY E
Sy ey A B AR BR > DLTRE
PRA B E Rk B R E
B o

During the year ended 31 December 2020, reversal of RBE T EE+
impairment allowance of trade receivables of approximately A=+t—HIL#% - &
HK$624,000 (2019: impairment of HK$970,000) is Mg B T i, {495 £ 498 [ 49
provided based on the provision matrix. 15 624,0007C (—F—JL
4 EE970,0007T)

JORRIESEM A e 4

BREMBEFIRAD
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W R B4 PR H B R BUR ()
(Continued)

38.2.3 Liquidity risk management 38.0.3 ImB & M Fi P

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details, the maturity profile of the
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted

T ERIEE) E &
HHZ R > Ko
EHALEEREY - Pk
RNEERRE) EEEH
TOREL —EBAEZ RS
< JE B BRAE SR

A4 T BOR o 0
51 T B S
K > HER AR 72 B4
o 2 EL %
BEeFK -

T ERFSIAE B RS
RIRGEE HIARMBLHIAZ
EMARIIMAS -

payments.
Total
On demand Over 1year  Over 2 years contractual Total
Effective orlessthan  butnotmore  butnotmore  undiscounted carrying
interest rate lyear  than2years  thanS5 years cash flows amounts
WERK A BiEE  AAHRM
(R iE S BRI TR 24 HRSEN  BBIeHE R A4
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 31 December 2020 REZ-EELTA=Z4—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities — FA74t2ME
Trade and other payables FEAT B LA R N 53,789 = = 53,789 53,789
Lease liabilities HEAR 275%-6.32% 34,58 23,563 9,275 67,366 63,024
Other borrowing Hhft e 10% 10,583 = = 10,583 10,016
98,900 23,563 9275 131,738 126,829
At 31 December 2019 REZ—hE+ZA=Z+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities /74 £ f
Trade and other payables BB R B R 508 NI 23023 - - 23,003 23023
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.75%-8.18% 20,385 11,574 7,018 38,977 36,884
43408 11,574 7,018 62,000 59,907
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

38. &Rt THHE)

38.3 &fk T H2Z A AREAG =

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that G BRI ELN R E 2 2
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis G R A2 25 E
Fair value hierarchy LT AEEE R
2020 2019
CRORAE ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
i AN BT
Financial assets included in Level 1 HIERFE—BRE 2B 17,508 20,630
Financial assets at FVTPL A REEFAEEZ
S RlE R
Financial assets at FVTOCI Yo 05 B R A HA
AT A 2 4 Al 6,075 9,567
Financial assets included in level 2 HIERE BRI B
Financial assets at FVTPL N REEF ARG Z
BREE 617 617
Financial assets at FVTOCI Yo 05 B R A HA:
AT R 2 4 U 20 20

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there

BE_FTHER-FNHF

were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the quoted market bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

+ H=+— EIJJ:EV 1oL 42
—JER -~ R SR =E
%ﬁz [H] B RS

RERT SRR &M T A
KN REET RS R 2 T
BT o i fE T w o &
Eﬁﬁﬁlﬁxﬁ}ﬁﬁ REgHm ~ K
FTSEAE I ~ BCAE AR5 B
m%% M 2% 5 A S W B
PR % A 8- IR R AT 2 52
By o % R 2 i o AR
B Az e g R 2™
GriE AT AR - %%
THRAERE— &k -

AREMEEER.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

38.3 &t LHZ A REMEG = (E)

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 80 Annual Report 2020

WG G 7L A2 2
B R £ A 2 4 R E
(#)

S I A BT o 2 AR T
H (WM E TR 28 fofd
(BT AR (B IR 2 o 325
ik (B 77 35 3% 0 i ) P 22 w8
ST B > R U K
FEBRZANE - MTREZA
SAE B BT 75 2 BT 25 K A 8
B AT > Bl TR R
B o

i

il

\r

&
/N

ik — JH Bk 22 TH B R i A B
JF DA AT B T 5 ek s AR g
HIA B TR AR =gk -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)

38.3 &fk T HZ A R lEEs & (4)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are carried at other than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and HKSCC, the Group has a
legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis. In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the trade receivable from and payables to cash
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

H A DL Sb it 3 2 <2 i B
BEREMAEZ AR

TR DEPALE
LA S R B 2
7 B B 2 MR (5L —
FoFERF I A
=+ A2 AR B RER
£ -

< il L 1 ) B

RBP4 52 T A
AT T RE 45 4 P BB 1h
P KR 2 < A I 4l B

(8

AR A e ] B e i 4 R 2 AR
2 FRETF A A ek - A%
PR 15 AT R R AT REA
DATEAR R 455 H BLE M 45 53
SRR AT BB BAT > A
EE BRI PSR - I
b SR EA 5IA ] B AT
REFIA R F SIS B AT B &5 A
BBl % 5 921 0 e R K B
FEAST IR o 1T A B [ 5 4 13
FUELE 2 F AR o

BREREEERAD
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &Rt THHE)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 383 &M LHZ A REMEG &)
(Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting 2l L B (R ()
(Continued)

Gross amounts  Net amounts of
of recognised  financial assets

financial assets (liabilities)
(liabilities) presented
Gross amounts  set off in the in the Related amounts not offset in the
of recognised  consolidated  consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
financial  statementof statement of AT A T RO 2 9 4 2 2
assets financial financial Financial Collateral
(liabilities) position position instruments received Net amount
TR

WREN AU

Ciaem Mok RRENES

KERE)  REMEE  2eBEE
<am (A (REFH SRR FREE R ik
HKS'000 HKS°000 HKS°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHT i T W Tt W Tt W Tt HHT

2020 e S S
Financial assets GHARE
Trade receivables from clearing 5K FA&EH I KRB G F 2
house and cash clients JELUR 15,588 (13,440) 2,148 - - 2,148
Financial liabilities SRR
Trade payables to clearing house 1% 5 BT R &% F 2
and cash clients FEfT R (30,041) 13,440 (16,601) - - (16,601)
2019 ZEJUE
Financial assets GREE
Trade receivables from clearing A &EH T RBEEF 2
house and cash clients JELUR K 1,037 (910) 127 - - 127
Financial liabilities SRALR
Trade payables to clearing house  FI45 5 ff KA KT 2
and cash clients TERTHR R (8,756) 910 (7,846) - - (7,846)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

39. Wl H B B o W) R O

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a) Acquisition of Wala Wala Limited (“Wala Wala”) and (a) Wl e HEhs A PR A | ([3EHE
the business (the “Business”) i |) R ([2E%])
On 17 February 2019, the Group acquired 100% equity WoFE—NF_H+EH &
interests in Wala Wala and a shareholder’s loan, at an A2 B e e L FE BT 2 A R R
aggregated cash consideration of HK$2,300,000. Wala KRR > Bl ACE B i
Wala is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with 2,300,0007C ° HEHL FHE Hy £y — [H
limited liability and is principally engaged in the business AT s Gk S A FRAF]
of operating a restaurant serving Japanese Cuisine. FEREREME H AR B K
B ERY S -
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the AW H . A R R B
date of acquisition is as follows: Bz s AEEWT
HK$°000
T T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W2k ~ k7 Kot (st 16) 10,535
Accounts receivables JRE LRI 10
Inventories a3y 100
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %45 ~ T 3K H K H At BE IS 3 I 1,414
Lease liabilities NS (7,274
Accounts and other payables JREAR R T R HAth B A 3 (582)
Shareholder’s loan JBOR AR (4,754)
Total net liabilities AR (551)
HK$’000
T T
Consideration RAE 2,300
Less: Shareholder’s loan acquired Uk BT HE  BRERE K (4,754)
Less: Net liabilities acquired W BT R B E 551
Gain on bargain purchase E U e (1,903)

AREMEEER.
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(@) Acquisition of Wala Wala Limited (‘‘Wala Wala”) and
the business (the “Business’) (Continued)

Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$1,903,000 on
acquisition of Wala Wala is recognised in profit or loss
within the “other income, other gains and losses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Wala Wala and the
Business

Cash consideration paid 2 AT e UE

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Wala Wala contributed revenue of approximately
HK$10,854,000 and net loss of approximately
HK$5,223,000 to the Group for the period from the date
of acquisition to 31 December 2019. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2019, the Group revenue
would have been approximately HK$11,998,000, and loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
approximately HK$5,657,000. This pro forma information
was for illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily
an indication of the revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
occurred on 1 January 2019, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.
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39. Wl E RJE A W R R A BF

(#E

(a)

W B 3 2 v A PR 2 ] (T 3 e
HEpr ) BB (T8 D) (A7)

i AT R 2 iy 2 T B ) 5 W
Wiz 25 5 75 151,903,000 0 A B 2
ZE-NETZH=ZT—HIE
A BE 1 45 A 18 i S HAth 2 T i
fi 2l Hftgg A~ HAthl 25 &
58 10 IE B iR A E A o

W Jie 3 i 3 ke B S 2 B <2 e
i

HK$°000

ki

2,300

Wil FIHE AR B R

U E B E L
+oA=+—H8H > EH
e Fi7 7y A4 B B K IR A A U
10,854,000 7T K2 {F 5 15 40 i
5,223,0007C © fisf i Heg = T
“E-NFE—HA—HEE
Bl A 45 3] 04 Wig N5 2 A0 i
11,998,000 ot > 1 &k & — F
—NE+ A=+ —HIL4EE
i) 1 181 £ 4 s K 5,657,000
TG o w5 RHE I B A
& o AN — 2 B i i T
W ZE—IFE—H— HEAW
15 DL A 5 8B % T 8545 A i
A KERE > TRAEEAE 5 3R 2k
EAEMTE -
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

39. Wik B BRSO W B R A OF

(#7)

Disposal of Broad Sound Enterprise Limited (“Broad (b) Hi#Broad Sound Enterprise
Sound”) Limited ([ Broad Sound])
On 13 February 2019, City Ally, a direct wholly-owned A EB—NE_H+=H > AR
subsidiary of the Company, as seller, and an independent 45 B Y T 2 A TR A ) B O
third party as purchaser completed the disposal by City (FE 28 Iy ) Bl — 2 S 8 =07
Ally of its 100% equity interest in Broad Sound and (WEAE ) SEMHEHEE > B
its subsidiary to the purchaser, at an aggregate cash ¥ Broad Sound Az H: Fff & 2\ 7
consideration of HK$2,300,000. 9 100% i HE & 7 5 O > &
Bl AUE £ # 12,300,0007T ©
The assets, liabilities and loss on disposal of Broad Sound as A E H B > 1 Broad Sound
at the date of disposal are as follows: ZEE - AEAEHEINT
HK$°000
T
Loan receivables W Bk 2,296
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl 5EY) 3
Total net assets G ME 2,299
HK$°000
T T
Consideration RAE 2,300
Less: Net assets disposed W O A A (2,299)
Gain on disposal A R IE 2 i AR 1
Net cash inflow on disposal of Broad Sound  Hj #Broad Sound 2 Bl & i N\ i# 8
Cash consideration BaAUE 2,300
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B B MBS EY) (3)
2,297

AREMEEER.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(c) Disposal of Tony China Group and East Shine

On 22 April 2020, the Company, as vendor, and Mr. Yang
Kaijun (“Mr. Yang”), an individual who is a substantial
shareholder of Tony China Limited (“Tony China”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, as purchaser, enterred into
the sales and purchase agreement, pursuant to which thee
purchaser agreed to purchase, and the Company agreed to
sell, (i) the sale shares, representing all the equity interest
in Tony China and East Shine Group Limited (“East
Shine”), a wholly owned subsidiary, (collectively known
as the “Targets”), held by the Company, and (ii) the sale
loan, representing all the shareholder’s loan owing by Tony
China to the Company as at completion, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,152,000.

Details regarding disposal of Tony China Group and East
Shine are disclosed in Note 10.
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39. Wl E RJE A W R R A BF

(7

(o)

85 R A PR 2 W] K East
Shine

W EFNA A
KE (FEAE T ) Bithes iR 5t
A(TB A D (5 R A A
AR (THEAM]) (—HERE
B A7) 2 EERR) (FE 5
B I HE Wk > 50
B 7 [F) R I A A ][] 3
BEGSHERD > AANE I
H 2 3 F| & East Shine Group
Limited ([ East Shine |) (— fH]
2EMWB A (HFE HEA
w) ) 2 2RI > K GiEHE R
o By SRR 58 R B R AR
R Z 2R AR o BAE S
##51,152,0007C ©

Hi S BRI £E [E K East Shinell) &
T B RE 1084 5 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future cash
flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows from financing activities.

40. FlE G B E A Z AR

TERAIIAEHERMEEE EEZ
BEEHFHE  MEFHELEZA
i % Bl O B 7 A 2 R sl A A
LEHGAHESRERDPEZBER
BICRRB S E -

Other Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
FoAth £ 8 AR gt
(Note 30) (Note 32)
(Bf3E30) (Fff5E32)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T
As at 1 January 2019 W _FE—NFE—H—H - 17,831 17,831
Changes from financing cash il B 4 U A
flows:
Repayment of lease liabilities EEAEARE — (14,891) (14,891)
Other changes: HAth 5 )
Acquisition of a subsidiary AL S — R ot g 2 - 7,274 7,274
New leases entered CR L HE = 26,657 26,657
Exchange adjustments I B, 4 - 13 13
Interest expenses S B - 2,026 2,026
Interest paid EATFLE - (2,026) (2,026)
At 31 December 2019 and Bo_F—-NEFE+ZA
1 January 2020 =t+—HRK
R CERF—H—H — 36,884 36,884
Changes from financing cash il B 4 Uk o A
flows:
Repayment of lease liabilities BRI EARE = (22,172) (22,172)
Proceeds from other borrowing  HAfE & T 15 30H 10,000 - 10,000
Other changes: HAth 55
COVID-19-rent concessions B e R
received AH B H 4 08 A - (4,844) (4,844)
Disposal of subsidiaries WS — i o J 2 - (25) (25)
New leases entered R E - 53,181 53,181
Early termination of lease AT = (155) (155)
Exchange adjustments REE 53, 57 & - 155 155
Interest expenses FIE B 3L 436 3,353 3,789
Interest paid EFLE (420) (3,353) (3,773)
At 31 December 2020 I S = Sy |
=+—H 10,016 63,024 73,040
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

Related party
IR B 5

Mr. N§ Man Chun Paul (Director)

RS (H )

Mr. NE Ting Ho (Director)
SIET et ()

Mr. Lam Chun Kei (Director)
MR FESEAE ()

Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) or

his close family members

SEGESEAE (BOR) BB

Companies controlled by

Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder)

Nature of transaction

RHE

Commission income from
securities dealing

B HE 2 A

Interest income from securities

75 FIR A

Commission income from
securities dealing

i) - S=PAEAUN

Interest income from securities

it 75 2 RIS

Sales

#H

Loan interest income

BHF A

Commission income from
securities dealing

HAHE 2SI

Interest income from securities

w2 2 FE A

Commission income from
securities dealing

or his close family member W EE Z Sl
SIERESEA (R ST Interest income from securities
Pl 2 A7) w25 Z LR
BLVD Cayman Limited Other interest income
(Joint Venture) HAbF S A
(FEftE) Sales
s
BLVD Holding Pte. Limited Interest income
(Joint Venture) FEUA
(FEt) Other income
HAbYA
Notes:
(i) The commission income from securities dealings was calculated at

rates ranged from 0.03% to 0.05%.
(i)  The interest income from securities dealings was based on the rates

which substantially in line with those normally received by the
Group from third parties.
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41. BBH RS

R 5% 55 4 A B BS i 3% L Ath 3t T B B
BR B AN > AR S A A A R B M

T2 ST

(a) HRBH RS
2020 2019
ZEORE —“E-NEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt 5 b3 T BT
(i) 14 1
(ii) 11 -
@) 17 2
(ii) 1 -
6 _
90 -
@) 1 1
(ii) 2 -
(i) 4 5
(ii) 13 -
1 249
6 _
29 20
48 298

B3k -

(i) WHHEEHERZHBESWRALRT
0.03% %0.05% 2 R51HE o

(i) WFEEZ A ERA TR
A AL W5 = — ik
U R E o



41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o il 75 ¥k 2o B 51 (58)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

Outstanding balances with related parties (b)

Included in the trade receivables and payables arising from
the ordinary course of business of the financial services
business are amounts due from/(to) certain related parties,
the details of which are as follows:

41. BB A S ()

S R WG 7 2 AR 1 6 B

FEATA 4 AR S 2685 1 — e
B A v AR 2 RSO R B

Related party
I5H W 5

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Director)
SRS (FEEF)

Mr. Lam Chun Kei (Director)
MBS ()

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Director)
RIS (FF)

Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) and

his close family members

SREEGESEAE (R B AT

Companies controlled by

Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) or

his close family members
SREEAESEAE (BOR) BT H
Pl 2 2 7]

BLVD Cayman Limited (Joint Venture)

(FEdsg)

Nature of account

FoiE

Cash account
HE&EF O
Margin account
PRAE4 P

Cash account
HEFno
Loan and interest receivable

R A B e S

Cash account
BEF o
Margin account
RageF A

Cash account
BHEF O
Margin account
RiEEF 0

Cash account
BeF O
Margin account
RegEF O

Loan and interest receivable
JRE IS R e A
Other receivable

HoAh B UK IA

The outstanding balances of cash accounts above represent
the net balance of trading accounts at the end of the

reporting period.

FHRRFR > I (AT 25 T
BN 7 2 FH > REIEANE

2020 2019

ZRIFRF —FNEF

HK$’000 HKS$’000

BT i RTH

- (6)

1,218 )

@® (1)

1,028 _

(721) (338)

(289) _

(264) (485)

635 (250)

(211) (2,272)

1,886 (554)

2,168 2,090

- 557

REBEIAR > PRBEEF N2
REHREERIEZ IR 2 58k

# o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the year was

as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Equity-settled share option expense
Discretionary bonus

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Je e Al
A M A% A A1

41. BB S (4E)

()

LA RBEARE A5 5 FS e B =

WY EAL

EREAHBALZME

AAENE > E R G Z B
T

2020 2019
SERORE CF U
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
3,821 4,495
54 54
166 =
4,041 4,549
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

Statement of financial position of the Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FE B &
TR B 2 Rl R B

i B
e ~ FASOEK
HAbRENSHIR
JRE WAL A B 2 ) 0
B KB &% EY

i B £ 1%
JREAS Bt g > ) 3 H

JHC Al 8 A RO B AR 2

B A, (A

B I
A e fii i
JieA
it

HE o5 4

The statement of financial position of the Company was

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

#HF

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul

R

A ) SO A IR 0 2 B ik £ 5 )
A2 ] IR DL
2020 2019
SEOEE CF
HK$°000 HK$°000
i AN BT
1,721 32,487
541 418
102,985 116,190
5,609 4,040
109,135 120,648
93,887 120,383
1,399 1,343
95,286 121,726
13,849 (1,078)
15,570 31,409
1,530 1,530
14,040 29,879
15,570 31,409

ARFEZ BN NKRE R —F ——
A AU H R S i IR
METIEE > A AR AREE

Director

HF
Mr. Ng Ting Ho
RAE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

42,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

Balance at 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Share consolidation

Balance at 31 December 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Amount transferred to written off
accumulated loss
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments

Balance at 31 December 2020

REF—NE—A—RZ &t

B E
AR HA i

AR AR

it & bt

REZ-AETZA=S—H
Z Btk

B E
AR HA i

AR AR

Tl R rti R . 2

TR AR G AR 3k

REZZZELZA=S—H
Z Btk

A 2 W) B B IR D0 % K ok i 5 )
(#
AR 2 ) fih i 52 B
Share  Contributed Capital ~ Share options  Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
Jhe i YN GARE MR Rt ait
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T 7 T 7 T 7 T 7 T 7 T 7
160,109 153,551 71317 - (356,893) 34,084
- - - - (14,917) (14,917)
- - - - (14.917) (14.917)
- 10,712 - - - 10,712
160,109 164,263 71317 - (371,810) 29,879
- = - - (16,663) (16,663)
- - - - (16,663) (16,663)
- (10,712) - - 10,712 -
- = - 824 - 824
160,109 153,551 71317 824 (377,761) 14,040

As of 31 December 2020, the Company has issued a corporate

guarantee in respect of other borrowing made by an independent

third party to a subsidiary. The fair value of the guarantee has

not been provided for in the Company’s financial statements as

the directors of the Company consider the amount involved to be

insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The fair value of listed equity securities are determined based on
the quoted market closing price available on the Main Board and
GEM of the Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the realised losses and unrealised losses on financial
assets at FVTPL from changes in fair value on financial assets at
FVTPL held as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$361,000 and HK$166,000 respectively.

43.

et IR 50H

BB 7 2 2 o SUAEAE TR
SR R W 52 BIr AR B GEM LI Ui
Z Bk U E R E

WZEE A MR R EMUEZ H
W AR REF A=+ —H
R 2 A fEEF AR 2 SR
BN B B R R A AEE
FH AR5 2 4 AlE B O A B R
7 5 B 18 3 1l 5 49 5 5361,000 7T
K #:%166,0007C °
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Flve— ear Financial Summary

TS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 % £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

Results

Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit from operations

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Finance costs
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/gain on
deconsolidation
of subsidiaries
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Assets impairments
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

£S5

A
FRE A ST
ELA IR RS

RE¥EHZ (EH)
i 1)
:}' 2*&:(«%%?%
BA IR R 3

A AR
FRERE T
D4 I R 20

oy JJ:A‘/]‘AﬁIJEEI}ﬁ‘%/\j
2 () /Was

R TS

DA I R R

B WA
h o 4K #&%a%
BRI S5
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For the year ened 31 December

BET-H=4—HILEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
EFIRE R ZFNF ZFLF ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
wWRTx BT W T wWTor W T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(KEEH) (5CE51) (KCH51) (KCHE51)

136,872 96,912 36,950 21,283 14,591
1,375 15,232 36,473 35,694 47,112
138,247 112,144 73,423 56,977 61,703
(9,281) (44,807) (36,100) (73,804) (16,347)
(442) (10,945) (4,528) (5,254) 5,448
(9,723) (55,752) (40,628) (79,058) (10,899)
(3,795) (2,021) (38) (1,104) (870)
(1) (5) - - -
(3,796) (2,026) (38) (1,104) (870)

- - (308) - -

(2,400) = - 2,867 -
(2,400) - (308) 2,867 -
(11,849) (46,181) - (20,524) (1,320)
- (1,422) = - (1,629)
(11,849) (47,603) - (20,524) (2,949)




(Loss)/profit before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Income tax (expense)/credit
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit to the year
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

BRBLAT (B51R),tii F

PR s
BRI IR e

sl (B32) /5%

FHERCE T
BT

AT (B51R) /il

TR A TS
ERIIF e

AL
(8 /Al -

E/NGIE: 2PN
TR A TS
B LR

FRHE IR £
FHERCE T
B4 1 5 275

Five-year Financial Summary (Continued)

hEMERHE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ — & = F4F | = H =+ — H IFF &

For the year ened 31 December

BET A=+ —HIESE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CRORE CEE CF)N\E SFELE T AE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wWRTx BT T Wt BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(KEE5) (%8 H51) (KCH51) (KCH51)
(24,925) (93,009) (36,446) (95,432) (18,537)
(2,843) (12,372) (4,528) (2,387) 3,819
(27,768) (105,381) (40,974) (97,819) (14,718)
(757) (132) (320) 47 392
- - - (7) (31
(757) (132) (320) 40 361
(25,682) (93,141) (36,766) (95,385) (18,145)
(2,843) (12,372) (4,528) (2,394) 3,788
(28,525) (105,513) (41,294) (97,779) (14,357)
(25,654) (93,118) (36,988) (96,156) (19,426)
2,799) (11,093) (3,554) (2,331) 1,743
(28,453) (104,211) (40,542) (98,487) (17,683)
(28) (23) 222 771 1,281
(44) (1,279) (974) (63) 2,045
(72) (1,302) (752) 708 3,326
BREMREGIIRL D
—s—sxa8 29D
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B RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #% £ — 3 =4 = H =+ — H I F /&

As at 31 December

Rt+—_H=1—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CRORE ZFFE ZFRNE ZEEF 2R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wWRTx BT W T wWTor BT

ASSETS AND HE KA

LIABILITIES
Total assets WERE 243,024 207,226 284,556 326,549 506,433
Total liabilities A (132,875) (68,687) (38,059) (37,946) (107,052)

110,149 138,539 246,497 288,603 399,381

Equity attributable to THIA L RE LG AR

Owners of the Company % /NEIE ZEDN 108,766 136,726 243,416 271,735 361,420

Non-controlling interests I R R i 1,383 1,813 3,081 10,868 37,961
110,149 138,539 246,497 288,603 399,381
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